=

FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL

Feather Piver

Regular Scheduled Board Meeting
Feather River Charter School
June 16, 2020 — 5:30 pm
3840 Rosin Court #100
Sacramento, CA 95834

Through Teleconference
Join Zoom Meeting
https://zoom.us/j/96169543539

Meeting ID: 961 6954 3539

Dial by your location
+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/aeotTYUnyl

©° N Lok wP

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

AGENDA
Call to Order

Approval of the Agenda

Public Comments

Executive Director’s Report

Discussion and Potential Action on the May Board Meeting Minutes

Discussion and Potential Action on the May Financials

Discussion and Potential Action on the 2020 — 2021 Budget

Discussion and Potential Action on the COVID-19 Plans (Executive Order: N-56-20
Operations Written Report)

Discussion and Potential Action on the CharterSAFE Renewals

Discussion and Potential Action on the Inspire Charter Services Service Agreement
Discussion and Potential Action on the Compensation Policy

Discussion and Potential Action on the Suicide Prevention Policy

Discussion and Potential Action on the Educational Vendor Policies and Procedures
Discussion and Potential Action on the Field Trip Policy

Discussion and Potential Action on the Comprehensive School Safety Plan
Discussion and Potential Action on the Extended TK Planning Amount Depreciation

Chart


https://zoom.us/j/96169543539
https://zoom.us/u/aeotTYUny1

< FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL
Feather Piver
17. Discussion and Potential Action on the Classified Calendar
18. Discussion and Potential Action on the Bylaws
19. Discussion and Potential Action on Affirming of Board Members and their New Term
20. Discussion and Potential Action on the Election of Officers
21. Discussion and Potential Action on the Board Meeting Calendar
22. Discussion and Potential Action on the Board Resolution — Stipend Expense for
Travel, Internet and Phone
23. Closed Session:
a. Public Employee Performance Evaluation: Executive Director § 54956.7
b. Conference with Legal Counsel - Anticipated Litigation (One Case) § 54956.9
24. Discussion and Potential Action on the Executive Director Contract, Salary, and
Fringe Benefits
25. Announcement of Next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting
26. Adjournment

Public comment rules: Members of the public may address the Board on agenda or non-agenda items through the teleconference
platform, zoom. Zoom does not require the members of the public to have an account or login. Please either utilize the chat option
to communicate with the administrative team your desire to address the board or simply communicate orally your desire to address
the board when the board asks for public comments. Speakers may be called in the order that requests are received. We ask that
comments are limited to 2 minutes each, with no more than 15 minutes per single topic so that as many people as possible may be
heard. If a member of the public utilizes a translator to address the board, those individuals are allotted 4 minutes each. If the
board utilizes simultaneous translation equipment in a manner that allows the board to hear the translated public testimony
simultaneously, those individuals are allotted 2 minutes each. By law, the Board is allowed to take action only on items on the
agenda. The Board may, at its discretion, refer a matter to school staff or calendar the issue for future discussion.

Note: Feather River Charter School Governing Board encourages those with disabilities to participate fully in the public meeting
process. If you need a disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, to participate in the
public meeting, please contact the Governing Board Office at 951-290-3013 at least 48 hours before the scheduled board meeting
so that we may make every reasonable effort to accommodate you. (Government Code § 54954.2; Americans with Disabilities
Act of 1990, § 202 (42 US.C. § 12132)).



< FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL
Feather Piver

Regular Scheduled Board Meeting - Feather River Charter School
May 19, 2020 — 5:30 pm
3840 Rosin Court #100, Sacramento, CA 95834

Attendance: Suzanne Nunnink, Shankari Arcot, David Brockmyer, Shannon Milligan - Teleconference
Absent: Shirley Montalvo
Also Present: Julie Haycock, Jenell Sherman, Bryanna Brossman - Teleconference

Call to Order:
Suzanne Nunnink called the meeting to order at 6:49 pm.

Approval of the Agenda:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the agenda, Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous

Public Comments:
None.

Closed Session - Conference re Real Property Negotiations. Gov’t Code. Sect. 54956.9. Potential
Lease re 4750 Grove Street, Rocklin, California 95765:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to enter Closed Session at 6:51 pm, David Brockmyer seconded.
-Unanimous

Suzanne Nunnink motioned to exit Closed Session at 6:01 pm, Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous

No action was taken in Closed Session.

Executive Director’s Report:
The board received a report on:
e School Closure due to Covid-19 Updates
e 2020-2021 Enrollment Updates
e Student Achievement

Discussion and Potential Action on the April Board Meeting Minutes:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the April Board Meeting Minutes, Shankari Arcot
seconded.
-Unanimous



s FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL
Feather Piver
Discussion and Potential Action on the April Financials:

Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the April Financials, Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the COVID-19 Plans (Executive Order: N-56-20 Operations
Written Report)
The board was presented the COVID-19 Plan and provided feedback. No action was taken.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Invoices over $100,000:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the Invoices of $100,000, Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Confirmation of Retention of Counsel — Engagement
Letter:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the Confirmation of Retention of Counsel — Engagement
Letter, Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Salary Schedules:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the Salary Schedules, Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Executive Director Evaluation:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the Executive Director Evaluation, Shankari Arcot
seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Suicide Prevention Policy
The board was presented the Suicide Prevention Policy and provided feedback. No action was
taken.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Suspension and Expulsion Policy:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the Suspension and Expulsion Policy, Shankari Arcot
seconded.
-Unanimous

Discussion and Potential Action on the Field Trip Policy:
This item was tabled by the board.



s FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL
Feather Piver
Discussion and Potential Action on the Vendor Agreements:

Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the Vendor Agreements, Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous

Announcement of Next Regular Scheduled Board Meeting:
June 16, 2020 with a change of time to 5:30 pm.

Adjournment:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to adjourn the meeting at 7:34 pm, David Brockmyer seconded.
-Unanimous

Prepared by:
Bryanna Brossman

Noted by:

Board Secretary



< FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL
Feather Piver

Special Board Meeting - Feather River Charter School
May 28, 2020 — 4:45 pm
3840 Rosin Court #100, Sacramento, CA 95834

Attendance: Shankari Arcot, David Brockmyer, Suzanne Nunnink
Absent: Shirley Montalvo, Shannon Milligan
Also Present: Jenell Sherman, Amanda Panting, Julie Haycock

Call to Order:
Suzanne Ninnkink called the meeting to order at 4:45 pm.

Approval of the Agenda:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the agenda. Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous.

Public Comments:
None.

Discussion and Potential Action on the Board Resolution To Apply with One or More Financial
Institutions to Borrow the Maximum Qualifying Amount under the Paycheck Protection
Program:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to approve the Board Resolution To Apply with One or More
Financial Institutions to Borrow the Maximum Qualifying Amount under the Paycheck
Protection Program. Shankari Arcot seconded.
-Unanimous.

Adjournment:
Suzanne Nunnink motioned to adjourn the meeting at 4:46 pm. David Brockmyer seconded.
-Unanimous.

Prepared by:
Bryanna Brossman

Noted by:

Board Secretary



COVID-19 Operations Written Report

Local Educational Agency (LEA)

Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone Date of Adoption
Feather River Charter School Jenell Sherman, Executive Director lenell@featherrivercharter.org June 16, 2020
’ (916) 532-5923 ’

Descriptions provided should include sufficient detail yet be sufficiently succinct to promote a broader understanding of the changes
your LEA has put in place. LEAs are strongly encouraged to provide descriptions that do not exceed 300 words.

Provide an overview explaining the changes to program offerings that the LEA has made in response to school closures to address the COVID-
19 emergency and the major impacts of the closures on students and families.

As a non-classroom-based independent study work charter school, we provide homeschooling families with a variety of curriculum delivery
options, including online instruction courses led by credentialed teachers, offline courses, and virtual courses that employ built-in
accommodations, teacher support, performance tasks, and progress monitoring. Families select the combination of systems that best suit
student learning needs and interests. We ensure students are engaged in appropriate educational activities on instructional days, assess the
time value of independent work, and the quality of contemporaneous work samples. As we have done before our extended closure, we discuss
with each family the curriculum delivery options available during the COVID19 shelter in place restrictions. Below are the three distance
learning options offered to families during our extended COVID19 closure:

1) Teacher-Directed Instructional Model
eTeacher and families select materials (e.g., digital links, digitized materials, district-adopted textbooks)
eStudents engage through recorded (asynchronous) and live sessions (synchronous) using digital platforms such as Zoom
eTeacher prioritizes learning goals, determines full or partial online equivalent, or needed adjustments
eTeacher communicates with students and families through phone or other agreed-upon digital platforms

2) Online Instructional Model
eInstruction provided through district-licensed online content resources (e.g., Edgenuity)
eStudents engage through menu-driven activities allowing for self-pacing, monitoring of student learning
eCredentialed teacher communicates with students and families through district-licensed online content resources, phone,
or other agreed-upon digital platforms

3) Blended Instructional Model
eTeacher and families select materials (e.g., digital links, digitized materials, district-adopted textbooks)
eStudents engage through a combination of recorded/live sessions using a digital platform such as Zoom, and through district-
licensed online content resources (e.g., Edgenuity)
eTeacher enhances district-licensed online content resources (e.g., Edgenuity) by prioritizes learning goals, determines full or partial


mailto:jenell@featherrivercharter.org

online equivalent, or needed adjustments
eTeacher communicates with students and families through phone or other digital platforms selected by the teacher

Provide a description of how the LEA is meeting the needs of its English learners, foster youth, and low-income students.

We realize the COVID19 crises adversely affects all students, particularly those who are considered most vulnerable. To mitigate these effects,
we have:

¢ Proactively communicating the availability of community services and resources, including meals and childcare for students
¢ Added social-emotional learning (See next section) to our curriculum,

e Prioritized fewer learning goals, identified course sequence changes, implemented an appropriate grading policy, and

e Administered surveys to help identify new needs

Approximately 37% of our students live in low-income households, and approximately 1% are homeless or are in foster care. Our non-
classroom-based independent study platform includes access to the technology needed to participate in a distance learning environment
effectively, including high-speed internet access. From a technology access perspective, the transition to our shelter in place learning options
was relatively smooth. However, as mentioned, we nonetheless administered surveys to help identify new needs.

We communicated our extended closure learning plan to families of our English learners (approximately 7%) in a language they understand to
ensure meaningfully and equally participation. Our virtual curriculum options facilitate embedded ELD instructional support, including built-in
accommodations, parent portals, instructional videos, hands-on activities, performance tasks, and progress monitoring. Consequently, most of
our ELs can maintain English language development (ELD) supports during our extended closure. We incorporate integrated ELD in subject
matter courses and provide online designated ELD classes administered by an appropriately credentialed and trained teacher.

Approximately 11% of our students qualify for an individualized education plan (IEP). We will continue to monitor IEP goals and related
services and support families and students via telephone or virtual meetings.

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to continue delivering high-quality distance learning opportunities.

Our COVID19 learning loss mitigation plan is composed of four components:

1) Identification of learning needs- Through surveys and discussions, we solicited shelter in place specific needs, including access to broadband
internet service and other technology. We specifically solicited feedback from our English learner, and exceptional learning needs staff and
families.

2) Establish a communication plan- We informed stakeholders of our plan through a variety of mediums, including email, social media, website,
telephone calls, and text messages. For families of our ELs, we made a concerted effort to communicate our plan in a language most
accessible to them.



3) Identification of learning outcomes- Given the context, we prioritized learning goals, identified course sequence changes, implemented an
appropriate grading policy, and identified professional learning needs. Staff learning focused on the identification and use of specific resources
to support students to continue their distance-learning format.

4) Addressing social-emotional needs- We added social-emotional learning (SEL) to our curriculum. We focused on maintaining regular
communications to facilitate a sense of connection and support. As an example, staff recently created virtual events to connect families such as
student showcases (music for both K-8 and 9-12 grades), lockdown journaling (journal experiences with Covid, students shared journal entries),
The Great Debate (learn how to debate topics with respects and variety of opinions.) For example, virtual art share for students with an art
show. For example, our teachers often model problem-solving and flexibility in the face of new daily schedules. We offered regular check-in
meetings and office hours via telephone or internet to gauge the current social-emotional state of students.

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to provide school meals while maintaining social distancing practices.

As a non-classroom-based independent study work charter school, we do not have facilities to serve congregate meals, including cafeterias.
Consequently, we do not provide congregate meals to students through the Summer Food Service Program (SFSP) or the National School
Lunch Program Seamless Summer Option (SSO), including non-congregate meals during our COVID-19 closure. However, we help families
find needed resources within the community.

Provide a description of the steps that have been taken by the LEA to arrange for the supervision of students during ordinary school hours.

We are a non-classroom-based independent study work charter school wherein parents provide a majority of student supervision during
ordinary school hours. We work closely with families in the education of their children/teens. To ensure each student is engaged in appropriate
educational activities on instructional days, we assess the time value of independent work and the quality of contemporaneous work samples.
Beginning on March 20, 2020 we stopped recording regular attendance on approved COVID-19 school closure days for apportionment
purposes. However, we began proactively reaching out to families and students to support and track participation and engagement in distance
learning. Staff communicates with the parents and students via email, social media, phone, online meeting platforms, and texting. As
mentioned, we initiated a technology needs survey to ascertain what students and families are need of technological devices to participate in
our office hours.

Additionally, we began offering COVID-19 specific check-in meetings and office hours to discuss and address COVID-19 related feelings and
trauma with our students. For parents who are essential workers and need childcare, we provided a list of external resources, including the
new California childcare website. Similarly, we communicated the availability of community resources, including food and childcare to families
with children with particular disabilities or special health care needs, and to those who or are homeless or in foster care.

California Department of Education
May 2020



CharterSAFE

BE SAFE - FEEL SAFE

2020-2021 Membership Proposal

Prepared for:
Feather River Charter School

Coverage Effective:

July 01, 2020 at 12:01 AM - July 01, 2021 at 12:01 AM

California Charter Schools Joint Powers Authority
P.O. Box 969, Weimar, CA 95736
Phone: 888.901.0004 Fax: 888.901.0004
www.chartersafe.org

Issued: June 03, 2020 at 1:41 pm

DISCLOSURE: This proposal is an outline of the coverages proposed by California Charter  Schools Joint
Powers  Authority = (CCSJPA) based on the information provided by the Named Member. It does not include all
of the terms, coverages, exclusions, limitation and conditions of  the actual contracts. The policies
themselves must be read for those details. Policy forms for your reference will be made available upon
request  to CCSIPA. As set  forth in this document, CCSJPA DBA  CharterSAFE shall be referred to as
CharterSAFE.

17846

SELF
P,wC



Dear Julie,

CharterSAFE is pleased to present your membership proposal for the 2020-2021 vyear. Your
membership includes the following:

Insurance Contract
Policy : Review

Procedures Templates

i Litigation Sexual Abuse :
‘m Prevention L

| T 5
P."aeyrg_;::gind : Facility Use
Inspection || i

Human

Waiver Fonml Vendor Policy

Safety

Consulting

Ergonomic
Evaluations

Claims

Resources
Managemen

Certification

For a more detailed listing of our member services, please contact Karen Bianchini, Managing
Director, Risk Management, at kbianchini@chartersafe.org or (916) 880-3460.

All of CharterSAFE's coverage placements are with insurance companies that have a financial rating
with A.M. Best of A- (Excellent), financial size category VII ($50M policyholder surplus minimum) or
higher or are placed with an approved California scholastic joint powers authority.

REQUIRED SIGNATURES:

To bind coverage, you must complete and sign the following:

1. The proposal acceptance at the end of the "Member Contribution Summary" page

We look forward to working with you in the 2020-2021 year!
Thank you,

The CharterSAFE Team

CharterSAFE o Protecting Schools. Promoting Safety. Customizing Insurance.



CharterSAFE

2020-2021 CLAIMS AND INCIDENT REPORTS GUIDELINES

Member schools must notify CharterSAFE by submitting an online report, as soon as
practicable, of an occurrence, accident, injury, claim, or suit or of circumstances that may
reasonably result in a claim or suit. A delay in reporting could mean lapse in coverage.

For your protection, claims will not be accepted by phone, email, or fax.

CLAIMS FILING PROCESS ON THE WEB PORTAL

® Go to www.chartersafe.org and log in.

® If you need to reset your login credentials, please reach out to your CharterSAFE
Representative: Whitney Delano at wdelano@chartersafe.org.

® Hover over the “Claims” tab, choose “"Submit a Claim” and our website will prompt you with
a series of questions to help you determine the appropriate claim form to submit.

® Complete the online questions and select the “Submit” icon at the bottom. After submission,
you will receive a confirmation email with information regarding next steps.

CLAIMS RESOURCES AND FORMS

® Hover over the "Claims" tab, choose "Resources and Forms" and you will find all supporting
documents you might need when filing a claim or incident report, such as:
e Student Accident Claim Packet (English and Spanish)
e Volunteer Accident Claim Packet (English and Spanish)
e Statement of No Insurance
e Workers' Compensation Claim Form (DWC-1)
e Employee Fact Sheet
e Kaiser on the Job Clinics
e Employee Injury Card

For any claim reporting questions, please contact Dennis Monahan, Managing Director, Claims, at
(619) 878-6221 or email dmonahan@chartersafe.org.

CharterSAFE e Protecting Schools. Promoting Safety. Customizing Insurance.



17846

A MEMBER CONTRIBUTION SUMMARY
SELF
P,WC Feather River Charter School

Coverage Effective: July 01, 2020 at 12:01 AM - July 01, 2021 at 12:01 AM

Your CharterSAFE Insurance Program includes the following coverages:

Liability & Property Package Member $100,975
Contribution

Core Liability Program Crime

e Directors & Officers Liability Property

e Employment Practices Liability Student & Volunteer Accident

e Fiduciary Liability

o General Liability Additional Program Coverages

o Employee Benefits Liability e Pollution Liability and First Party Remediation
e Educator's Legal Liability e Terrorism Liability and Property

e Sexual Abuse Liability e Cyber Liability

e Law Enforcement Liability
e Automobile Liability & Physical Damage

Workers' Compensation & Employer's $39,098
Liability Member Contribution

Total Member Contribution $140,073

Choose One Payment Option Q Payment in Full $140,073
QO Installment Plan

e Deposit (25%) - Due Now - $35,018
e 9 Monthly Installments - $11,673

*Refer to the CharterSAFE Invoice for details and instructions on payment by ACH Debits

Invoices shall become delinquent thirty (30) calendar days from installment due date. CharterSAFE
membership, including insurance coverage, is subject to cancellation for any invoice over sixty (60) days past
due.

Proposal Acceptance:

By  signing below, I, representing the  Named Member in  this proposal, acknowledge that I have read the
complete proposal and agree to the terms outlined within.

Print Name Date

Signature Date

DISCLOSURE: This proposal is an outline of the coverages proposed by California Charter Schools Joint Powers
Authority  (CCSJPA) based on the information provided by the Named Member. It does not include all of the
terms, coverages, exclusions, limitation and conditions of the actual contracts. The policies themselves must
be read for those details. Policy forms for vyour reference will be made available upon request to CCSIPA. As
set forth in this document, CCSIJPA DBA CharterSAFE shall be referred to as CharterSAFE.



Mailing Address
2401 Olympus Drive
Roseville, CA 95661

Continuity and Retroactive Dates

Directors & Officers Liability Continuity Date:

Employment Practices Liability Continutiy Date:

Fiduciary Liability Continuity Date:

Vehicles
None scheduled.

EXPOSURES & LOCATIONS

07/21/2014

07/21/2014

07/21/2014

Member contributions are calculated based on the following exposures:

Students/Employees/Payroll

Location Address(es) Students Employees Payroll
Feather River Charter School 1,172 69 $4,300,473.00
4305 Meridian
Meridian, CA 95661
Total: 1,172 69 $4,300,473.00




Property Values

Building Value

Content Value

Electronic Data

Total Insured

Location Address(es) Processing (EDP) Value (TIV)
Feather River Charter School $0.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $60,000.00
4305 Meridian

Meridian, CA 95661

Total: $0.00 $30,000.00 $30,000.00 $60,000.00




CORE LIABILITY PROGRAM

Core Liability Program Coverage Limits: $5,000,000 Per Member Aggregate

The Core Liability Program Breaks Down As Follows:

Directors & Officers, Employment Practices, and Fiduciary Liability

Coverages Limits Deductibles
Directors & Officers and $5,000,000 per claim and o
e Varies
Company Liability member aggregate
Employment Practices Liability $5,000,000 per claim and Varies*
member aggregate
Fiduciary Liability $1,000,000 per claim and $0
member aggregate
*Subject to Named Member's claim experience beginning five years prior to the inception of the period of
coverage up to the date of loss. One or more claims on vyour loss history will increase the deductible.

Refer to the Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) for the detailed tiered deductibles.

0 Claim: $15,000.00 per occurrence
1 Claim: $25,000.00 per occurrence
2 Claims: $50,000.00 per occurrence

3 or more Claims: $100,000.00 per occurrence

Reporting: Claims must be reported to CharterSAFE within days after policy
expiration. Coverage is provided on a claims-made basis.

General Liability

Coverages Limits Deductibles

$5,000,000 per occurrence and
member aggregate

Bodily Injury Property Damage

$500 per occurrence for bodily
injury arising out of participation
in a school sponsored High-Risk
Activity *

aggregate

Medical Payments $10,000 per person $0
$50,000 per occurrence

Products and Completed $5,000,000 per occurrence and $0

Operations member aggregate

Armed Assailant Sublimit $100,000 per occurrence and $0

*A list of High-Risk Activities is available at www.chartersafe.org or you may contact Karen Bianchini
(kbianchini@chartersafe.org / (916) 880-3460) of CharterSAFE’s Risk Management team.

Employee Benefits Liability

Coverages Limits Deductibles
Employee Benefits Liability $5,000,000 per occurrence and $0
member aggregate
Educator's Legal Liability
Coverages Limits Deductibles

$5,000,000 per occurrence and
member aggregate

Educator's Legal Liability

$2,500 per occurrence

IEP (Individualized Education
Program) Defense Sublimit

$50,000 per occurrence and
aggregate sublimit

$7,500 per occurrence




Sexual Abuse Liability

Coverages Limits Deductibles
Sexual Abuse Liability $5,000,000 per occurrence and $0 if school completes training
member aggregate requirement

$100,000 if school did not
complete training requirement

*Training Mandate

Sexual Abuse Prevention Training by CharterSAFE is available under the CharterSAFE Learning Center
and is REQUIRED to be completed by 90% or more of staff within 90 days of coverage renewal. New
employees are required to complete the training within 6 weeks of employment.

Law Enforcement Activities Liability

Coverages Limits Deductibles

Law Enforcement Activities $5,000,000 per occurrence and |$0

Liability member aggregate

Automobile

Coverages Limits Deductibles

Auto Liability, including autos $5,000,000 per occurrence and [$0

scheduled with CharterSAFE, member aggregate

non-owned autos, and hired

autos

Auto Physical Damage* $1,000,000 per occurrence and |$500 per occurrence for Hired Auto
member aggregate Physical Damage

*Auto Physical Damage described herein for hired automobiles is secondary to any/all rental coverage

offered by the rental company(ies). CharterSAFE strongly advises our members to purchase auto physical

damage when renting vehicles.

Excess Liability - SELF

Coverage Provided by: Schools Excess Liability Fund (SELF)

Coverage: Excess Liability with separate Memorandum of Coverage with
separate terms, conditions, and exclusions.

Limits: $50,000,000 per occurrence/claim and member aggregate as
outlined by the SELF Memorandum of Coverage. This
coverage is excess of the $5M limits above to total a limit of
$55M.

CharterSAFE joined SELF, a nonprofit scholastic JPA in California, as a single member of SELF for excess
liability —coverage. Please note that SELF is a separate entity from CharterSAFE and carries a separate
Memorandum of Coverage with different limits, terms, conditions and exclusions. You can access SELF
JPA’s information at www.selfjpa.org.

Employment Practices Liability coverage within the SELF layer includes ONLY these three types: wrongful
termination, discrimination, and/or sexual harassment.



CRIME

Coverages

Limits

Deductibles

Money and Securities

$1,000,000 per occurrence and
member aggregate

$500 per occurrence

Forgery or Alteration

$1,000,000 per occurrence and
member aggregate

$500 per occurrence

Employee Dishonesty

$1,000,000 per occurrence and
member aggregate

Varies*

Computer and Funds Transfer
Fraud

$1,000,000 per occurrence and
member aggregate

$500 per occurrence

*Subject to Named Member's claim
coverage up to the date of loss.

One or

five
on

beginning
claims

years
your

experience
more

loss

to the Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) for the detailed tiered deductibles.

0 Claim: $500.00 per occurrence
1 Claim: $5,000.00 per occurrence
2 Claims: $10,000.00 per occurrence

3 or more Claims: $20,000.00 per occurrence

prior

history  will

inception  of
increase

to the

the

the deductible.

period

of

Refer



PROPERTY

Perils Include: Direct Physical Loss subject to all the terms, conditions, and exclusions
established in the applicable policy(ies)
Valuation: Replacement Cost as scheduled with CharterSAFE, see "Exposures &
Locations" section
Coverages Limits Deductibles
Property As scheduled with CharterSAFE $1,000 per occurrence
subject to the maximum limit of
$100,000,000 per occurrence.
See "Exposures & Locations"
section for scheduled limits.
Boiler & Machinery / Equipment |[As scheduled with CharterSAFE $1,000 per occurrence
Breakdown subject to the maximum limit of
$100,000,000 per occurrence.
See "Exposures & Locations"
section for scheduled limits.
Business Interruption $10,000,000 per occurrence $1,000 per occurrence
Extra Expense $10,000,000 per occurrence $1,000 per occurrence
Causes of Loss: As scheduled with CharterSAFE Varies*
subject to the maximum limit of
Water Damage $100,000,000 per occurrence.
Wildfire See "Exposures & Locations"
section for scheduled limits.
*Subject to Named Member's claim experience beginning five years prior to the inception of the period of
coverage up to the date of loss. One or more claims on vyour loss history will increase the deductible. Refer to
the Memorandum of Coverage (MOC) for the detailed tiered deductibles.
0 Claim: $1,000.00 per occurrence
1 Claim: $5,000.00 per occurrence
2 Claims: $10,000.00 per occurrence
3 or more Claims: $20,000.00 per occurrence
PLEASE NOTE:
If you have a renovation/construction project valued over $200,000 in hard and soft costs, please contact
your CharterSAFE Representative: Whitney Delano at wdelano@chartersafe.org. CharterSAFE is able to
endorse builder’s risk coverage for renovation projects up to $10,000,000 onto your policy. Additional
premium would apply.
If you are interested in a separate policy for flood and/or earthquake coverage, please contact Kiki Goldsmith

(Kiki_Goldsmith@ajg.com/ 949-349-9842).




STUDENT AND VOLUNTEER ACCIDENT

Coverages Limits Deductibles

Student Accident $50,000 per injury/accident $500 per injury/accident for
104 Week benefit period High-Risk Activities*

Volunteer Accident $25,000 per injury/accident $500 per injury/accident for
104 Week benefit period High-Risk Activities*

*A list of High-Risk Activities

is available at www.chartersafe.org or you may contact Karen Bianchini

(kbianchini@chartersafe.org / (916) 880-3460) of CharterSAFE’s Risk Management team.

Terms & Conditions:

Optional Catastrophic Student
Accident Coverage:

® Coverage is provided on an excess basis, but would become primary
should the student not have health insurance.

(] Claim submission deadline: 90 days after the Covered Accident.

If interested in obtaining higher limits with or without sports
included, please contact:

Gallagher
18201 Von Karman Avenue, Suite #200
Irvine, CA 92612

Kiki Goldsmith

Client Service Executive
Kiki_Goldsmith@ajg.com
949-349-9842




ADDITIONAL PROGRAM COVERAGES

Pollution Liability And First Party Remediation

Coverages Limits Deductibles
Pollution Liability and First $1,000,000 per pollution condition $10,000 per occurrence
Party Remediation or indoor environmental condition

$5,000,000 CharterSAFE Members'
Combined Annual Aggregate

Reporting: Claim must be reported to CharterSAFE within 60 days after policy
expiration.
Coverage is provided on a claims-made basis.

Terrorism Liability

Coverages Limits Deductibles

Terrorism Liability $5,000,000 per occurrence and $0
CharterSAFE Members' Combined
Annual Aggregate

Reporting: Claim must be reported to CharterSAFE within 60 days after policy
expiration.
Coverage is provided on a claims-made basis.

Terrorism Property

Coverages Limits Deductibles

Terrorism Property As scheduled with CharterSAFE $1,000 per occurrence
subject to the maximum limit of
$20,000,000 per occurrence.

See "Exposures & Locations" section
for schedule limits.

Cyber Liability

Coverages Limits Deductibles

Cyber Liability $1,000,000 per claim $2,500 per claim
$5,000,000 CharterSAFE Members'
Combined Annual Aggregate

Privacy Notification Costs

Regulatory Fines and Claim Expenses for Privacy Liability
Extortion Damages for Extortion Threat

Crisis Management Expenses

Business Interruption

Coverage Includes:

Claim must be reported to CharterSAFE within 60 days after policy

Reporting: expiration.
Coverage is provided on a claims-made basis.
Requirement for Coverage Completed cyber application.

to be in effect:



WORKERS' COMPENSATION & EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY

Coverages Limits Deductibles
Workers' Compensation Statutory $0
Employer's Liability $5,000,000 per Accident $0

$5,000,000 by Disease per Employee

$5,000,000 by Disease Policy Limit

Auditable:

The estimated payroll figure will be audited at the end of each coverage
period. CharterSAFE  will request copies of the 941 Federal Quarterly
Reporting Forms on a quarterly basis to verify the payroll figure. If the
estimated payroll figure has been overestimated, a refund will be
issued. If the estimated payroll figure has been underestimated, an
invoice for the additional amount due will be issued.




Feathor Diven

2020-2021 Compensation Policy

Dedication to Non-discrimination

It is the policy of Feather River Charter School not to discriminate on the basis of race, religious creed
(which includes religious dress and grooming practices), color, national origin (which includes, but is not
limited to, national origin groups and aspects of national origin, such as height, weight, accent, or
language proficiency), ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic
information, marital status, sex (which includes pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding, and related medical
conditions), gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, military or veteran status
(including state and federal active and reserve members as well as those ordered to duty or training),
immigration/citizenship status or related protected activities (which includes undocumented individuals
and human trafficking), protected medical leaves, domestic violence victim status, political affiliation, or
any other consideration made unlawful by federal, state, or local laws, ordinances, or regulations.

Important Information

° This summary does not alter the at-will nature of the employment relationship and nothing in this
summary shall limit the School’s right to terminate employment at-will or limit the School’s right
to transfer, demote, suspend, administer discipline, and change the terms and conditions of
employment at its sole discretion. This includes, without limitation, the School’s right to modify
the compensation of any employee at any time, with or without notice and with or without cause.

. The School Board adopts this compensation schedule for 2020-2021 only. Pay increases are not
granted automatically each year; therefore, neither past nor future compensation can be
calculated, assumed, or predicted on the basis of this schedule or any information contained
herein. Compensation of any employee may also be adjusted at any time based on operational
needs of the School.

° The Executive Director shall recommend compensation for all School staff, consistent with the
budget approved by the School Board. -An employee’s regular compensation is paid on a semi-
monthly basis in accordance with the School’s payroll practices and policies.

° The School reserves the right to change, suspend, revoke, terminate, or supersede provisions of
this compensation schedule at any time. To the extent any of provisions herein differ from the
terms of an employee’s employment agreement, the terms of the agreement shall prevail.

Compensation Philosophy
A compensation philosophy is a statement that defines what an organization offers and chooses to
reward via its compensation system. The School’s compensation philosophy places emphasis on
equity, transparency, excellence, and commitment. These five key values are the foundation for
all School compensation structures and practices.

We offer...
. comprehensive compensation packages for all staff, including base salary and benefits.
Certain employees may be eligible for bonuses and stipends, as set forth herein
. a dynamic culture and vibrant community of colleagues united by shared dedication to



students, a commitment to innovation, and a strong growth mindset

. unique career pathways, growth and development opportunities, and leadership roles that
encourage staff to challenge themselves
. equitable compensation, regardless of gender, race/ethnicity, national origin, sexual

orientation, age, religion, disability or any other consideration made unlawful by federal,
state, or local laws, ordinances, or regulations

. a transparent and clearly communicated compensation system, so that staff understand
what factors may determine individual compensation and how and when potential
changes to compensation will be effected

We recognize and reward. ..

. exceptional performance and contributions that enable excellent student outcomes
. commitment of staff who contribute to the long-term success of our students and our
organization

For teachers...
Given the role they play in providing educational services, teachers are particularly critical to the
success of our mission. As such, we offer teacher compensation to attract and retain talented
educators, and we specially recognize and reward:
. exceptional teacher performance that leads to growth and excellence for students
. commitment of teachers who develop deep, high-quality educational experience (within
or outside of the School) and assume critical leadership responsibilities

CERTIFICATED FEACHER-COMPENSATION

Teacher Definition:

For purposes of this schedule, a Teacher is defined as a person who has a valid credential or certificate
that allows them to teach a specific subject matter or special education

Salary Placement Guidelines:

Upon hire, each employee’s salary placement will be calculated based on the YEAR an employee fits, and
in accordance to the professional and teaching experience gathered in previous years in the institutions
outlined in this manual and on other factors such as prior performance (which includes a rehired
employee).

The starting salary of a new employee may exceed the salary of a current employee in the same position
based on the new employee’s years of experience.

Creditable Years of Experience:

e The School has the option to grant one (1) YEAR for each one (1) year of approved creditable
teaching or professional experience up to 10 (ten) years.

e An additional year may be granted for teachers who have school-desired experience in what
the school determines to be “hard-to-staff” positions.

e One year of creditable professional or teaching experience will be granted for full-time
employment, which is employment for 100% of an institution’s normal work schedule during
the school year

e A partial year of creditable professional or teaching experience can be granted for up to a year
of part-time employment, which is less than 100% of an institution’s normal work schedule
during the school year.

e Creditable professional or teaching experience may be earned in:

e California and US public, charter, and private elementary and secondary schools




e Accredited foreign public, charter, and private elementary and secondary schools

e (California, US, and foreign accredited universities and colleges

e Non-public special education contract schools for special education teachers

e  Other regionally accredited educational institutions
Creditable teaching experience is experience as a teacher in one of the institutions outlined
above.
A maximum of 2 years of substitute teaching experience in California and US public, charter,
and private elementary or secondary schools may be accepted.
Two years of teacher assistant experience in the above institutions will be equal to 1 YEAR in
the salary schedule up to a maximum of 2 YEARS.
Other relevant professional experience may be considered by the Executive Director or
designee.

The Executive Director or his or her designee may adjust a rehired teacher’s placement on the pay scale
as appropriate based on the employee’s accumulated experience following the teacher’s separation from
the School, which may result in a higher or lower placement on the scale than the teacher would have
otherwise been placed had the teacher been continuously employed.

Credential/Certification:

Teachers holding a valid and active credential (i.e., preliminary, clear, lifetime) California
teaching certificate at the time of hiring/rehiring will generally be compensated in accordance
with the applicable teacher salary table (B Basis, C Basis or Special Education) for certificated
teachers.

The School may hire teachers with a bachelor’s degree who do not hold a clear teaching
credential. Staff holding an alternative certification (intern, emergency, or preliminary
credential) are rated on the same salary teacher table as certificated teachers.

A teacher is eligible to advance to the proper Pay Scale level once they meet the requirement
for that specific Pay Scale Level and Group based on their creditable years of service and post-
BA units, if applicable.

For any given school year, teachers must submit any successfully completed post-BA units no
later than October 31 in order for the units to applied to the teacher’s salary in that school year.
Any proof of successfully completed post-BA units submitted to the School after October 31
will not result in an adjustment to compensation until the following school year.

Any increase in pay resulting from an advancement on the Pay Scale based on the successful
completion of post-BA units will not take effect until after the School’s receipt of sufficient
documentation supporting the advancement. Pay increases for post-BA units will not be paid
retroactively. For illustration purposes, if a teacher is awarded a degree on January 15 and
provides proof of the degree on May 1, any advancement on the Pay Scale and increase in pay
will be effective beginning the next school year. firstpay-periodfolowingMay-1. The
teacher will not be paid at the higher rate of compensation retroactively (i.e., for the periods
between January 15 and July 1 May1).

If a teacher is awarded a degree on August 15 and provides proof of the degree on
October 15, any advancement on the Pay Scale and increase in pay will be effective
beginning the first pay period following October 15. The teacher will not be paid at
the higher rate of compensation during the periods between August 15 and October 15.



Advanced Degree/Certificate Stipends:

e Teachers who hold a Doctoral degree are entitled to additional compensation of $5000 stipend
in addition to their current annual salary on the Salary Table.

e The stipend is not included in your annual salary and may be processed separately from
regular earnings.

e National Board Certificate (NBC) holders are entitled to a $2,500 stipend in addition to their
current annual salary on the Salary.

e The stipends will be paid as set forth in the Stipend Chart below.

Signing Bonus:
If the School decides to issue signing bonuses, the following requirements shall apply.

e Signing bonuses may be offered to teachers certified in an area of critical concern as defined
by the School, to promote diversity, or to address specific concerns at the school.
e The Executive Director shall designate the individuals authorized to receive the signing bonus.
e To qualify for a signing bonus, the teacher must:
e Dbe certified in the field they are hired to teach.
e teach in that field of the bonus.

Supplemental Duty Stipends:

e Stipends are assigned and approved by the Executive Director or his/her designee at the
beginning of the school year or semester or as otherwise noted in the chart below.

e Teachers who perform the supplemental duties outlined in the table below are eligible to
receive the corresponding stipends as indicated and only if assigned/awarded to the teacher by
the Executive Director or his/her designee. The number of stipends awarded under each
category and/or the periods of service during the school year are at the sole discretion of the
Executive Director or his/her designee.

e Supplemental duty stipends are authorized for the specific year assigned and are not renewed
for the future years unless specifically authorized for those years. This means additional duties
such as New Teacher Trainer, SPED Lead Teacher, etc. are assigned on a year by year basis
and are not guaranteed responsibilities that carry over from year to year.

e Supplemental pay will cease when there is no need for the duty, the employee becomes
ineligible or as otherwise determined in the sole discretion of the School.

e The School, in its sole discretion, may choose not to offer certain stipends

e Stipend amounts and requirements will be reviewed periodically and may be modified from
time to time at the sole discretion of the School.

e Supplemental duty stipends are prorated and will be paid as set forth in the below Stipend
Chart, once the Supplemental duty has started.

Stipend Chart



Stipend Chart
DESCRIPTION

Community Coordinator

Induction Coach Stipend

Student Support Coordinator

Intervertion Suppart Coordinator

Decathlon Coordinator Stipend

MNewTeacher Trainer

MNewTeacher Mentor Teachers

SPED Instuctional or Reading
Specialist Coach

SPED Credertial

Extended School Year (ESY)

Specialized Academnic Insruction
(SAD

High Schaol Lead Counselor

CHYA Coach

F oster Youth Liaison

Handhook Specialist

JHVA Lead Teacher

JHVA Teacher

EL Designee

Extra Studant Stipsnd

Mational Board Cerification
(NBC)

National Board Cerification
(NBC)

Daoctoral Degree Stipend

Doctaral Degree Stipend

*Stipend based on current butget

AMOUNT

*$5000-§10000

$500iteacher’semester

§15,000.00

$15,000.00

§2,50000

$ 8,500.00

$500teachersamester

$1,000

$1,000.00

$ 3,500.00

$5,000.00

$2,000.00

$2,500.00

§5,000.00

FI000- summer tart up, $2000Aear

§15,000.00

$10,000.00

$5000-10,000

$100monthistudent ower
reguired roster limit

$2,500

§1,750

$5,000

$2,500

ELIGIBILITY

Paid 0 a hited Cormmunity Coordinatar who

facilitate s regular events for the Cormmunty Connections
prograrn

Paid to credentialed teachers who work with
teachers who are working tovward clearing their teaching
cradential

Paid to certificated muti-subject teachers, prafarraly winh
horme school experience. Can carry 14 students antheir
roster, up to 18 with permission of directar. Supervise 504
and 85T meetings

Paid to certificated mufti-subiect teachers, preferrably with
home school experience. Carries 14 studerts on their
rogter, up to 19 with permission of director, Provide
sludentswith tier 1,2 and 3 intervention

Assigned Position: Provided to credentialed teachers who
meetwih students to determine if they are meeting
academic

decathlon course reguirements

Assigned Position: paid to a designated HST

wha applied and received the pasition to help train new
teachers. Garries caseload of 18 students, can carry
additioralwith permission of director at
$100/student/morth,

Assigned Position: paid to a designated HST

who applied and received the position to help martor new
teachers.

Assigned Positionr stil carries SPED caseload

Provided for SPED teachers with SPED credertial

Paid to special education teachers who provide services
frar the end of the academic school year to approximately
July

14th

Offered to teachers who perform inrperson services for
special needs siudents

Asgsigned Position. gwento a counselor who
shows leadership abilties and is experienced enough to
handle escalated cases.

Assigned Position: given to HST wha is committed to
supporting the CHYA prograrm and holding office hours for
sludents.

Assigned Position: HST who works with courty and school
1o identify and support foster youth students,

Asgsigned Postion: HST who creates, orpanizes and keeps
HST handbook up to date

Paid to certificated teacher who overseesvirtual teachers
and teaches online junior high courses. Carries a caslioad of
14 sludents,

Paid to cerificated teachers who teach onling junior high

courses and cary a cagioad of 14 sludentes

Assigned Position; HST wh warks with EL coordinator to
provide EL support to famiies and staff.

Provided to HST's carrying over the full time caseload of 28

Provided to teacherswho have been awarded the National
Board Cerification

Provided to teachers who have been awarded the Mational
Board Cerification

Frovided to teachers wha hold a doctor's degree

Provided to teacherswho hold a doctor's degree

ELIGIBILITY START
Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the schaol
year

Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the
school year of whenewer job duties hegin,
whichever is later

Eligibilty starts at the beginning of the school
vear and once the supervising begins.

Eligikility starts at the heginning of the school
vear and once the supervising begins.

Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the school
vear and once the coaching begine.

Elgikilty starts at the beginning of the schaol
year and ance the coaching begins.

Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the schaol
year and anie the coaching bagins

Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the school
year.

Eligibility starts at the beginning of the school
year.

Eligikilty is earned after service has been
completed from start date to end date,

Eligikility iz earned after the gervice has heen
provided,

Eligikility starts at the heginning of the school
year.

Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the school
year.

Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the school
year.

Eligikility starts at the heginning of the school
year.

Eligibility starts at the beginning of the school
year.

Eligikilty starts at the beginning of the school
year.

Eligikility starts at the heginning of the school
year.

Becomes eligile once their rosters surpass
required roster limits

For current employ ees who obtain the
certification before January 1 of the current
schoolyear.

For current employ ees who obtain the
certffication after January 1 of the current schoaol
year.

Forthose wha obtain their degree before January
1 of the current schoolyear.

Farthose who obtain their degree after January 1
ofthe current schoolyear.

PERIOD PAID

Paid biweekly over 12 morths; July - June
Will be prorated based on period of service
during the school year.

Paid biweekly over 10 morths; Septernber -
Jure. Wil be prorated based on period of
sarvice during the school year

Paid biweekly over 10 morths; Septerriber -
Jure. Wil be prorated based on period of
service during the school year.

Paid biweekly aver 10 morths, Septermber -
Jure. Wil be prorated based on period of
gervice during the school vear,

Paid biweekly over 12 months, July - June. Wil
he prorated based an period of service during
the sehool vear.

Paid biweekly over 12 morths; July - June
Will be prorated based an period of service
during the school year

Paid biweekly mrer 12 morths; July - June
Will be prorated based on period of satvice
during the school year.

Paid hiweekly over 12 morths; Septernber -
Jure. Wil be prorated based on period of
service during the school year.

Paid hiweekly aver 12 morths, September -
Jure. Wil be prorated based on period of
service during the school year.

Half paid during the each of the tvo pay periods
of June 30th and July 15th

Paid biweekly over 10 morihs, September -
Jure. Wil be prorated based an period of
service during the school year

Paid hiweekly over 10 morths, September -
Jure. Wil be prorated based on period of
gervice during the school vear,

Paid biweekly over 10 morths; Septernber -
Jure. Wil be prorated based an period of
gervice during the echool year.

Paid biweekly over 12 morths; July - June.
Wil be prorated based on period of service
during the school year.

Paid hiweekly over 10 morths, Septermber -
Jure. Wil be prorated based on period of
service during the school year.

Paid hiweekly over 12 morths, July - June.
Will be prorated based on period of service
during the school year.

Paid hiweekly over 12 morths; July - June.
Wil be prorated based on period of service
during the school year.

Paid hiweekly over 12 morths, July - June,
Wil be prorated based on period of service
during the school year.

Paid hiweekly over 10.5 months, August 16-
Jure. Wil be prorated based an period of
service during the school vear.

The four payments of equal installments (fwo
paid in December and two in March) of the total
slipend amourt will only be

paid to current employees

The two payments of equal installments
o in March) of the total stipend arnount will
only be paid to current employess

The four payments of equal instaliments (wo
paid in December and two in March) of the total
stipend amourt will only be

paid to cutrent employess

The two payments of equal installments
(twn in March) of the total stinend amaunt will
aniy be paid to curent employess



Voluntary Transfer to Lower Role Placement or Teaching position
o Employees approved to voluntarily transfer to a position in a lower placement on the salary
scale will be placed in the new salary placement or teacher salary schedule, and the salary will
be calculated as it is in the new placement or schedule.



pleog jooyas ayy Aq panolidde 1ebpng lo/pue spasu [euoljelado s,j004as ay) 0) J0algns ale pue pasjuelenb jou ale AjasBiuoc| Jo) SjuawadueApe Alejes [EnUUY ...

29 1o/pue ‘19 ‘2¥ LY O} PRjoLisal ade (AauaBiawa Jo UIdjul) UOIediiad aAljeUI)je BUIPOY HEIS 4

1epUS[ED YIoM Y} pUOAS( SAED [BUOIIPDE 3}IOM 0] PA3U ABW SI3]UIAW WEd) PUB ‘SABD YI0M JO JI3GUINU WNWIUIW B 5] SABP 3IoM GA| aUL "SAep YoM Ga| UO paseq S| Alees |enuuy,

000'6$ (pasinbal syduasuel) ‘paliapuod) aaibaq jelopeq
005°2$ (paJinbal uolejUSWINIOP) UCIEIYIHED pleOoY [BUCIEN
spuadng
(sjuiod g6 +)
05Z'863 05Z'96% 052°€6$ 05Z°163 05/'88% 05Z°98% 062°'€8% 05Z°18% oD H
0cH GZH 0ZH SHH YIH £kH CIH LH
s|aAe 8|eog Aed [euolippY
. ; : . . . - . ; . (sjuiod g6+)
052°8.$ 000°G2$ 007 +4$ 000°89% 052'79% 059°19% 052'859 05Z°85$ 05Z'85% 05Z'9s$ H
; : » . » » ; ; ; » (su0d #8+)
05Z'9.8 009°CL$ GZ1'69% 058°G9$ GT.'79% 05.'65% 052'959 05Z°85% 05Z'85% 05Z'9s$ 5
(sjuod 0/+)
062°€/8 6ZZ'04$ 006'99$ 00.°¢98 005°'09$ 06Z'85$ 062859 05Z°85$ 06Z'85$ 05Z'85$ J
(sjuiod gg+)
0SZ'L/3 058°29% 6Z9'59% 055°193 052'85% 05Z'85% 05Z'853 05Z°85% 05Z'85% 05Z'85$ 3
(sjuiod zp+)
052893 005°'69% 05£29% 05Z°853 052'85% 052'85% 052’859 052°85% 05Z'85% 05Z°85$ a
. . ) . . ) ) . . ) (sjuiod gz +)
052'99% 0LL'€9% 052'85$ 052°8G% 052'85$ 052'85% 052'85% 052°85$ 052'85% 052'95%$ 5
. ] : : ; ] . : (syuiod 1 +)
052°¢9% 052'95$ 052'85$ 052°85$ 052°85$ 052°85% 052'85% 052°85$ 07288 « 0BG g
3 : : ; : 2 o ] (wnwiuIn)
05Z'85% 05Z'85$ 05Z'85$ 05Z°'85$ 05Z'85% 05Z'85% 052'959 05Z°85$ «0VC85 07285 v
oL 6 2 Z 9 ] ¥ € 4 L sjulod

|enaT a|eag Aeg

LJepusieD yuop oL siseg -g
a|npayag Alejeg Jayseal |OH 0Z0Z 'L AIne

SISHEYD YLON

dnoi) sjeag Aeq




pueog j00yas au) Aq panosdde j186png Jospue spasu [euolelade s ooyos ay) o) Joalgns ase pue pasjuelent jou ale Anebuo| o) sjuswiaouBApE AIRIES [BNULY .
79 Jojpue 'Lg 'Zv 1V 0 pajousal ale (Aouafiawa Lo ulsjul) uoleslypso sanews)e Buipioy JelS ..

JEPUS|ED 3I0M 8} PUOASG SAEP [EUOIIPPE %10M 0} Paau ABL SISQUISLU WES] PUB 'SAED I0M JO J3qUINU WNLWILIL B S| SABP ¥I0M GE|L 3U | "SABP }IOM G| UC paseq S| AJB|ES [enuuy,

yuow Jad pue juapns Jad puadijs 001§ B 18 Sjuapn)s [euoippe 2 Hoddns Ues Japeat JaleyD J1ay) Jo [eaoidde Yjim puB SJUSPNIS 82 JO WNWIUIW B Poy JSNW S [SH 2w

nJ

Q00'GE (pauinbay siduosuel) ‘pawaiuoo) saubag slelowog
Q05T (pasinbal UoIRIUSLINOCP) UOIEIIILISD) pleog [eUolen
spuadng
: ’ (sjuiod ga+)
Pir'L6$ 91.'T6% —
GZH 0ZH
s[anaT 3|eds Aed [BUCIIPPY
5 5 ; ; ; : : y i . : ; ; 3 tsiuiod g6+)
66£'888 B65E'88% 196788 ¥69'188 55848 1E6G.S 929TLS 8L /9% 986 +9S £80¢9% 96965 0vZ'85% 0vZ 85% 0 863 H
. . ’ ; ; . ; . i i . \ ; : : (sjuiod pg+)
255848 TG5'8LS €55 8.8 1E5'GiS ST €L £E8'683 8r1'L9% 995 798 £80'29% 969 668 0rT'35$ 0rc'8ss 0FT'85% 0rT'85% 0PT' 855 5
: : ; : . : ; ; ; : : (syuod s+
261718 L6L'LIS .1L1S S087iS 96143 291698 T05'99% G5 '€9% 98r ' 19% 969'66S 0rTass 0re'ess 0pT'ess 0rPT'ess 0PT85S 3
{sjuiod gG+)
9ET'HS 9ET S 9T LIS 9ET LIS 167'898 £99°G9% 0EE'e9s 98F'19% 959'65% 0rZ 8ss orez'8ss ore'ess ore'ess 0rT'8s$ 0rZ'85% 3
(squied zi+)
GEG'98S GEG'99% GEG'99S SEG'98S 868G 78S 411298 881°19% 969'65S oz 8s% 0rZ 858 Ore'8ss ovz'ess 0rz'ess 0rZ'85$ 0rZ'86% a
: . - > . : . ; ; ; i ; . : ) tsiuiod §z+)
LLL'Tes 112298 21L1T9s 88L'les gaL'les 281195 969'65% 0¥z 958 0FZ '95% 0rZ'95S obZ'25$ 0z 'es$ 0Fz'85$ 0rz'es$ 0bT'25% -
. . ] ! . . : i ; i (sjuiod ¥+)
88L19S 881193 881198 969653 969658 969658 0rZ'8ss OFz 85% 0rc'85% 0rZ 868 Orc35% 0rc'ess 0T 863 «0FZBS +0FCT8S a
. . . " " § . . ’ (Lunwyur)
0rZ'85S 0rZ'85$ 0FT 9SS 0rZ'85% 0rZ'95s 0rZ'958 0rT'ess OFcess 0kT'95% 0rZ'86s 0bTR5% 0rZ'ess 0rZ'96% +0FZa5 «0FZ85 v
Sl 7l €l cl 6 8 ¥ 8 S ¥ € 4 3 Sjuiod
|8AaT 8|eos Aed dnoi sjeos Aed
«[BPUSED YIUOA 0L - siseq -
a|npayos Alejes Jayoes] 1§H 020z 'L ANt
s1apeyD Yuop iHOYH3#




****During the rate-in-process for new hires Executive Directors may approve additional

units earned beyond post-baccalaureate credits equivalent to 4-semester units for each

year starting with year 15. A candidate can earn a maximum of 60 credits for experience
based on Executive Director approval.



lepuajed oM sy} puoAsq sAep [Bu

pJieog |ooyas ay) Ag panoidde jafipng Jojpue spaau [euoljelado s,j0oyos au) 0] 10algns ale pue paajueient jou ale AUaafiuo| Jo) SJUSIROUBADE AJBIES [BNUUY ..

29 10/pUE ‘LG ‘¥ ‘LY O} Pajolisal 2. (Aouablawsa Io uIajul) UOIEDIIHAD ARBUIR)E BUIPIOY JEIS 4\

HIPPE YoM 0] paau ABW SIQWAW WEa} PUE ‘SABP YIOM JO JagWNU WNWIUIW & S| SKEP 3I0M G6| 8L 'SAEp JI0M GG UO Paseq S| AJejes [enuuy,

000'6% (pasinbau syduosuel) ‘palisjuod) salbag ajelojpo]
006'C$ (paJinbaJ uoljejusawWNIOpP) UCIEILIPY pleog |eucheN
000°'L$ (puadi)s 2A00E+) YoEOD JslElads Buipeay o [euononisy| g3ds
ooo,_\w SJOBIUOD J2ydea] uoleanp3 _w_omn_m 13-4
spuadig
; ; , . ) . . . (sjuiod g6+)
0SS'E0LS 0.£°101L$ S9'26% 026°56$ G6l'ces 01063 Sh2'28% 020683 000 H
0EH SZH 0ZH GIH PLH €IH ZWH LEH
slanaT s|eds Aed [euonippy
) ; ; ) . ; . . . . (sjuiod g6+)
S6T'Z8% 802'84% ¥8Z'r.S$ 8.5°04$ GE0'/9% 959'€93 S6%'09$ 056'653 056'65$ 056'65$ s
(sjuiod $8+)
025'6.$ Z65'6.% ¥08°'LL$ ¥£2°89% 828'79$ 585'193 056'65$ 056'653 056'65% 056'653$ 5
(syuod pL+)
S¥8'9.$ £00'€4$ 6.£'69% 168'G9$ 995'279% 056'653 056'65$ 056'653 056'65% 056'653$ 3
(sjuiod 95+)
0ZL'¥.$ LAV AES 686'29% L¥5'£9% 056'65% 056'653 056'65% 056'653 056'65% 056'653% 3
(syurod g +)
GBE'LLS £58°29% 6L¥'79% 056°66% 056'65% 056'65% 056'65% 056'65% 056'65% 056'659 a
(sjuiod gz+)
029'89% 142’598 056'65% 056'65% 056'65% 056'653 056'65% 056'653 056'65% 056'653 5
) j ) . . : . . (sjuiod p1+)
Gy6'Go% 056'65% 056'65% 056°65% 056'65% 056'65% 056'65% 056°65% 09885 w0PT8S g
(wnwiupy)
056'65% 056'65% 056'65% 056°65% 056'65% 056'65% 056'65% 056°65% w0VC8s w0PC88 o
ol [ 8 z 9 S 14 € z 3 sjulod

oA 9180S Aed

+{EPUS[ED UIUO 0L~ Sised -a

8|npayog Alejeg Jaysea] uoleanp3 [epads 0zoz ‘| AIne
SISUEYD YUON

dnous) a|eag Aed




Pay Scale Group

North Charters

July 1, 2020 Special Education Salary Schedule
E- Basis -11 Month Calendar*

Pay Scale Level

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 13+
P
rogram 581,088 $84,088 $88,293 $92,709 $97,342 $102,209
Row 1 Specialist
School
$81,088 $84,088 $88,293 $92,709 $97,342 $102,209
Row 2 | Psychologist
Speech
P . $74,146 $78,049 $82,157 $86,481 $91,033 $95,585
Row 3 Pathologist
Occupational
i $70,688 $74,387 $78,302 $82,423 $86,761 $91,327
Row 4 Therapist
School
$70,512 $74,038 $77,340 $81,227 $85,288 $89,552
Row 5 Nurse
Stipends
Doctorate Degree (conferred, transcripts required) $5,000
*Annual salary is based on 207 work days. The 207 work days is a minimum number of work days, and team members may need to work additional days beyond the work calendar
**Travel is a requirment of the assessment positions, travel will be reimbursed based on the reimbursement policy
*** Annual salary advancements for longevity are not guaranteed and are subject to the school's operational needs and/or budget approved by the School Board
North Charters
July 1. 2020 RC/Counselor Salary Schedule
F- Basls -10 Month Calendar
Pay Scale Group Pay Scale Level
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Regional
3 $78.500 $80.500 $82,500 $84 500 $86.500 $88.500 $90.500 $92.500 $94.500 $96.500
Coordinator
Community
Connections $78,500 $80,500 $82,500 $84 500 $86,500 $88,500 $90,500 $92,500 $94,500 $96,500
Coordinator
$78,500 $80,500 $62,500 $84,500 $86,500 $88,500 $90,500 $92,500 $94,500 $96,500
EL Coordinator
Testing $78,500 $80,500 $82,500 $84,500 $86,500 $88,500 $90,500 $92,500 $94,500 $96,500
Coordinator
Coordinator positions must hold a minimum of 14 students and with approval of their Charter Leader can support 7 additional students at a $100 stipend per student and per month
*Annual salary for coordinators is based on 205 work days. The 205 work days is a minimum number of work days, and team members may need to work additional days beyond the work calendar
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
School $62,500 $65,000 $67,000 $69,000 $71,000 $73,000 $75,000 $77,000 $79,000 $81,000
Counselor

*Annual salary for School Counselor is based on 195 work days. The 195 work days is a minimum number of work days, team members may need to work additional days beyond the work calendar

Stipends

National Board Certification (documentation required)
Doctorate Degree (conferred, transcripts required)

$2,500
$5,000

** Annual salary advancements for longevity are not guaranteed and are subject to the school's operational needs and/or budget approved by the School Board




Morth Charters
duly 1, 2020 Director Salary Schedule
E-Basis -11 Morth Calendar®

Pay Scale Graup Pay Scale Level
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 a 10
Special Education
Director poussnods) 145,000 147,000 149,000 151,000 153,000 155000 157,000 159,000 161,000 183,000
Special Education
Al Dot 105,000 107,000 109,000 111,000 113,000 115,000 117,000 119,000 121,000 123,000
1 2 3 4 5 [ 7 8 a 10
Assistant Directorf
Depuly Director 110,000 112,000 114,000 116,000 118,000 120,000 122,000 124,000 126,000 128,000
Director of Student
SUPROI a0 seteuite) 140,000 142,500 144,500 146,500 148,000 150,000 152,000 154,000 156,000 158,000
Directar of
el sy 140,000 142,500 144,500 148,500 148,000 150,000 152,000 154,000 156,000 158,000
Stipends
National Board Certification (documentation required) $2,500

Doctorate Degree (conferred, transcripts required) $5,000

Special Education Director is not recuired to carry a student caseload and is based on 225 waork days.
Special Education Assistant Director is not required to camy a student caseload and is based on 220 work days

Assistant Directors/Deptty Director must hold a minimurm of 7 students and with approval of their Charter Leader can support 7 additional students at a $100 stipend per student and per month

*Annual salary for assistant directorstdeputy directors is based on 220 work days. The 220 work days is a minimum number of work days, and team members may need tow ork additional days beyond the work calendar
** Annual salary advancements for longevity are not guaranteed and are subject to the school's operational needs and/or budget approved by the School Board

Additional Supplement Bonus (“Supplement”):

The Executive Director may recommend a Supplement for teachers as set forth in this section.

A Executive Director, in his or her sole discretion, shall determine what duties shall be
supplemented based upon the operational needs of the school.
A supplement is not automatic, and can be provided at the discretion and approval of the
Executive Director, based on additional work beyond the regular work responsibilities.
A supplement will be paid to the employee in accordance with the schedule provided by the
School at the time of supplement award.
The supplemental award shall not exceed $35,000 or 50% of annual salary.
All supplements listed are paid for the performance of duties beyond the regular work day and
normal job responsibilities and are not approved solely on the basis of position classification
or previous supplement payment. Additional time spent fulfilling job duties does not constitute
a basis for compensation beyond the teachers' regular salary.
Teacher supplements will be set forth in a Supplement Performance Order. The Supplement
Performance Order Request shall be completed and signed by the teacher and the Executive
Director prior to performing the supplemental duties.
Supplements will be paid in installments or one lump sum if less than $1,001. However, this
option will not be available where it would cause the employee to receive compensation prior
to providing the service.
Additional Supplements may include things such as Winter Break Coverage, Extra Student
Pay and Enrollment Milestones.
To qualify for an extended duty supplement, the following criteria must be met as requested
and assigned by the Executive Director:

e 1. The Executive Director must first agree with the teacher on the terms

e 2. The supplemental work must be separate from the normal job responsibilities.

e 3. The work must be completed or in the progress of being completed.




Part-time Teachers:
For all part-time teachers.

e  Part-time/Full time Status: Compensation for part-time teachers will be $30.00 per hour.
Estimated hours for part-time teachers each week includes a maximum of 10 hours per week
for approved non-instructional activities (recruiting, planning, grading, parent conferences,
etc.) and one (1) additional hour per week per enrolled student. This allotted time should be
sufficient to complete each part-time teacher’s duties. All time worked will be compensated
at the part-time teacher’s hourly rate. Part-time teachers will work no more than up to 17
hours of work per pay period in July and for up to 8.5 hours of training in August.

e Part-time teachers must accurately record and timely submit records of all time worked and
observe all lunch and rest breaks as outlined in the School’s employee handbook. Part-time
employees may not work overtime (i.e., over 8 hours in a workday or 40 hours per workweek)
without written authorization from their direct supervisor.

When a case load of 20 students is reached, employees may be rated in and placed on a salary
table and given health care benefits contingent upon the teacher’s expected maintenance of a
case load at the norm of 28 students for full-time teachers. Carrying a case load of less than 28
students over a course of three (3) consecutive months may result in a return to part time
status.



CLASSIFIED COMPENSATION
Experience and Placement

Each classified employee will be placed on the salary schedule based on their creditable years
of experience, which will be categorized as equivalent or applicable experience.

Equivalent experience is the directly related experience of an employee to the position held or
hired. Applicable experience is the other administrative, teaching, or professional experience
which is not directly related to the position held or hired.

o Example: Office Manager experience at a private school is accepted as equivalent
experience for a person in the Office Manager position, but teaching experience will
be applicable experience.

e Example: SPED instructional aide at a school district, or a company may be
equivalent experience for the SPED instructional aide position, but SPED center aide
will be applicable experience.

The evaluation of prior experience and placement on the Salary Scale will be recommended by
the Human Resources Department and the Executive Director or designee makes the final
decision, consistent with the School’s approved budget.

The following criteria will be considered in the evaluation of prior experience:

e The number of days worked in a year must be at least 180 days as a full-time
employee

e The percentage of days worked

e Position held

e Type of the organization and accreditation

Each equivalent year of creditable experience will be equal to 1 YEAR, and each year of
creditable applicable experience will be equal to a 0.5 YEAR. If the total years of experience
is a fraction of a whole, it will be rounded up.

e Example: 3.5 YEARS will be rounded to 4.0 YEARS of experience.

Rehired employee’s years of experience in the same or higher salary placements will be
treated as equivalent experience.

The starting salary of a new employee may exceed the salary of a current employee in the
same position based on the creditable years of experience as defined herein.

Creditable experience may be earned from other schools, districts or any other employer.

The Executive Director shall recommend the creation of new positions as needed and will
evaluate and recommend placement of the new positions in the appropriate role, together with
any necessary budget adjustments required, to be approved by the School Board



North Charters
July 1, 2020 Classified Salary Schedule
12 Month Calendar

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 3 9 10

e Hourly $15.024 $15.385 $15.745 $16.226 $16.707 $17.308 $17.788 $18.269 $19.471 $20.072
Annual $31,250 $32,000 $32,750 $33,750 $34,750 $36,000 $37,000 $38,000 $40,500 $41,750

T Hourly $18.029 $18.510 $19.111 $19.501 $20.072 $20673 $21.274 $21.875 $22.476 $23.077
lics Annual $37,500 $38,500 $39,750 $40,750 $41,750 $43,000 $44,250 $45,500 $46,750 $48,000
e Hourly $19.231 $19.832 $20.433 $21.034 $21.635 $22.296 $22.957 $23.678 $24.399 $25.120
Annual $40,000 $41,250 $42,500 $43,750 $45,000 $46,375 347,750 $49,250 $50,750 $52,250

SR Hourly $24.038 $24.760 $25.481 $26.322 $27.043 $27.885 $28.726 $29.567 $30.409 $31.250
Annual $50,000 $51,500 $53,000 $54,750 $56,250 $58,000 $59,750 $61,500 $63,250 $65,000

Coordinator Annual $65,500 $67,500 $69,500 $71,500 $73,500 $75,600 $77,500 $79,500 $81,500 $83,500
Manager Annual $81,000 $83,000 $85,000 $87,000 $89,000 $91,000 $93,000 $95,000 $97,000 $99,000

Role/Salary Placements
e All positions are classified according to the corresponding role and/or salary placements based
on the required set of skills, education, effort, and responsibility of the job assignment as
indicated in the specific job description. All positions may be reclassified as necessary by the
Executive Director or designee. Some hard-to staff positions may be compensated out of the
salary schedule as approved by the Executive Director.

Advancements on Pay Scale
e An advancement on the Pay Scale is the placement of an employee from a position in a lower
salary placement to a position in a higher salary placement and will be determined on the same
basis and factors articulated herein.

Lateral Transfer

e A lateral transfer is the movement of an employee from one position to another within the
same salary placement. The employee may continue to progress in the same salary placement
as experience in the position is accumulated. Prior experience will not be re-evaluated for
purposes of placement or advancement in the new salary placement.

Partial Assignments
e In cases where a classified employee has been given multiple assignments (e.g. a SPED
coordinator with partial ESL duties), the employee will be placed on the salary schedule (or
salary placement) with the higher salary.

Reassignments
e Employees approved to voluntarily transfer to a position in a lower placement on the salary
scale, if applicable, will be placed in the new salary placement, and the salary will be
calculated as it is in the new placement or schedule
e When an employee is reassigned for any reason to a position in a lower salary placement, the
employee’s salary will be lowered during the next payroll cycle, or when determined by the
Executive Director to avoid disruption so long as it is not earlier than the next payroll period.

Rehires




A former employee who returns to a position similar to the role held prior to separation will be
placed on the salary scale as follows:
o The converted grade and step of individuals who separated employment will be
identified for appropriate entry placement on the salary scale.
e All applicable work experience earned outside of Feather River Charter Schools,
subsequent to separation, may be identified and used for credit as equivalent
experience in accordance with the creditable years of service as described herein.

Experience — Nonexempt Employees

Each nonexempt employee will be placed on the salary schedule based on their years of
relevant experience. Although non-exempt employees may be paid a monthly salary (paid on
a semi-monthly basis), all non-exempt salaried employees will be paid for all hours worked
and are eligible for overtime in accordance with applicable law. Employees should receive
approval from their supervisor before working overtime.
The evaluation of prior experience will be made by the Executive Director or his/her designee.
The following criteria, among others, may be considered in evaluation of prior experience:

e The number of days worked in a year must be at least 180 days as a full time

employee

e The percentage of days worked

e Position held

e Type of the organization and accreditation
Experience including secretarial, clerical, teaching, professional, and substitute experience
may be credited.
Each year of experience may be 1 YEAR in the schedule.
The starting salary of a new employee may exceed the salary of a current employee in the
same position based on their years of experience.
Experience may be earned in other districts or other companies.
The Executive Director or his or her designee may adjust a rehired non-exempt employee’s
placement on the pay scale as appropriate based on the employee’s accumulated relevant
experience following the employee’s separation from the School, which may result in a higher
or lower placement on the scale than the employee would have otherwise been placed had the
employee been continuously employed. Adjustments to an employee’s salary may be made in
any subsequent school year.

Additional Supplement Bonus (“Supplement”):

The Executive Director may recommend a Supplement for classified staff members as set forth in this

section.
[

A Executive Director, in his or her sole discretion, shall determine what duties shall be
supplemented based upon the operational needs of the school.

A supplement is not automatic, and can be provided at the discretion and approval of the
Executive Director, based on additional work beyond the regular work responsibilities.

A supplement will be paid to the employee in accordance with the schedule provided by the
School at the time of supplement award.

The supplemental award shall not exceed $35,000 or 50% of annual salary.

All supplements awarded are paid for the performance of duties beyond the regular work day
and normal job responsibilities and are not approved solely on the basis of position



classification or previous supplement payment. Additional time spent fulfilling job duties does
not constitute a basis for compensation beyond the classified staff members' regular salary.

e (lassified staff member’s supplements will be set forth in a Supplement Performance Order.
The Supplement Performance Order Request shall be completed and signed by the classified
staff member and the Executive Director prior to performing the supplemental duties.

e Supplements will be paid in installments or one lump sum if less than $1,001. However, this
option will not be available where it would cause the employee to receive compensation prior
to providing the service.

e Additional Supplements may include things such as Winter Break Coverage and Enrollment
Milestones.

e To qualify for an extended duty supplement, the following criteria must be met as requested
and assigned by the Executive Director:

e 1. The Executive Director must first agree with the classified staff member on the
terms

e 3. The supplemental work must be separate from the normal job responsibilities.

e 4. The work must be completed or in the progress of being completed.

PAYROLL ADVANCE POLICY
POLICY BRIEF AND PURPOSE

Our payroll advance policy describes our terms for advancing pay to our employees as an emergency
short-term loan.

SCOPE
This policy applies to all employees, with the exception of the Executive Director and officers of Feather

River Charter School. In addition, temporary employees with contracts that are less than one year will
not be eligible for Payroll Advances.

POLICY ELEMENTS

“Payroll advance” refers to employees receiving a portion of their pay before their next normal payday.
This does not include any money paid to the employee for work-related expenses.

The School is not obliged to pay employees in advance and may choose to do so if employees have
qualifying reasons.

CONDITIONS FOR REQUESTING A PAYROLL ADVANCE

Employees can ask for a pay advance if they:



e Have been employed with the school for three consecutive months.
e Have not taken any other company-sponsored loan.
e Do not have any current negative evaluations or disciplinary actions.

These conditions apply to all eligible employees without discrimination against protected characteristics.

Employees should have a legitimate reason to ask for advance pay, usually an unexpected or unavoidable
occurrence. Examples of such reasons, although not conclusive, are for:

Family or personal emergencies (e.g. being victims of a robbery or fire, having to pay funeral fees)
Hospital bills not covered by medical insurance

Car repairs not covered by insurance

To save a family home

Examples of non-qualifying reasons, include but are not limited to:

Taking a planned vacation
Entertainment expenses
Gambling

Fines

PAYROLL ADVANCE TERMS

Subject to approval, the maximum advance pay may be up to $5,000. If employees find themselves in
need of more frequent or larger pay advances than they are allowed, they should discuss the situation with
their Executive Director. The Executive Director may decide to make exceptions on a case-by-case basis.

We will deduct the amount of the advance pay from an employee’s future paychecks. This may mean:

e Depending on the amount, deducting the full amount from their next paycheck.
e Repaying the amount in small installments out of a number of future paychecks.

The repayment terms must be in writing and signed by employees and will comply with applicable laws.
We will not charge any administrative fees or interest.

If an employee resigns or is terminated before they repay their payroll advance, HR , subject to approval
by the Executive Director, is responsible for reaching a new agreement with the employee. Any relevant
legal requirements (whether federal, state or local) must be followed.

PAYROLL ADVANCE AGREEMENTS

Employees who want to request a payroll advance should request a Payroll Advance form from HR. They
must:

e Indicate their reasons for filing the form.
¢ State the amount of money they want to receive in advance.



e Sign to accept this policy’s terms.

This procedure must be followed:

Employees should submit the form to their Executive Director or their Supervisor, if the Executive
Director is unavailable.

The Executive Director should first review the form. If they approve, they must sign the form and submit
it to HR.

HR and the CFO or designee must also review the form and decide whether to grant the employee’s
request in consultation with the Executive Director. If they approve, HR must create an agreement form
for the pay advance and repayment terms taking any applicable taxes into account. This agreement must
be signed by HR, the CFO or designee and the employee and include relevant dates.

HR must forward the signed agreement to the accounting department. The accounting department will
generally give employees their advance pay through check or bank transfer within a week, if possible,
after receiving the form.

If the request is denied, the Executive Director must inform the employee.

The advance must be paid back within one year of the initial payment to the employee, subject to
applicable law. If there is a problem with meeting the requirement then the employee must sign an
agreement that moves them toward quickly meeting that requirement.

NOTICE TO BOARD

The Board must be informed by the Executive Director if an employee resigns prior to repaying their
payroll advance.



Feathor Diven

Suicide Prevention Policy

Feather River Charter School is committed protecting the health and well-being of all Feather
River Charter School students, including vulnerable youth populations, by having procedures in
place to prevent, assess the risk of, intervene in, and respond to suicide and self-harming behavior.
Vulnerable youth populations include LGBTQ (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, questioning)
youth, youth living with mental and/or substance use disorders, youth who engage in self-harm or
have attempted suicide, youth in out-of-home settings, youth experiencing homelessness,
American Indian/Alaska Native youth or youth that identify with other racial minority groups,
youth bereaved by suicide and youth living with medical conditions and disabilities.

California Education Code (EC) Section 215, as added by Assembly Bill 2246, (Chapter 642,
Statutes of 2016) mandates that the Governing Board of any local educational agency (LEA) that
serves pupils in grades seven to twelve, inclusive, adopt a policy on pupil suicide prevention,
intervention, and postvention. The policy shall specifically address the needs of high-risk groups,
including suicide awareness and prevention training for teachers, and ensure that a school
employee acts within the authorization and scope of the employee’s credential or license.

The purpose of Feather River Charter School Governing Board approving this Suicide Prevention
Policy is to accomplish the following:

1. Explain the Purpose for The Suicide Prevention Policy

2. Identify Parental Involvement in Suicide Prevention

3. Outline Key Terms and Definitions of Suicide Prevention

4. Identify Risk Factors and Protective Factors

5. Outline the Warning Signs of Suicide

6. Outline How to Respond to the Warning Signs of Suicide

7. Explain Suicide Discussion/Communication for Parents and Children._

8. Outline the Process for Assessment and Referral

9. Outline the Process for Implementing the Policy

10. Provide Resources for Parents, Students, and Staff Members on Suicide Prevention

1. Purpose: Feather River Charter School recognizes that:
a) physical, behavioral, and emotional health is an integral component of a student’s

educational outcome,

b) further recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among young people,



¢) the has an ethical responsibility to take a proactive approach in preventing deaths by suicide,
and

d) acknowledges the school’s role in providing an environment which is sensitive to individual
and societal factors that place youth at greater risk for suicide and one which helps to foster
positive youth development.

In recognition of the need to protect the health, safety and welfare of its students, to promote
healthy development, to safeguard against the threat or attempt of suicide among school aged
youth, and to address barriers to learning, Feather River Charter School hereby adopts a policy,
which corresponds with and supports other federal, state and local efforts to provide youth with
prevention education, early identification and intervention, and access to all local resources to
promote health and prevent personal harm or injury.

With the intention of creating a safe and nurturing educational entity that minimizes suicidal
ideation in students, we also recognize our duty to protect the health, safety, and welfare of our
students, and aim to safeguard students and staff against suicide attempts, deaths and other
trauma associated with suicide. These safeguards include ensuring adequate supports for
students, staff, and families affected by suicide attempts and loss. Because the emotional
wellness of students greatly impacts learning, motivation, and educational success, the current
policy shall be paired with other policies that support the emotional and behavioral wellness
of students. Our policy is based on research and best practices in suicide prevention, and has
been adopted with the understanding that suicide prevention activities decrease suicide risk,
increase help-seeking behavior, identify those at risk of suicide, and decrease suicidal
behaviors. Empirical evidence refutes a common belief that talking about suicide can increase
risk or “place the idea in someone’s mind.”

In an attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the school
has developed strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention, and the
identification of the mental health challenges frequently associated with suicidal thinking and
behavior. These strategies shall include professional development for parents/guardians,
caregivers, students, and school personnel who regularly interact with students or serve in a
position to recognize the risk factors and warning signs of suicide.

Parental/Guardian Involvement: Parents and guardians play a key role in youth emotional
and behavioral health, including suicide prevention. This policy is meant to be used as a tool
for parents/guardians to be informed and actively involved in decisions regarding a child’s
welfare. Parents/guardians who learn the warning signs and risk factors for suicide are better
equipped to connect with professional help when necessary. The school encourages and
advises parents/guardians to take every statement regarding suicide or personal harm seriously
and avoid assuming that a child is simply seeking attention.

Parents and guardians can also contribute to factors and conditions that reduce vulnerability to
suicidal and self-harming behavior, for vulnerable youth populations. Feeling accepted by
parents or guardians is a critical protective factor for vulnerable youth populations. As



educators, Feather River Charter School faculty and staff can help protect vulnerable youth
populations by ensuring that parents and guardians have adequate resources regarding family
acceptance and the essential role it plays in students’ behavioral and emotional health.

3. Student Participation and Education: Feather River Charter School along with its partners
has carefully reviewed available student curricula to ensure it promotes the mental health
model of suicide prevention and does not encourage the use of the stress model to explain
suicide.

Under the supervision of school-employed mental health professionals, and following
consultation with county and community mental health agencies, students shall:

e Receive developmentally appropriate, student-centered education about the warning
signs of mental health challenges and emotional distress;

e Receive developmentally appropriate guidance regarding the School’s suicide
prevention, intervention, and referral procedures.

e The content of the education shall include:
o Coping strategies for dealing with stress and trauma;

o How to recognize behaviors (warning signs) and life issues (risk factors)
associated with suicide and mental health issues in oneself and others;

o Emphasis on reducing the stigma associated with mental illness and the fact that
early prevention and intervention can drastically reduce the risk of suicide.

Student-focused suicide prevention education can be incorporated into classroom curricula
(e.g., health classes, freshman orientation classes, science, and physical education).

Feather River Charter School will support the creation and implementation of programs and/or
activities on campus that raise awareness about mental wellness and suicide prevent (e.g.,
Mental Health Awareness Weeks, Peer Counseling Programs, Freshman Success Programs).

3:4. Key Terms and Definitions:

e At Risk A student who is defined as high risk for suicide is one who has made a suicide
attempt, has the intent to die by suicide, or has displayed a significant change in behavior
suggesting the onset or deterioration of a mental health condition. The student may have
thought about suicide including potential means of death and may have a plan. In addition,
the student may exhibit feelings of isolation, hopelessness, helplessness, and the inability
to tolerate any more pain. This situation would necessitate a referral, as documented in the
following procedures.

e Crisis Team A multidisciplinary team of primarily administrative, mental health, safety
professionals, and support staff whose primary focus is to address crisis preparedness,
intervention/response, and recovery. These professionals have been specifically trained in



crisis preparedness through recovery and take the leadership role in developing crisis plans,
ensuring school staff can effectively execute various crisis protocols, and may provide
mental health services for effective crisis interventions and recovery supports.

Mental Health A state of mental and emotional being that can impact choices and actions
that affect wellness. Mental health problems include mental and substance use disorders.

Postvention Suicide postvention is a crisis intervention strategy designed to reduce the risk
of suicide and suicide contagion, provide the support needed to help survivors cope with a
suicide death, address the social stigma associated with suicide, and disseminate factual
information after the suicide death of a member of the school community.

Risk Assessment An evaluation of a studentistsl who may be at risk for suicide, conducted
by the appropriate school staff (e.g., school psychologist or school counselor). This
assessment is designed to elicit information regarding the student’s intent to die by suicide,
previous history of suicide attempts, presence of a suicide plan and its level of lethality and
availability, presence of support systems, and level of hopelessness and helplessness,
mental status, and other relevant risk factors.

Risk Factors for Suicide Characteristics or conditions that increase the chance that a
person may try to take his or her life. Suicide risk tends to be highest when someone has
several risk factors at the same time. Risk factors may encompass biological,
psychological, and or social factors in the individual, family, and environment.

Self-Harm Behavior that is self-directed and deliberately results in injury or the potential
for injury to oneself. Can be categorized as either non-suicidal or suicidal. Although self-
harm often lacks suicidal intent, youth who engage in self-harm are more likely to attempt
suicide.

Suicide Death caused by self-directed injurious behavior with any intent to die as a result
of the behavior. Note: The coroner’s or medical examiner’s office must first confirm that
the death was a suicide before any school official may state this as the cause of death.

Suicide Attempt A selt-injurious behavior for which there is evidence that the person had
at least some intent to kill himself or herself. A suicide attempt may result in death, injuries,
or no injuries. A mixture of ambivalent feelings such as wish to die and desire to live is a
common experience with most suicide attempts. Therefore, ambivalence is not a sign of a
less serious or less dangerous suicide attempt.

Suicidal Behavior Suicide attempts, intentional injury to self-associated with at least some
level of intent, developing a plan or strategy for suicide, gathering the means for a suicide
plan, or any other overt action or thought indicating intent to end one’s life.

Suicide Contagion The process by which suicidal behavior or a suicide influences an
increase in the suicidal behaviors of others. Guilt, identification, and modeling are each
thought to play a role in contagion. Although rare, suicide contagion can result in a cluster
of suicides.



e Suicidal Ideation Thinking about, considering, or planning for self-injurious behavior
which may result in death. A desire to be dead without a plan or intent to end one’s life is
still considered suicidal ideation and should be taken seriously.

4.5. Risk Factors and Protective Factors:

Risk Factors are characteristics or conditions that increase the chance that a person may try to
take her or his life or participate in self-harming behaviors. These risks tend to be highest when
someone has several risk factors at the same time.

The most frequently cited risk factors for suicide are:

1. Major depression (feeling down in a way that impacts your daily life) or bipolar
disorder (severe mood swings)

2. Problems with alcohol or drugs

3. Unusual thoughts and behavior or confusion about reality

4. Personality traits that create a pattern of intense, unstable relationships or trouble with
the law

5. Impulsivity and aggression, especially along with a mental disorder

6. Previous suicide attempt or family history of a suicide attempt or mental disorder

7. Serious medical condition and /or pain

It is important to bear in mind that the large majority of people with mental disorders or
other suicide risk factors do not engage in suicidal behavior.

Protective Factors are characteristics or conditions that may help to decrease a person’s risk
of suicide or self-harming behaviors. While these factors do not eliminate the possibility of
suicide, especially in someone with risk factors, they may help to reduce that risk. Protective
factors for suicide have not been studied as thoroughly as risk factors, so less is known about
them.

The most frequently cited protective factors of suicide include:

1. Receiving effective mental health care
Positive connections to family, peers, community, and social institutions such as
marriage and religion that foster resilience

3. The skills and ability to solve problems

It is important for school districts to be aware of student populations that are at elevated
risk of suicidal or self-harming behavior based on various factors:

1. Youth living with mental and/or substance use disorders. While the large majority of
people with mental disorders do not engage in suicidal behavior, people with mental
disorders account for more than 90 percent of deaths by suicide. Mental disorders, in
particular depression or bipolar (manic-depressive) disorder, alcohol or substance
abuse, schizophrenia and other psychotic disorders, borderline personality disorder,
conduct disorders, and anxiety disorders are important risk factors for suicidal behavior
among your people. The majority of people suffering from these mental disorders are



not engaged in treatment, therefore school staff may play a pivotal_role in recognizing
and referring the student to treatment that may reduce risk.

2. Youth who engage in self-harm or have attempted suicide. Suicide risk among those
who engage in self-harm is significantly higher than the general population. Whether
or not they report suicidal intent, people who engage in self-harm are at elevated risk
for dying by suicide within 10 years. Additionally, a previous suicide attempt is a
known predictor of suicide death. Many adolescents who have attempted suicide do not
receive necessary follow up care.

3. Youth in out-of-home settings. Youth involved in the juvenile justice or child welfare
systems have a high prevalence of many risk factors of suicide. Young people involved
in the juvenile justice system die by suicide at a rate about four times greater than the
rate among youth in the general population. Though comprehensive suicide data on
youth in foster care does not exist, one research found that youth in foster care were
more than twice as likely to have considered suicide and almost four times more likely
to have attempted suicide than their peers not in foster care.

4. Youth experiencing homelessness. For youth experiencing homelessness, rates of
suicide attempts are higher than those of the adolescent population in general. These
young people also have higher rates of mood disorders, conduct disorders, and post-
traumatic stress disorder.

5. American Indian/Alaska Native youth. In 2009, the rate of suicide among American
Indian / Alaska Native youth ages 15-19 was more than twice that of the general youth
population. Risk factors that can affect this group include substance use,
discrimination, lack of access to mental health care, and historical trauma.

6. LGBTQ (lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, or questioning) youth. The CDC finds
that LGBTQ youth are four times more likely, and questioning youth are three times
more likely, to attempt suicide as their straight peers. The American Association of
Suicidology reports that nearly half of young transgender people have seriously
considered taking their lives and one quarter report having made suicide attempt.
Suicidal behavior among LGBTQ youth can be related to experiences of
discrimination, family rejections, harassment, bullying, violence and victimization. For
those youth with baseline risk for suicide (especially those with a mental disorder),
these experiences can place them at increased risk. It is these societal factors, in concert
with other individual factors such as mental health history, and not the fact of being
LGBTQ that will elevate the risk of suicidal behavior for LGBTQ youth.

7. Youth bereaved by suicide. Studies show that those who have experience suicide loss,
through the death of a friend or loved one, are at increased risk for suicide themselves.

8. Youth living with medical conditions and disabilities. A number of physical conditions
are associated with an elevated risk for suicidal behavior. Some of the conditions
include chronic pain, loss of mobility, disfigurement, cognitive styles that make
problem-solving a challenge, and other chronic limitations. Adolescents with asthma
are more likely to report suicidal ideation and behavior than those without asthma.
Additionally, studies show that suicide rates are significantly higher among people with
certain types of disabilities, such as those with multiple sclerosis or spinal cord injuries.

5:6. Warning Signs of Suicide: It is vital to suicide prevention that individuals are equipped to
recognize the warning signs of someone who is seriously contemplating suicide. Behaviors



that may mean a person is at immediate risk for suicide and thus prompt you to take action
right away include:

Talking about wanting to die or to kill one’s self
Looking for a way to kill one’s self, such as a new or sudden interest in buying a gun
Talking about feeling hopeless or like there’s no point in living or carrying on

Unusual or unexpected visits or calls to family and friends to say “goodbye” as if they
will not be seen again

Sudden efforts to get one’s affairs in order, e.g., making a will out of the blue or giving
away prized possessions

A sudden sense of calm and happiness; though this might sound contradictory, if an
extremely depressed person suddenly seems calm or happy, this can mean the person
has made a decision to commit suicide. Do not assume a person expressing a desire to
die is joking. Ask if they are serious. And make sure to follow up. Someone might say
they are only joking when in fact the “joke” is motivated by a sincere desire to die.
Suicide is not a joking matter; do not treat it as such. Less immediate, but still
concerning, warning signs of suicidal ideation include:

Feeling anxious or agitated

Sudden reckless behavior

Significant changes in sleep behavior (hardly sleeping, sleeping too much)
Withdrawing or isolating from others

Talking about feeling trapped

Talking about pain feeling unbearable

Talking about being a burden to others

Increased use/abuse of alcohol or drugs

Extreme mood swings



The above behaviors do not necessarily indicate suicidal ideation in and of themselves.
However, when combined with other factors (like a recent, painful loss or public moment of
humiliation), they should take on a new sense of urgency to intervene with help.

6-7. Responding to the Warning Signs: The most important thing you can do is take the person
seriously. Do not judge them; do not make them feel bad; do not make a joke about it even if
it makes you feel uncomfortable. Above all, do not assume the person is only seeking attention.
That is not your judgment to make and you making it could be a life-threatening mistake. Be
there, support them, and take immediate action. That immediate action should include, at the
very minimum, the following:

e Talk to the person. Let them know you care about them.

e Listen without judging. This means you need to set aside whatever religious or
theological beliefs you have about suicide in the abstract. This moment is about helping
the human being in front of you who needs support.

e Try not to act/appear shocked. The person is already in distress; an overwhelming
display of emotions on your part could only further distress them and make them feel
they should not talk to you.

e Ask the person directly, “Are you thinking of ending your life?” or “Are you
considering killing yourself?”” Though it might make you uncomfortable, remember
these four concrete questions: Suicidal? Method? Have what you need to follow
through with plan? When?

The more information you know, the better you can help the suicidal person as well as the
professionals that need to get involved. Also, asking these questions can help you determine
how significant the risk. The more developed the person’s suicidal plan, the higher the risk.
For example, if the person has a method and a time in mind, the risk is extremely high.

e If the person says, “No,” continue to be with the person and give support and stay in
touch for the next few days, repeating the above process.

e If the person says, “Yes,” and has a plan and access to lethal means, do not leave the
person alone. Get a professional involved. Immediately contact a local mental health
professional, law enforcement, a local hospital emergency department, and/or the
National Suicide Prevention Lifeline (1-800-273-8255).

e Provide any relevant information you may have about the person to those who are
managing the crisis.

e Keep in contact with the person after the crisis and provide ongoing care and support.

e Draw on other leaders and volunteers in your home and school community to provide
support



e Ifa person ever asks you to keep their suicidal feelings or thoughts secret, refuse. The
most loving response to someone feeling suicidal is getting them the help they need. A
life is at risk. If the risk of chronic/not immediate: stSometimes people may display
warning signs of suicide or feel suicidal but not have any plans to actually commit
suicide. Their risk may be low, but their suicidal feelings or thoughts are still causing
significant distress in their lives. Even though their risk of actually attempting suicide
is low, you should still reach out and do your best to support them. Here are some ways

you can do so:

e Ask them directly about their feelings and thoughts. You’d be surprised how willing
some people are to talk about their suicidal urges. It might even be a relief for them to
have someone to talk to about those urges. The Help Guide gives the following
suggestions for starting such a conversation:

o Help Guide, “Suicide Prevention: How to Help Someone who is Suicidal,”
http://www.helpguide.org/articles/suicide-prevention/suicide-prevention-helping-
someone-who-is- suicidal

= Ways to start a conversation about suicide: 1 have been feeling concerned
about you lately. Recently, I have noticed some differences in you and
wondered how you are doing. I wanted to check in with you because you
haven’t seemed yourself lately.

= Questions you can ask: When did you begin feeling like this? Did something
happen that made you start feeling this way? How can I best support you
right now? Have you thought about getting help?

= What you can say that helps: You are not alone in this. I’'m here for you.
You may not believe it now, but the way you’re feeling will change. I may
not be able to understand exactly how you feel, but I care about you and
want to help. When you want to give up, tell yourself you will hold off for
just one more day, hour, minute—whatever you can manage.

Educate yourself about suicide. Study more about suicide, its causes, and how to show love to
someone who struggles with it.

Do not talk about suicidal people as if they are “crazy” or “insane.” Use words that will not
make them feel like isolating themselves even more. Most suicidal people are not clinically
psychotic. They might be grief-stricken or depressed, but do not make them feel like they
should be locked up in an asylum.

Help the person find professional assistance. Offer to help them find a counselor or therapist;
offer to help fill out forms for applying to your county or state’s mental health care system.



Encourage positive lifestyle changes, such as exercising more. Start small: for example, invite
the person to going for a walk or hiking with you on the weekend.

Help the person make a safety plan. Help the person develop a set of concrete and specific-
steps they promise to follow if they feel particularly suicidal. The plan should include things
they promise to avoid (alcohol, drugs, etc.) and things they promise to do instead (call you,
call another friend or therapist, etc.).

If necessary, have the person temporarily give you anything that they could use to commit
suicide, such as unneeded, extra medications, razors, knives, etc.

Continue to stay in touch and support the person over the long-term. Repeat the above steps as
needed.

7:8. For Parents- Suicide Discussion/Communication: Talking to your Children: Here are
some suggestions to help you with introducing the subject:

Be courageous: There is no shame in admitting that suicide is a scary issue. As parents,
you probably want to protect your kids from all sorts of scary things. But you also have
an obligation to teach them how to face reality and equip them to deal with all the scary
things reality can bring. Here’s the truth: your kids are going to learn about suicide one
way or another. So would you rather that they learn about it from the media or a friend
who suddenly kills himself, or would you rather that you have the opportunity to
educate them in advance? So face those fears and dive right in.

Pick a time where you can have an uninterrupted conversation: Start the
conversation when you have the best chance of having your child’s attention. A car
ride, for example, ensures that your child will have fewer distractions than at home
with the TV on. While you want to make sure your child gives you their attention, also
make sure they don’t feel trapped. Remember: if talking about suicide makes you
uncomfortable, it can also make your child feel uncomfortable. So make sure you not
only have their attention, but that you do so in an environment that feels non-
threatening and open.

Plan in advance: Think about what you want to say and make sure you have the right
information to talk to your child accurately and helpfully about suicide. Make notes or
plan a script if you want.

Tailor the conversation to your child’s age: When talking about suicide (or any big,
serious topic, for that matter), make sure that you keep the conversation at a level that
is appropriate for that child’s developmental level. For younger children, your
descriptions can be shorter and simpler. For older children, give longer and more
detailed answers. Additionally, older children will likely have many questions. If you
don’t know the answer to a question, don’t be afraid to say that. You can make it into



a learning experience and research the answer with your child together. That’s much
better than inaccurate or misleading information.

e Explain suicide in a way that dispels common myths: Let your children know not
only the facts about suicide, but also what depression is and how it can make people
feel suicide is their only escape. Let them know that suicide is never a necessity and
that there is always hope. Let them know that they are not bad if they feel sad or upset
and that it’s ok to tell you if they do feel this way. Make sure they feel safe in your
home and that they do not have to pretend to always be happy. Let them know you will
not judge them if they are feeling down and that you love them no matter how happy
or sad they are.

e Encourage them to talk to trusted adults: Let your kids know that they can talk to
you if they are feeling depressed or suicidal. Or let them know that if they ever feel
uncomfortable talking to you about depression or suicide, that they can always talk to
another trusted family member or adult in your community. The important thing is that
they do not hold their feelings inside until they become so unbearable they feel like
they are going to explode.

e Let your child speak: Ask your child what they think about the topic. Just be direct,
e.g., “Have you thought about suicide? What do you think about it? Do your friends
think about it? Do you know who you can talk to if you’re feeling these feelings?”

e Listen to your child: If you ask your child what they think, make sure to be silent and
give them the space to talk. If they say something that is inaccurate or that worries you,
definitely be honest but do not interrupt them. Wait until they are done, affirm that you
heard what they said and appreciate that they shared their thoughts with you, and then
address whatever issues you feel need to be corrected.

e Seeking Assistance: There are differing situations where your child’s distress may
become apparent. Your child may reveal their suicidal thoughts to you, a friend, or a
trusted adult. Whoever becomes aware of your child’s distress must immediately seek
assistance. In seeking assistance, your child’s safety is the first consideration. The child
should never be left alone during this crisis. If your child has a physician or therapist,
call to alert them of the situation.

For the Child/ Student: School can be an exciting time, filled with new experiences, but at
times you might feel as though it is more of a struggle. This information is meant to help you
as you work through a tough time.

Life can be stressful. Between the friend drama, packed schedules, classes, clubs, relationships,
sports, jobs, parental expectations, figuring out who you are, uncertainty over things, and not
getting enough sleep, life can occasionally get you down and feel overwhelming. That is
normal.



What is not normal is struggling through each day, feeling like things will only get worse.
Maybe you feel like you have lost control, that nothing matters, or that you are alone. These
feelings may indicate a condition that requires professional help, such as depression, anxiety
or other mental health conditions.

Not everyone experiences mental health conditions in the same way, but everyone struggling
with their mental health deserves help. Depression is among the most common conditions
experienced. It is a complex medical illness that significantly interferes with an individual’s
ability to function, enjoy life, and feel like themselves.

A number of factors may contribute to a person becoming depressed; genetic predisposition
and stressful life events can certainly play a role, but sometimes depression can occur without
an obvious cause. This means that anyone can become depressed, even those who seemingly
have every reason to be happy.

Depression commonly affects your thoughts, your emotions, your behaviors, and your overall
physical health. Experiencing any one of these symptoms on its own does not constitute
depression; a diagnosis of depression requires several of these symptoms to occur for at least
two weeks. Here are some of the most common symptoms that point to the presence of
depression:

e Feelings:

o Sadness

o Hopelessness

o Guilt

o Moodiness

o Angry outbursts

o Loss of interest in friends, family, and favorite activities
o Thoughts:

o Trouble concentrating

o Difficulty making decisions

o Trouble remembering

o Thoughts of harming oneself

o Delusions and/or hallucinations can also occur in cases of severe depression

« Behaviors:



o Withdrawing from people

o Substance abuse

o Missing work, school, or other commitments
o Attempts to harm oneself (e.g., cutting)

o Physical/Somatic Problems:

o Tiredness or lack of energy

o Unexplained aches and pains

o Changes in appetite

o Weight loss or gain

o Changes in sleep — sleeping too little or too much

If you are experiencing symptoms of depression, it is important to talk to a trusted adult
(parent, teacher, counselor, coach, or clergy) or doctor so that you can get the help you need.
Depression does not go away on its own, but with the appropriate help it can be treated.
Studies show that more than 80% of people with depression can feel better with talk therapy
(counseling) and/or medication. Maybe you have noticed that your friend has not been acting
like themselves lately and you are worried about whether or not they are really “fine” after all.
If you think a friend may be depressed, show them you care by reaching out. Give yourself
time to talk in a private, comfortable place. Honestly share what you have noticed (changes in
behavior, things they have said or done) and ask them how they are feeling. Let them know
that you are asking them because you care, because you want them to feel better, and because
there is help. Let them know that there is hope and help available, and support them to get the
help they need. If you don’t feel comfortable asking your friend, share your concerns with a
trusted adult who can. Talking about mental health can be difficult, but reaching out and getting
help for depression is one of the most courageous, important things you can do for yourself or
for a friend. It might even save a life.

e Resources at home or outside school:
o Talk to a parent or older relative
o Call your pediatrician or physician
o Talk to a trusted adult, teacher, or guidance counselor

o National Suicide Prevention Lifeline;: 800-273-8255



o Ifsomeone is in immediate danger, call 911. Getting help does not mean that you
have failed, it demonstrates courage, hope, and means you’ve allowed others to
show they care.

8:9. Assessment and Referral: When a student is identified by a staff person as potentially
suicidal, e.g., verbalizes about suicide, presents overt risk factors such as agitation or
intoxication, the act of self-harm occurs, or a student self-refers, the student will be seen by a
school employed mental health professional within the same school day to assess risk and
facilitate referral. If there is no mental health professional available, a school nurse or
administrator will fill this role until a mental health professional can be brought in.

School staff will continuously supervise the student to ensure their safety.

The designated mental health and suicide prevention coordinator (s) will be made
aware of the situation as soon as reasonably possible.

The mental health professional/coordinator will contact the student’s parent or
guardian, and will assist the family with urgent referral. When appropriate, this may
include calling emergency services or bringing the student to the local hospital
emergency department, but in most cases will involve setting up an outpatient mental
health or primary care appointment and communicating the reason for referral to the
healthcare provider.

Staff will ask the student’s parent or guardian for written permission to discuss the
student’s health with outside care, if appropriate.

Protecting the health and well-being of all students is of utmost importance. A suicide
prevention policy serves to assist and protect all students through the following steps:

Students should be made aware of and informed about recognizing and responding to
warning signs of suicide in peers and friends, using coping skills, using support
systems, and seeking help for themselves and friends.

Feather River Charter School will designate a suicide prevention coordinator to serve
as a point of contact for students in crisis and to refer students to appropriate resources.

When a student is identified as being at risk, they will be assessed by a school employed
mental health professional who will work with the parents, staff, and student, and help
connect them to appropriate local resources.

Students will have access to national resources which they can contact for additional
support.

All students will be expected to help create a school culture of respect and support in
which students feel comfortable seeking help for themselves or friends. Students are



encouraged to tell an adult (e.g., teacher, parent) if they, or someone they know, is
feeling suicidal or in need of help.

e Students should also know that because of the life or death nature of these matters,
confidentiality or privacy concerns are secondary to seeking help for students in crisis.

e If the student is in imminent danger (has access to a gun, is on a rooftop, or in other
unsafe conditions), a call shall be made to 911.

e A referral process should be prominently disseminated to all staff members with access
to students, so they know how to respond to a crisis and are knowledgeable about the
school and community-based resources.

e The Executive Director shall establish crisis intervention procedures to ensure student
safety and appropriate communications if a suicide occurs or an attempt is made by a
student or adult on campus or at a school-sponsored activity.

e The referral process shall be  prominently disseminated to  all
parents/guardians/caregivers so they know how to respond to a crises and are
knowledgeable about the school and community-based resources.

Coping Skills/Healthy Behaviors: These are positive actions and behaviors that a student
engages in to help them through their struggles on a daily basis. Some coping strategies include
activities that students can do in order to regulate his/her emotions; ask the student for input,
and teach him/her additional strategies if necessary. Strategies may include: slow breathing,
voga, play basketball, draw, write in journal, take a break from school activities to drink water,
listen to music.

Places I Feel Safe: These are places that the student feels most comfortable. It should be a
safe, healthy, and generally supportive environment. This can be a physical location, an
imaginary happy place, or in the presence of safe people. Help students identify a physical
and/or emotional state of being. Places may include: my being with my friends, youth group at
church, imagining I am on a beach watching the waves.

School Support: Any school staff member or administrator can check in with a student
regularly (regardless of whether or not the student seeks out help). Notify student’s teacher(s)
and request monitoring and supervision of the student (keeping in mind not to share
confidential information).

Adult Support: It is important that a student also feel connected with healthy adults at home
or in their community. The student should trust these adults and feel comfortable asking for
help during a crisis. Identify how student will communicate with these individuals and include
a phone number. Some adults may include: family (e.g., grandparent, aunt, uncle, adult sister),
clergy (e.g. youth pastor),; or neighbor.

9:10. Prevention: School Policy Implementation: A suicide prevention coordinator shall be
designated by Feather River Charter School Administration. This may be an existing staff



person, such as a School Counselor or School Psychologist. The suicide prevention
coordinator will be responsible for planning and coordinating implementation of suicide
prevention for the school.

The school suicide prevention coordinator will act as a point of contact in the school for issues
relating to suicide prevention and policy implementation. All staff members shall report
students they believe to be at elevated risk for suicide to the school mental health/suicide
prevention coordinator.

Providing a safe, positive, and welcoming school climate; and ensuring that students have
trusting relationships with adults serves as the foundation for effective suicide prevention
efforts. Bullying and suicide-related behaviors have a number of shared risk factors including
mental health challenges (e.g., depression, hopelessness, and substance use/abuse). Youth who
report frequently bullying others and those who report being frequently bullied are at increased
risk for suicidal thoughts and behavior. Bully-victims (those who report both bullying others
and being bullied) are at the highest risk for suicidal thoughts and behaviors. Keep in mind the
relationship between bullying and suicide is more complex and less direct than it might appear.
While bullying may be a precipitating event, there are often many other contributing factors,
including underlying mental illness.

Prevention efforts should also address non-suicidal self-injury (NSSI or "cutting"). While the
behavior is typically not associated with suicidal thinking, it is a red flag that someone is
distressed and does increase the risk for suicidal thinking and behaviors. It is important that
school staff learn to recognize the signs of NSSI, including cuts, burns, scratches, scabs, and
scrapes, especially those that are recurrent and if explanations for the injuries are not credible.
Suicide risk assessment should always be a part of intervention with the student who displays
NSSI.

Staff Professional Development: All staff will receive annual professional development on
risk factors, warning signs, protective factors, response procedures, referrals, postvention, and
resources regarding youth suicide prevention. The professional development will include
additional information regarding groups of students at elevated risk for suicide, including those
living with mental and/or substance use disorders, those who engage in self-harm or have
attempted suicide, those in out-of-home settings, those experiencing homelessness, American
Indian/Alaska Native student, LGBTQ students, students bereaved by suicide and those with
medical conditions or certain types of disabilities. Additional professional development in risk
assessment and crisis intervention will be provided to school employed mental health
professionals and school nurses.

Identification and Intervention: Early identification and intervention are critical to
preventing suicidal behavior. When a parent/caregiver or school staff become aware of a
student exhibiting potential suicidal behavior, they should immediately and contact a member
of the school's crisis response team for a suicide risk assessment and support. If the appropriate
staff is not available, 911 should be called. Typically, it is best to inform the student what you
are going to do every step of the way. Under no circumstances should the student be left alone
(even in a bathroom/ restroom). Reassure and supervise the student until a 24/7 caregiving



resource (e.g., mental health professional or law enforcement representative) can assume
responsibility.

Designated members of the school crisis team should conduct a suicide risk assessment.
The purpose of the assessment is to determine the level of risk and to identify the most
appropriate actions to ensure the immediate and long-term safety and well-being of the student.
This should be done by a team that includes a school-employed mental health professional.

Caregiver notification is a vital part of suicide prevention. The appropriate caregiver(s)
must always be contacted when signs of suicidal thinking and behavior are observed.
Typically, this is the student's parent(s); however, when child abuse is suspected protective
services should be contacted. Even if a child is judged to be at low risk for suicidal behavior,
schools may ask caregivers to sign a form to indicate that relevant information has been
provided. Regardless, all caregiver notifications must be documented. Caregivers also provide
critical information in determining level of risk. Whether a student is in imminent danger or
not, it is strongly recommended that lethal means are (e.g., guns, poisons, medications, and
sharp objects) are removed or made inaccessible.

Refer to community services if warranted. Referral options to 24-hour community-based
services should be identified in advance. It is best to obtain a release from the primary caregiver
to facilitate the sharing of information between the school and community agency.

Help the parent/caregiver and/or school staff to develop with the student a safety plan.
Helping the student to develop a written list of coping strategies and sources of support that
can be of assistance when he or she is having thoughts of suicide (e.g., a safety plan) is
recommended. Suicide prevention hotlines (e.g., 800-273-TALK) and the app MY3
(my3app.org) can be helpful elements of such a plan.

Schools are legally responsible for documenting every step in the assessment and
intervention process. A documentation form for support personnel and crisis response team
members should be developed to record all suicide intervention actions and caregiver
communication. Student information must be kept confidential but there are exceptions to
FERPA when safety is of concern. Staff responsible for the safety and welfare of the student
should be provided with the information necessary to work with the student and preserve the
safety. School staff members do not need clinical information about the student or a detailed
history of his or her suicidal risk or behavior. Discussion among staff should be restricted to
the student's treatment and support needs.

Keep tabs on the rumor mill (including social media). If you hear or see something credible,
refer the student to a school-employed mental health professional or crisis response team
member. At the same time, gossip about particular incidents and students should also be
discouraged.

Please Remember:

If it seems that an individual is in immediate danger of hurting himself or herself: Take the
person to a hospital Emergency Room to be evaluated by a health professional.



If the person refuses help: Call 9-1-1 for police evaluation of the individual. 1f the person is a
danger to self or others, the officer can transport the person to a hospital where he or she may
be held.

Postvention. Following a suicide, school communities must strike a delicate balance. Students
should have an opportunity to grieve, but in a way that does not glorifying, romanticizing or
sensationalizing suicide, which may increase suicide risk for other students.

Confirm facts. Confirm the facts related to the death with the family and/or police. Inform
other schools in the district with students related or close to the deceased. Contact the family
to offer condolences, ask what the school can do to help, offer resources, and to discuss
communication with the school community. Protect and gather the personal effects of the
deceased for the family and/or the police. Pay close attention to other students (and staff) who
may also be at risk of suicidal behavior.

Resources needed. In some situations, schools may have adequate resources to handle the
aftermath of a suicide. However, it is critical that schools assess the impact of the suicide on
the school community to determine the level of postvention support needed. Factors to consider
include how well known the student was, if the suicide was public (e.g., occurred at a school
event), and/or if the deceased had shared his/her suicidal intentions with others (particularly to
large numbers of other students via social media). These factors generally increase the impact
and thus the potential postvention needs of members of the school community.

Contagion. Suicide contagion occurs when suicidal behavior is imitated. The effect is
strongest among adolescents: they appear to be more susceptible to imitative suicide than
adults, largely because they may identify more readily with the behavior and qualities of their
peers. Guilt, identification, and modeling are each thought to play a role in contagion.
Sometimes suicide contagion can result in a cluster of suicides. Studies indicate that 1-5% of
all suicides within this age group are due to contagion (100-200 teenage cluster suicides per

year).

Suicide postvention strategies designed to minimize contagion include avoiding
sensationalism or giving unnecessary attention to the suicide, avoiding glorifying or vilifying
of suicide victims, and minimizing the amount of detail about the suicide shared with students.

If there appears to be contagion, school administrators should consider taking additional steps
beyond the basic crisis response, including stepping up efforts to identify other students who
may be at heightened risk of suicide, collaborating with community partners in a coordinated
suicide prevention effort, and possibly bringing in outside experts.

Memorials. Memorials in particular run the risk of glamorizing suicide and should thus be
implemented with great care. Living memorials are recommended such as making donations
to a local crisis center, participating in an event that raises awareness about suicide prevention,
or providing opportunities for service activities in the school that emphasize the importance of
student's taking care of each other.



Care for the caregiver. It is important that administrators and crisis team members not
underestimate the potential impact that a suicide can have on school staff members. School
leaders should promote a culture in which both the students and the adults in the building feel
comfortable asking for help and/or to take a break. Providing contact information and
encouraging staff to meet their own mental health needs is an important first step in ensuring
that staff are adequately supported.

Grief. Understanding the nature of grief can help us better cope with loss. Grief is a natural,
healthy process that enables us to recover from terrible emotional wounds. Grief can affect our
thinking, behavior, emotions, relationships, and health. People may experience sleeplessness,
exhaustion, indigestion, lack of appetite, or memory lapses. Recognizing that these are
common reactions to grief can help us minimize them by reaching out to friends, or joining a
community support group.

The journey through grief has four phases:

e Shock — In the days and weeks immediately following a devastating loss, common
feelings include numbness and unreality, like being trapped in a bad dream.

e Reality — As the fact of the loss takes hold, deep sorrow sets in, accompanied by
weeping and other forms of emotional release. Loneliness and depression may also
occur.

e Reaction — Anger, brought on by feelings of abandonment and helplessness, may be
directed toward family, friends, doctors, and the one who died or deserted us. Other
typical feelings include listlessness, apathy, and guilt over perceived failures or
unresolved personal issues.

e Recovery - Finally, there is a gradual, almost imperceptible return to normalcy. This
is a time of adjustment to the new circumstances in life.

These phases vary in duration for each person, so the school should not impose a timetable
upon anyone. Some people need a year or two, while others may take less time. Holidays,
anniversaries, and birthdays can trigger intense grief, especially the first year. Everyone
grieves differently — depending on personality, religious beliefs, maturity, emotional
stability, and cultural traditions.

The following steps should be implemented after a mental health crisis has happened:

e Treat every threat with seriousness and approach with a calm manner, make the student
a priority;

e Listen actively and non-judgmental to the student. Let the student express his or her
feelings;



Acknowledge the feelings and do not argue with the student;

Offer hope and let the student know they are safe and that help is provided. Do not
promise confidentiality or cause stress;

Keep close contact with the parents/guardians/caregivers and mental health
professionals working with the student.

The following steps shall be implemented upon re-entry to school after a suicide attempt:

Obtain a written release of information signed by parents/guardians/caregivers and
providers;

Confer with student and parents/guardians/caregivers about any specific requests on
how to handle the situation;

Inform the student’s teachers about possible days of absences;

Allow accommodations for student to make up work (be understanding that missed
assignments may add stress to student);

Mental health professionals or trusted staff members should maintain ongoing contact
to monitor student’s actions and mood;

Work with parents/guardians/caregivers to involve the student in an aftercare plan.

10.11. Resources for Parents, Students and Staff Members on Suicide Prevention:

Parents as Partners: A Suicide Prevention Guide for Parents is a booklet that
contains useful information for parents/guardians/caregivers who are concerned that
their children may be at risk for suicide. It is available from Suicide Awareness Voices
of Education (SAVE). See the SAVE Web page at
https://www.save.org/product/parents-as-partners/

Sources of Strength: https://sourcesofstrength.org

Know the Signs: http://www.suicideispreventable.org

National Mental Health and Suicide Support Services: The following are just a few
places you can access listings for local mental health services in your area. Please call
or visit their websites for details.

National Suicide Prevention Lifeline: 1 (800) 273-TALK (800-273-8255)

Mental Health America (MHA): www.mentalhealthamerica.net 1-800-969-6642


https://www.save.org/product/parents-as-partners/
https://sourcesofstrength.org/
http://www.suicideispreventable.org/

Mental Health Services Locator: www.mentalhealth.samhsa.gov/databases

American Foundation for Suicide Prevention www.afsp.org

American Association for Suicide Prevention www.suicidology.org

Center for Disease Control & Prevention www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention/suicide

Healthy Place - www.healthyplace.com

Jed Foundation - www.jedfoundation.org

National Federation of Families for Children’s Mental Health www.ffcmh.org

National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI) www.nami.org 1-800-950-NAMI
(6264)

The Trevor Lifeline - www.thetrevorproject.org 1-866-488-7386

National Institute of Mental Health (NIMH) - www.nimh.nih.gov

Strength of US- www.strengthofus.org

Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration (SAMHSA)
www.samhsa.gov/prevention/suicide.aspx

Suicide Awareness Voices of Education (SAVE) www.save.org

Suicide Prevention Action Network USA - www.spanusa.org

Suicide Prevention Resource Center (SPRC) - www.sprc.org

Book Resources for Parents: Mental Health and Resilience

e Beardslee, William. Out of the Darkened Room: When a Parent is Depressed: Protecting
the Children and Strengthening the Family. 2002.

e Rapee, Ronald et al. Helping your anxious child: A step by step guide. 2000.

e Manassis, Katharina & Levac, Anne Marie. Helping your teenager beat depression: A
problem-solving approach for families. 2004.

e Lezine, DeQuincy and Brent, David. Eight Stories Up: An Adolescent Chooses Hope over
Suicide. 2008.

e Bourne, Edward. The Anxiety & Phobia Workbook. 2005.

e Riera, Michael. Uncommon Sense for Parents with Teenagers. 2004.


http://www.mentalhealth.samhsa.gov/databases
http://www.afsp.org/
http://www.suicidology.org/
http://www.cdc.gov/ViolencePrevention/suicide
http://www.healthyplace.com/
http://www.ffcmh.org/
http://www.nimh.nih.gov/
http://www.strengthofus.org/
http://www.samhsa.gov/prevention/suicide.aspx
http://www.save.org/
http://www.spanusa.org/

Phelan, Thomas. Surviving Your Adolescents: How to Manage and Let Go of Your 13-18
year olds.1998.

Sachs, Brad. The Good Enough Child: How to Have an Imperfect Family and Be Totally
Satisfied. 2001.

Apter, Terri. The Confident Child: Raising Children to Believe in Themselves. 1997.
Book Resources for Teens: Mental Health and Resilience
Hipp, Earl. Fighting Invisible Tigers: A Stress Management Guide for Teens. 2008.

Fox, Annie. Too Stressed to Think? A Teen Guide to Staying Sane When Life Makes You
Crazy. 2005

Seaward, Brian. Hot Stones and Funny Bones: Teens Helping Teens Cope with Stress and
Anger. 2002.

Espeland, Pamela. Life Lists for Teens: Tips, Steps, Hints, and How-To’s for Growing Up,
Getting Along, Learning, and Having Fun. 2003.

Covey, Sean. The 7 Habits of Highly Effective Teens. 1998.
Kay Redfield Jamison, Night Falls Fast: Understanding Suicide
Andrew Slaby and Lili Frank Garfinkle, No One Saw My Pain: Why Teens Kill Themselves

Beverly Cobain and Jean Larch, Dying to Be Free: A Healing Guide for Families after a
Suicide

Linda H. Kilburn, Reaching Out After Suicide: What’s Helpful and What’s Not

Judith Herman, Trauma and Recovery: The Aftermath of Violence—from Domestic Abuse
to Political Terror

Laura Van Dernoot Lipsky and Connie Burk, Trauma Stewardship: An Everyday Guide to
Caring for Self While Caring for Others

Pema Chodron, The Places that Scare You: A Guide to Fearlessness in Difficult Times
Pete Walker, The Tao of fully feeling: Harvesting forgiveness out of blame.

Peter A. Levine, Waking the Tiger: Healing Trauma



B
Feathor Diven

Educational Vendor Policies and Procedures

Feather River Charter School (“Charter School”) is focused on “Personalized Learning”, a
philosophy that puts every student first by supporting them in honoring and exploring their unique
skills, special gifts, talents, and aspirations. In furtherance of this philosophy and Charter School’s
educational mission, families and Charter School staff together carefully select educational items
and services for students to fit their goals and education plan.

The purpose of the Feather River Charter School Governing Board approving the Educational
Vendor Policies and Procedures is to accomplish the key requirements detailed in this policy,
including:

1.

2.

3.

The Executive Director (as defined below) must approve all vendors before they can
provide educational items or services to students.

The Homeschool Teacher (as defined below) and Executive Director (as defined below)
must approve all requests for educational items or services to ensure they are aligned with
the charter petition and student’s personalized learning curriculum.

No family may spend, or obligate the Charter School to spend, any Charter School monies
on educational items and services. Charter School is responsible for making purchases of
approved educational items and services.

VENDOR APPLICATION AND APPROVAL

Educational Vendor Applications: Charter School contracts with educational vendors
who provide educational enrichment services (e.g., in-person educational activities) and
items (e.g., textbooks, workbooks, etc.) to students. Vendors must submit an application
to Charter School detailing critical information such as qualifications and services. Charter
School shall carefully review Vendor’s application, website, available references, social
media, and other pertinent information.

The Executive Director or his/her designee (“Executive Director’”) must approve all
educational vendors and enter into an agreement with approved vendors before a vendor
can provide any educational services to students. The Executive Director may reject a
vendor applicant or terminate vendor services for any reason. The Executive Director may
delegate his/her authority to approve vendors as necessary to promote the effective
operations of the Charter School. For educational products, parents may submit requests
specific educational products from a particular vendor (e.g., pencils from an online store).
The Charter School’s approval of the educational product request (approval process
described below) serves as vendor approval.



Vendor Guidelines: The Executive Director is responsible for approving vendors, and
must ensure the vendor meets guidelines, including, but not limited to the following:

e Vendor must have the qualifications, skills and, if applicable, the certification and
licenses necessary to perform the requested services in a competent and professional
manner.

e Vendor conducts background checks pursuant to Education Code section 45125.1 to
ensure Vendor (if an individual), its employees, and agents who interact with students
have not committed a serious or violent felony.

e Vendor services and/or products must be non-sectarian. Vendor’s services and products
must not discriminate on the basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation or any other
protected basis under California law.

e Vendor must maintain adequate levels of insurance for its educational services.

e Vendor must not be a private school offering services through a part-time program
(e.g., after school programs) or a parent-organized group (also known as “co-op”).

o Vendors must qualify as independent contractors in accordance with applicable laws.
This is determined by the Executive Director based on vendor representations and
vetting by the Charter School or its service provider.

Vendor Agreement: Once the Executive Director has approved a vendor, the vendor and
Charter School must enter into a vendor agreement before the school can order educational
services from the vendor. Considering families may have one-off requests for educational
products, a vendor agreement may not be necessary for the Charter School to purchase
educational products (e.g., ordering pencils from an online store for one student). The
vendor agreement will include protections set forth in this policy, including, but not limited
to requiring background checks for staff interacting with students, prohibitions on non-
sectarian/discriminatory items and services, insurance and indemnification provisions, and
more.

REQUESTING EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AND ITEMS

Requests: Students make requests for educational services and items through the
Enrichment ordering system. The Enrichment ordering system is accessible on the Charter
School website and features a list of approved educational vendors. All requests for
educational services and items must: (i) first be approved the credentialed teacher assigned
to supervise student’s independent study (“Homeschool Teacher”); and (ii) approved by
the Executive Director or designee. The Executive Director may delegate his/her authority
to approve parent requests for educational items and services as necessary to promote the
effective operations of the Charter School.

The Executive Director can deny any request for educational items or services in his or her



sole discretion for any reason. Families cannot directly purchase, or obligate the Charter
School to purchase, any educational items or service without Charter School’s approval.

The Charter School establishes a planning amount for students for educational items and
services per full school year. Parents and students are not guaranteed to receive any
educational items and services up to and equal to this planning amount, as a Homeschool
Teacher and the Executive Director must approve all requests. The planning amount is
also not a mandatory cap limiting the Charter School’s ability provide necessary
educational services to students (e.g., pursuant to a student’s individualized education
program). The Charter School developed this planning amount to help ensure the school
provides educational items and services aligned with its budget and to help ensure fair and
equal treatment of students, to the extent consistent with individual needs. Parents and
students are not given access to direct or encumber planning amount funds. Parents are
encouraged to work with their Homeschool Teacher to develop multi-year plans for their
children because their educational needs may vary from year-to-year. While the Charter
School does not guarantee any specific amount of funding for educational services and
items, a multi-year plan empowers the Charter School and families to develop a
personalized course of study suited to their children’s needs and the Charter School to
effectively budget for all students. The planning amount cannot be transferred to any other
student.

The Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director are responsible for granting requests and
allocating educational products and services in a nondiscriminatory manner. The Charter
School shall seek to purchase cost-effective educational items and services. The
Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director shall ensure purchased educational items and
services meet the following requirements:

e From approved vendors only.
e Support the requesting student’s personalized curriculum and education plan.

e Must be aligned with State standards, student’s course of study (e.g., requested amount
of fabric corresponds to length of course/project), or student’s independent study
master written agreement.

e From a vendor who is not related to the Charter School family requesting the
educational items or services and otherwise does not present conflict of interest
concerns.

Core Subject Curriculum: The Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director must ensure
students access all necessary ‘“core subject curriculum” — education items/services
necessary for the student to complete his/her State standards-aligned course of study —
before approving any extracurricular activities or supplemental educational or enrichment
items. Core subject curriculum includes physical curriculum like McGraw Hill Textbook
Set and associated workbooks and access to digital educational platforms such as
Odysseyware or StongMind Digital Learning.

Enrichment Certificates: After the Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director approve
a request through the Enrichment ordering system, an “Enrichment Certificate” is created
by Charter School. Charter School requests educational services and items from approved
vendors through Enrichment Certificates. If necessary, Charter School may use an



approved vendor’s purchase order form in lieu of an Enrichment Certificate.
Certificates/purchase orders should include important information, including the requested
educational services, dates of services, Enrichment Certificate/PO Number, and approved
cost for services.

Vendors must receive an approved Enrichment Certificate/purchase order before providing
educational services or items to students. Vendors must receive the Enrichment
Certificate/purchase order and provide the requested education services before submitting
an invoice to Charter School.

Prohibited Requests: Charter School students can only request education services and
items available in the Enrichment ordering system. Homeschool Teachers and Executive
Directors will only approve requests for educational items and services that are educational
quality (e.g., not top of the line). Only basic items and services may be approved. Charter
School will not approve educational items or services beyond what is needed to meet a
student’s learning objectives.

The following is a non-exhaustive list of prohibited items and services:
e Backpacks
e Amusement park tickets
e Video game hardware or software
e Excessive quantities of any item or service (e.g., beyond student’s course of study).

e Non-educational household items (e.g., storage containers, organizational items (large
or small items), picture frames, etc.)

e Bicycles, tricycles, scooters, skateboards, rollerblades, roller skates, wagons, etc.

e Live animals or animal supplies small insects/amphibians/worms as a part of a science
class. Certain kit and supplies can be ordered by a student (e.g., praying mantis,
caterpillars, ladybugs, or silkworms to study; ant farms; or tadpoles)

e Top of the line musical instruments (where more reasonably-priced options are
available)

e FEducational items and services must be nonsectarian
e Taxis/Uber/Lyft rides and other transportation costs

Educational Field Trips: While families are prohibited from requesting trips to non-
educational venues, they can request to join educational field trips through the enrichment
ordering system (e.g., museums, aquariums, libraries, etc.) The Executive Director and
Homeschool Teacher shall carefully scrutinize each request to ensure the requested
educational field trip aligns with the student’s course of study and furthers their education
and that all participants are necessary for student transportation, safety and supervision.

In light of the Charter School providing an independent study program, it is anticipated
that a parent/guardian may need to serve as chaperone and transport their children for
approved educational field trips. The Charter School Board finds funding the actual,
reasonable, and necessary costs for a chaperone to access the educational field trip (e.g.,
ticket to museum, embedded transportation costs) furthers public school purposes where



necessary or desirable to allow students to participate in educational field trips.
6. Student and Family Responsibilities:

A. Returning Educational Products: All educational items requested through the
Enrichment ordering system are the property of the Charter School. This includes any
technology, textbooks, and other educational items. Families must return all
educational products upon disenrollment or upon request by the Executive Director or
Homeschool Teacher. In accordance with applicable law, parents are responsible for
to replace lost, stolen, damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items.

e Certain items are “consumable”, meaning they are not functional after use (e.g.,
workbooks). These items can be discarded by families after use.

B. Damaged or Lost Educational Items: Parents are responsible for replacing lost, stolen,
damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items to the extent allowed under
applicable law. If an educational item is damaged, parents must immediately contact
the Homeschool Teacher for support.

Required Attendance: Students must attend regular learning period meetings with their
Homeschool Teacher to discuss progress, turn in quality work samples, and complete their
Student Activity Logs (Attendance Logs) in order to make requests for extracurricular
educational activities (e.g., non-core curriculum items) through enrichment ordering
system.

7. Questions: If Charter School families have any questions about this policy or how to make
requests for educational items and services, please contact Executive Director, Jenell
Sherman at jenell@inspireschools.org.



Feathor Diven

Field Trip Policy

The Governing Board of Feather River Charter School recognizes that school-sponsored trips are
an important component of a student’s development. These types of trips supplement and enrich
the homeschooling and classroom learning experience. In addition, field trips encourage new
interests among students, make them more aware of community resources, and help them relate
their school experiences to the outside world. School-sponsored field trips may be conducted in
connection with the Feather River Charter School’s course of study or school-related social,
educational, cultural, athletic, school band activities or other extracurricular or cocurricular
activities.

The purpose of the Feather River Charter School Governing Board approving this Field Trip Policy
is to accomplish the following:

Outline the Requirements for a Field Trip

Explain Supervision, Chaperone and Guest Policies

Explain Accommodation Options for Special Education Students
Identify Student and Family Responsibly While Attending Field Trips
Identify Transportation Options for Field Trip Attendance

MRS

1. Requirements for a Field Trip: No field trips may be made to locations, activities, or
programs where students will be treated unfairly based on disability, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other
characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Penal Code section
422.55, including immigration status, equal rights, and opportunities in the educational
institutions of the state.

School-sponsored trips are those that are single-day, community based or those that are
specifically approved by the Governing Board of Feather River Charter School (such as multi-
day trips, or those costing the Feather River Charter School in excess of $250 per pupil). The
Executive Director of Feather River Charter School shall establish a process for approving a
staff member’s request to conduct a school-sponsored trip that fall outside the limitations of
this section. When planning trips, staff shall consider student safety, objectives of instruction,
the most effective use of instructional time, school and student expense, and transportation and
supervision requirements. Executive Directors may exclude from the trip any student whose
presence on the trip would pose a safety or disciplinary risk.

All field trips are voluntary, and no student is required to attend any given field trip. A



student’s ability to attend any field trip is limited by the amount of enrichment funds available
for that student. The teacher of records is responsible for mapping out a child’s field trip plan
for the year to enhance the child’s educational plan.

. Field Trip Supervision: Given the need for adequate supervision of the students attending

school-sponsored trips and given the nature of the educational program offered by Feather
River Charter School, if applicable, Feather River Charter School will pay for the costs of
admission for one chaperone for each four (4) children in a family and enrolled in Feather
River Charter School. If applicable, Feather River Charter School will pay for the costs of
admission for an additional chaperone for additional children in a family and enrolled in
Feather River Charter School in excess of four (up to eight). Children in a family means
children living, part- or full-time, with a parent/guardian, irrespective of adoptive status or
marital status of the parents/guardians. The funds used to pay for the chaperone as allowed in
this paragraph shall be instructional funds available to each family.

Families are limited to one school-sponsored overnight field trip per year with admission paid
for one chaperone using enrichment funds. Feather River Charter School will not provide the
cost of admission for any chaperones for vendor trips and independent enrichment trips.

It is the responsibility of parents/guardians to ensure proper supervision over their children
enrolled in Feather River Charter School at all times during a school-sponsored trip.
Chaperones may take their own non-enrolled children (two years and older) as guests on
appropriate school-sponsored trips, provided they assume full responsibility for their behavior
and, with approval of the Executive Director.

The organizing teacher shall use a field trip attendance form to track attendance, emergency
contact information, and identify any authorized adults to pick-up students afterhours, if
applicable. Organizing teachers shall always have an emergency contact phone number for
the Executive Director. Ifa serious discipline incident occurs during a field trip, the organizing
teacher shall notify the Executive Director immediately. No student shall be sent home or
separated from the school group without prior approval of the organizing teacher.

. Accommodations: If a family requires special accommodation due to a child’s special

education needs identified in the child’s Individual Education Plan (IEP) or Section 504 plan,
the family may request accommodation from the Executive Director.

Student and Family Responsibilities: All persons making the field trip or excursion shall be
deemed to have waived all claims against the Feather River Charter School or the State of
California for injury, accident, illness or death occurring during or by reason of the field trip
or excursion. All adults, parents and guardians taking any field trip or excursion shall sign a
statement waiving all claims.

All students on a school-sponsored trip are under the jurisdiction of Feather River Charter
School and shall be subject to school disciplinary rules and regulations.

Before a student can participate in a school-sponsored trip, the organizing teacher shall obtain



parent/guardian permission for the trip. Whenever a trip involves water activities, the
parent/guardian shall provide specific permission for his/her child to participate in the water
activities.

Transportation: Parent(s)/guardian(s) are solely responsible for transporting their children to
the location where the field trip starts. The organizing teacher will provide the location for the
field trip, and the time to meet, to the parent(s)/guardian(s) once the field trip has been
confirmed.

The organizing teacher shall use a field trip attendance form to track attendance, emergency
contact information, and identify any authorized adults to pick-up students afterhours, if
applicable. Organizing teachers shall always have an emergency contact phone number for
the Executive Director. Ifa serious discipline incident occurs during a field trip, the organizing
teacher shall notify the Executive Director immediately. No student shall be sent home or
separated from the school group without prior approval of the organizing teacher.



B
Feather Piver

Feather River Charter School

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

SB 187 & SB 334 Compliance Document

2020-2021

This document is to be maintained for public inspection during business hours



TABLE OF CONTENTS

FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL 1
SECTION A: GENERAL INFORMATION — SCHOOL SAFETY 3
PART 1: DISTRICT COMMITMENT TO SCHOOL SAFETY 3
PART 2: LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS 4
PART 3: MAINTAINING A SAFE AND ORDERLY ENVIRONMENT 5
PART 4: CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECKS 6
SECTION B: CHILD ABUSE REPORTING PROCEDURES 7
PART 1: CHILD ABUSE REPORTING PROCEDURES 7
SECTION C: EMERGENCY/DISASTER PLANS 14
PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION - DISASTER 14
PART 2: BIOLOGICAL/CHEMICAL WEAPONS ASSAULT 42
PART 3: BOMB THREAT PROCEDURES 43
PART 4: CHEMICAL OR HAZARDOUS MATERIAL INCIDENT 46
PART 5: EARTHQUAKE PROCEDURES 47
PART 6: EXPLOSION, AIRCRAFT CRASH OR SIMILAR INCIDENT 48
PART 7: FIRE PROCEDURES 49
PART 8: FLOOD PROCEDURES 50
PART 9: LOCKDOWN/CIVIL UNREST PROCEDURES 51
PART 10: SEVERE WINDSTORM PROCEDURES 52
PART 11: SusPICious MAIL PACKAGES 53
SECTION D: SUSPENSION/EXPULSION POLICY AND PROCEDURES 55
PART 1: DEFINITIONS/DUE PROCESS/RULES AND PROCEDURES OF SCHOOL DISCIPLINE/PROCESS AND PROCEDURES 55
SECTION E: PROCEDURES TO NOTIFY TEACHERS OF DANGEROUS PUPILS 77
PART 1: NOTIFY TEACHERS OF DANGEROUS PUPILS 77
SECTION F: DISCRIMINATION AND SEXUAL HARASSMENT PoLICY 80
PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION 80
PART 2: SEXUAL HARASSMENT — ALL PERSONNEL 81
PART 3: SEXUAL HARASSMENT — STUDENTS 85
SECTION G: ScHOOL DRESS CODE (IF IT EXISTS) 88
Part 1: Nonclassroom based program we do not have dress code 88
SECTION H: SAFE INGRESS AND EGRESS 89
PART 1: GENERAL INFORMATION 89
PART 2: SAFE INGRESS AND EGRESS 90
SECTION |: BULLYING AND INTIMIDATION 91
PART 1: ANTI-INTIMIDATION PoLICY 91
SECTION J: MENTAL HEALTH GUIDELINES 95
PART 1: HEALTH GUIDELINES SUICIDE PREVENTION, INTERVENTION AND POSTVENTION PROTOCOL 95
PART 2: SUICIDE PREVENTION, INTERVENTION AND POSTVENTION PROTOCOL 96
SECTION K: CRIME ASSESSMENT 110
PART 1: CRIME ASSESSMENT 110



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 1: District Commitment to School Safety

Feather River Charter School is committed to ensuring that all enrolled students and all employees are safe
and secure. Feather River Charter School believes that a beginning step toward safer schools is the
development of a comprehensive plan for school safety by every school. Feather River Charter School intends
that parents, students, teachers, administrators, counselors, classified personnel, and community agencies
develop safe school plans as a collaborative process. The plan will be reviewed and updated on an annual
basis and proposed changes will be submitted to the Board for approval.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 2: Legislative Requirements

The California Education Code (sections 35294-35294.9) outlines the requirements of all schools operating any
kindergarten and any grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to write and develop a school safety plan relevant to the needs
and resources of that particular school.

This requirement was presented in Senate Bill 187, which was approved by the Governor and chaptered in
1997. This legislation contained a sunset clause that stated that this legislation would remain in effect only
until January 1, 2000. Senate Bill 334 was approved and chaptered in 1999 and perpetuated this legislation
under the requirement of the initial legislation.

Comprehensive School Safety Plans are required under SB 187/SB 334 to contain the following elements:

Plans for Charter Schools must “identify appropriate strategies and programs that provide and maintain a high
level of school safety and address the school’s procedures for complying with existing laws related to school

safety, including but not limited to” the following:

Employee Fingerprint/Background Check — Ed Code 44237

Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 & .6

Emergency/Disaster Plans — Ed Code 32287; CCR Title 8, Sec 3220; ADA

Suspension/Expulsion policies and procedures — Ed Code 48915

Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils — Ed Code 49079

Discrimination and Harassment Policy (include hate crime reporting procedures and policies)*
Schoolwide Dress Code (if it exists - including prohibition of gang-related apparel)

Procedures for safe ingress and egress of pupils, parents, and school employees to and from school site
(pick-up, drop-off, maps, etc.)

A safe and orderly environment conducive to learning at the school

IOomMmMmoOO®»

The Comprehensive School Safety Plan will be reviewed and updated by March 1%t every year. In July of every
year, the school will report on the status of its school safety plan including a description of its key elements in
the annual school accountability report card.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 3: Maintaining a Safe and Orderly Environment

It is a priority of the administration and staff at Feather River Charter School that every student who attends
our school will be provided with an environment in which the students not only feel physically safe, but that
there is also a positive school climate in all activities.

Our administration and staff desire to provide an orderly, caring, and nondiscriminatory learning environment
in which all students can feel comfortable and take pride in their school and their achievements.

Our administration encourages staff to teach students the meaning of equality, human dignity, and mutual
respect, and to employ cooperative learning strategies that foster positive interactions among students from
diverse backgrounds.

Students shall have opportunities to voice their concerns about school policies and practices and to share
responsibility for solving problems that affect their school. Staff shall encourage and reward success and
achievement, participation in community projects, and positive student conduct.

Our school network promotes nonviolent resolution techniques in order to encourage attitudes and behaviors
that foster harmonious relations. Staff shall receive training which implements and supports conflict
resolution (California Education Code Sections 32230-32239, 35160, 35160.1, 44806).

Feather River Charter School remains in compliance with existing laws related to school safety. This plan
outlines several elements critical to maintaining a safe school environment.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section A: General Information — School Safety - Includes Employee
Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237

Part 4: Criminal Background Check

CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK

Feather River Charter School recognizes the importance of maintaining a safe workplace with employees who
are honest, trustworthy, qualified, reliable, and nonviolent, and do not present a risk of harm to students,
coworkers or others. Feather River Charter School will perform applicant background checks and employee
investigations as required by Education Code section 47605 [b][f], which requires that “each employee of the
school furnish the school with a criminal record summary”.

All employees must have Live Scan fingerprint results on file with Feather River Charter School. Proof of Live
Scan fingerprinting is a requirement of employment and the results must be provided to Feather River Charter
School prior to the first day of work. Live Scan fingerprinting will be required of all job applicants, employees,
and volunteers as required by California and federal law. Background checks may also be required of employees
whose job duties involve care of students, handling of money, valuables or confidential information, or as
otherwise deemed prudent by the school. These background checks are performed through a fingerprinting
service coordinated by the California Department of Justice (DOJ) and the Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI).
Any and all information obtained by Feather River Charter School may be taken into consideration in evaluating
one’s suitability for employment, promotion, reassignment, or retention as an Employee.

Feather River Charter School shall also request subsequent arrest notification from the Department of Justice
and take all necessary action based upon such further notification.

Feather River Charter School may occasionally find it necessary to investigate current employees, where
behavior or other relevant circumstances raise questions concerning work performance, reliability, honesty,
trustworthiness, or potential threat to the safety of coworkers, students or others. Employee investigations
may, where appropriate, include credit reports and investigations of criminal records, including appropriate
inquiries about any arrest for which the employee is out on bail. In the event that a background check is
conducted, Feather River Charter School will comply with the federal Fair Credit Reporting Act and applicable
state laws, including providing the employee with any required notices and forms. Employees subject to an
investigation are required to cooperate with Feather River Charter School’s lawful efforts to obtain relevant
information, and may be disciplined up to and including suspension without pay and/or termination for failure
to do so.

Employees with adverse background information (such as certain specific criminal conviction) may be
ineligible for employment with Feather River Charter School.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Child abuse reporting law (Penal Code Section 11166) requires that a Feather River Charter School employee
who has reason to believe that a child has been subjected to abuse, report the incident to the proper
authorities.

At Feather River Charter School, protecting children from child abuse is a major priority. Each year the
administration sets aside time to meet with staff to discuss child abuse indicators and to remind teachers of
the procedures to follow when abuse is suspected.

Employees of Feather River Charter School are familiar with Penal Code Section 11166 and understand the
requirement that certificated and classified personnel report suspected child abuse immediately or as soon as
practically possible to Children’s Protective Services by telephone. They are aware that a call must be
followed within at least 36 hours by a written report to the child protective agency.

All staff is aware of the location of a Child Abuse Information Folder that is kept on file and updated regularly.
It includes informational literature, guidelines for recognizing abuse and specific directions for reporting it.

The determination as to who should be contacted will depend greatly upon the situation at hand. The local
law enforcement agency will dispatch a unit to the school as soon as possible. Children’s services may take
much longer to respond. School personnel should always take into consideration the severity of the abuse
and the extent to which the student’s safety is at risk.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

The requirements of school personnel and the identification and reporting of known or suspected child abuse
to a protective agency is mandated by the State of California Penal Code. In fact, failure to do so on the part
of school personnel could lead to penalties which might be imposed on these individuals. Feather River
Charter School board policies are continually updated to reflect appropriate legislation. Excerpts from the
California Penal Code and Feather River Charter School Board Policy are presented below.

From California Penal Code Section 11166

...any child care custodian, health practitioner, or employee of a child protective agency who has
knowledge or observes a child in his or her professional capacity within the scope of his or her
employment whom he or she knows or reasonably suspects has been the victim of child abuse shall
report the known or suspected instance of child abuse to a child protective agency immediately or as
soon as practically possible by telephone and shall prepare and send a written report thereof within 36
hours of receiving the information concerning the incident.

Feather River Charter School
— Child Abuse Prevention Programs

Recognizing that our responsibility to students includes the protection of their physical and mental
well-being, the Governing Board desires to provide whatever opportunities or resources may be
available for the prevention of child abuse.

The Board agrees with the Legislature that:

1. Child abuse and neglect is a severe and increasing problem in California.

2. School districts and preschools are able to provide an environment for training of children, parents,
and all school district staff.

3. Primary prevention programs in the school districts are an effective and cost-efficient method of
reducing the incidence of child abuse and neglect and for promoting healthy family environments.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Feather River Charter School
— Child Abuse Prevention Programs (Continued)

The Executive Director shall explore funding and assistance available for the establishment of programs
directed toward preventing the occurrence of child abuse, including physical abuse, sexual assault, and
child neglect, and reducing the general vulnerability of children, including coordination with and
training for parents and school staff.

Parents shall be given notice of, and may refuse to have their children participate in, prevention
training program.

Feather River Charter School
— Child Abuse and Neglect

Duty to Report

Certificated employees and classified employees trained in child abuse identification and reporting
shall report known or suspected child abuse to a child protective agency by telephone immediately or
as soon as practically possible and in writing within thirty-six hours. The reporting duties are individual
and cannot be delegated to another individual.

Definitions
1. “Child Abuse,” as defined by law, pursuant to Penal Code 273 and 11165, and for purposes of
this regulation includes the following:

a. Physical abuse resulting in a non-accidental physical injury.

b. Physical neglect, including both severe and general neglect, resulting in negligent
treatment or maltreatment of a child.

C. Sexual abuse including both sexual assault and sexual exploitation.

d. Emotional abuse and emotional deprivation including willful cruelty or unjustifiable
punishment.

e. Severe corporal punishment.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Feather River Charter School
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

10

2.

” u

“Mandated Reporters” are those people defined by law as “child care custodian,” “medical
practitioners” and non-medical practitioners” and include virtually all school employees. The
following school personnel are required to report:

Teachers, administrators, supervisors of child welfare and attendance, certificated pupil
personnel employees, employees of a child care institution, head start teachers, school
psychologists, licensed nurses, counselors, presenters of child abuse prevention programs and
those instructional aides or other classified employees trained in child abuse reporting.

“Child Protective Agencies” are those law enforcements and child protective services
responsible for investigating child abuse reports, including the local police or sheriff
department, county welfare or juvenile probation department and child protective services.

“Reasonable Suspicion” means that it is objectively reasonable for a person to entertain such a
suspicion, based upon facts that could cause a reasonable person in a like position, drawing

when appropriate on his/her training and experience, to suspect child abuse. (California Penal
Code 11166)

Reporting Procedures

1.

To report known or suspected child abuse, any employee (as defined above) shall report by
telephone to the local child protective agency.

The telephone report must be made immediately, or as soon as practically possible, upon
suspicion. The verbal report will include:

The name of the person making the report.

The name of the child.

The present location of the child.

The nature and extent of any injury.

Any other information requested by the child protective agency, including the
information that led the mandated reporter to suspect child abuse.

® oo oo



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Feather River Charter School
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

At the time the verbal report is made, the mandated reporter shall note the name of the official
contacted, the date and time contacted, and any instructions or advice received.

2. Within thirty-six (36) hours of making the telephone report, the mandated reporter will
complete and mail a written report to the local child protective agency.

The written report shall include completion of the required standard Department of Justice
form (DOJ SS 8572).

The mandated reporter may request and receive copies of the appropriate form either from the
school district or directly from the local child protective agency.

Detailed instructions for completion of the form are on the back sheet of the form. Reporters
may request assistance from the site administrator in completing and mailing the form;
however, the mandated reporter is still responsible for ensuring that the written report is
correctly filed.

3. Employees reporting child abuse to a child protective agency are encouraged, but not required,
to notify the site administrator or designee as soon as possible after the initial verbal report by
telephone. The site administration, when notified, shall inform the Executive Director.

Administrators so notified shall provide the mandated reporter with any assistance necessary
to ensure that the verbal or written reporting procedures are carried out according to state law
and district regulations. If requested by the mandated reporter, the Executive Director may
assist in the completion and filing of these forms.

Legal Responsibility and Liability

1. Mandated reporters have absolute immunity. School employees required to report are not
civilly or criminally liable for filing a required or authorized report of known or suspected child
abuse.

11



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Feather River Charter School
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

12

2. A mandated reporter who fails to report an instance of child abuse, which he/she knows to
exist or reasonably should know to exist, is guilty of a misdemeanor and is punishable by
confinement in jail for a term not to exceed six (6) months or by a fine of not more than one
thousand dollars ($1,000) or both. The mandated reporter may also be held civilly liable for
damages for any injury to the child after a failure to report.

3. When two (2) or more persons who are required to report jointly, have knowledge of suspected
instance of child abuse, and when there is agreement, and a single report may be made and
signed by the person selected. However, if any person who knows or should know that the
person designated to report failed to do so, that person then has a duty to make the report.

4, The duty to report child abuse is an individual duty and no supervisor or administrator may
impede or inhibit such reporting duties. Furthermore, no person making such a report shall be
subject to any sanction.

Release of Child to Peace Officer

When a child is released to a peace officer and taken into custody as a victim of suspected child abuse,
the Executive Director shall not notify the parent or guardian as required in other instances of removal
of a child from school, but rather shall provide the peace officer with the address and telephone
number of the child’s parent or guardian.

It is the responsibility of the peace officer to notify the parent or guardian of the situation. Peace
officers will be asked to sign an appropriate release or acceptance of responsibility form (cf. 5145.11 —
Questioning and Apprehension).



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6

Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

Feather River Charter School
— Child Abuse and Neglect (Continued)

When School Employees are Accused of Child Abuse

Regardless of who child abusers may be, the major responsibilities of mandated reporters are to (1) identify
incidents of suspected child abuse, and (2) comply with laws requiring reporting of suspected abuse to the
proper authorities. Determining whether or not the suspected abuse actually occurred is not the
responsibility of the school employee. Such determination and follow-up investigation will be made by a child
protective agency.

Parent/guardians or members of the public accusing school employees of child abuse should be made aware
of the ramifications of making false reports and should be provided with information regarding child abuse
and child abuse reporting.

Pending the outcome of an investigation by a child protective agency and prior to the filing of formal charges,
the employee may be subject to reassignment or a paid leave of absence.

Disciplinary action resulting from the filing of formal charges or upon conviction shall be in accordance with

district policies, regulations and/or collective bargaining agreements. The Executive Director or designee
should consult with legal counsel in implementing either suspension or dismissal.

13



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section C: Emergency/Disaster Plans - Ed Code 32287; CCR Title 8, Sec 3220 ADA

Part 1: General Information — Disaster

Feather River Charter School will take all necessary measures to keep students, staff and visitors safe in the
event of a disaster. The following sections of this plan outline basic responsibilities for all staff for specific
incidents

The Feather River Charter School has developed a Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Plan
that outlines in more detail, specific responsibilities for Emergency Response Teams at this school.

This Emergency Action Plan is being developed to provide information to the staff at Feather River Charter
School to ensure pertinent information is available in the case of an incident that warrants a response. It is
written in accordance with California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Section 3220 which outlines the components
required for a plan. There are also components of the Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS)
and National Incident Management System (NIMS), including the Incident Command System incorporated in
this plan. The purpose for the inclusion is that while Feather River Charter School may not have students on
site, it will serve as an Emergency Operations Center if a multi-site incident occurs and support is needed for
school or local community. At that time, the role of Feather River Charter School would be to serve as a resource
and clearinghouse for information.

The plan is developed with a multi-hazard perspective to make it applicable to the widest range of emergencies
and disasters, both natural and human caused. However, Administrators retain the flexibility to modify
procedures and/or organization structure as necessary to accomplish the emergency response and recovery
missions in the context of a particular hazard scenario.

The individual(s) responsible for implementation of this plan or to contact for any clarification is:

Name: Jenell Sherman Department: Executive Director
Phone: 916-532-5923 Email: jenell@inspireschools.org
Name: Allie Suydam Department: Assistant Director
Phone: (916) 204-7744 Email: allie@featherrivercharter.org

Plan Approval:

Name of Responsible Party Title

Signature Date

14


http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
http://www.dir.ca.gov/Title8/3220.html
mailto:jenell@inspireschools.org
mailto:kristinan@inspireschools.org

RECORD OF DISTRIBUTION

Plan #

Office/Department

Representative

Signature

15




EMERGENCY TELEPHONE NUMBERS

FACILITY EMERGENCY NUMBERS

1. Emergency Operations Center Students primarily school at home.
(Managing Director’s) Parents would use local emergency
information pertaining to where they
live.

2. Alternate Location Students primarily school at home.

(Office phone #) Parents would use local emergency
information pertaining to where they
live.

LOCAL AGENCIES/OTHERS

1) Local Police Students primarily school at home. Parents
would use local emergency information
pertaining to where they live.

2) Local Fire Students primarily school at home. Parents
would use local emergency information
pertaining to where they live.

3) American Red Cross (916) 993-7070

4) Electric Utility Company Students primarily school at home. Parents
would use local emergency information

pertaining to where they live.

5) Local Gas Company Students primarily school at home. Parents
would use local emergency information
pertaining to where they live.

6) Local Water Company Students primarily school at home. Parents
would use local emergency information

pertaining to where they live.

In the event of a major emergency or disaster, the 9-1-1 emergency system may not
function because of traffic overload. If you have a situation requiring immediate aid from
police, fire or medical personnel you should try to use the 9-1-1 number first for
immediate aid.



INTRUSION AND/OR FIRE ALARMS

Students learn primarily at home. 9-1-1 should be called in an emergency.

PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

A key component to this plan is the Incident Command System (ICS). The five basic functions of: Management,
Operations, Logistics, Planning/Intelligence and Finance/Administration must remain consistent, but the
formation of the teams within those sections can be flexible to meet each school’s needs.

To properly complete the EOP, the school needs to: (1) Assign roles for Management staff and Section Chiefs
(2) form the site emergency teams, (3) provide the appropriate training for all staff (4) conduct exercises to test
the plan, and (5) update the plans as needed.

Employees shall be offered training on the specifics of this plan when it is initially developed and when new
employees are hired. Employees should be retrained when the plan changes due to a change in the layout or
design of the facility, when new equipment, hazardous materials, or processes are introduced that affect
evacuation routes, or when new types of hazards are introduced that require special actions. It would also be
helpful to provide annual awareness training as a reminder. General training for employees should address the
following:

- Individual roles and responsibilities.

- Threats, hazards, and protective actions.

- Notification, warning, and communications procedures.
- Emergency response procedures.

- Evacuation, shelter, and accountability procedures.

- Location and use of common emergency equipment.

- Emergency shutdown procedures.

Additional training may also need to be provided (i.e. first-aid procedures, portable fire extinguisher use, etc.)
depending on the responsibilities allocated employees in the plan.

Once the emergency action plan has been reviewed with employees and everyone has had the proper training,
it is a good idea to hold practice drills as often as necessary to keep employees prepared. Include outside
resources such as fire and police departments when possible. After each drill, gather management and
employees to evaluate the effectiveness of the drill. Identify the strengths and weaknesses of your plan and
work to improve it.

ABOUT EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS

Through the years, those agencies responsible for disaster response have come up with several
different models for coordinating that response. Although these models differ, they share a common
background: The Incident Command System (ICS). As a member of your school’s emergency response
team, you will need to be familiar with ICS and the emergency management systems used in
California.

18



Incident Command System (ICS) Developed in the 1970’s by Southern California Fire Protection
Agencies, this system was designed to coordinate multi-jurisdictional response. The beauty of ICS is
that it is based upon common terminology and on the division of response activities into five
functional units that essentially eliminates the possibility of the duplication of efforts. ICS became the
model for the state’s system.

Standardized Emergency Management System (SEMS) Developed in response to the lack of agency
and multi-jurisdictional coordination during the Oakland Fires of 1991, SEMS became the state-wide
standard for coordinated emergency response. All agencies involved in emergency response are
legally required to use SEMS. In fact, the STATE reimbursement of local costs incurred for emergency
response/recovery is tied to the use of SEMS.

National Incident Management System (NIMS) After the national tragedy on September 11, 2001, it
became clear that the country needed an emergency response system to address incidents that
affected the entire nation. The national government looked at the system used in California and used
it as a model to develop a national response system called NIMS. It is a FEMA approved emergency
response system and will become the national model. National compliance was expected by 2006 but
is still in progress. FEDERAL funding for emergency response/recovery grants is tied to the use of
NIMS.

SCHOOL RESPONSE

In 1994 the State of California legislators passed the Petris Bill. This bill requires schools (who are considered to
be special districts) to use the SEMS model in planning for, and responding to, school emergencies and disasters.
HOMELAND SECURITY PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVE HSPD-5, which mandated the development and
implementation of NIMS, now requires schools to integrate that system into their plans as well.

WHAT SPECIFIC LAWS* APPLY TO SCHOOLS

THE FIELD ACT
(Garrison Act and Riley Act)

Sets building code standards for construction and remodeling of public schools and assigns the responsibility
for assuring building code compliance to the Division of the State Architect.

THE KATZ ACT
Requires schools to establish an earthquake emergency system:

- Develop a disaster plan

- Conduct periodic drop and cover drills, evacuation procedures and emergency response actions—once
each quarter in elementary schools and once each semester in secondary schools

- Provide training to students and staff in emergency response procedures

- Be prepared to have your school serve as a possible public shelter

- Take mitigation measures to ensure the safety of students and staff—such as securing equipment and
furniture.

19



PUBLIC EMPLOYEES ARE DISASTER SERVICE WORKERS
California Government Code Section 3100

All school employees are considered disaster service workers when:

o Alocal emergency has been proclaimed
o A state emergency has been proclaimed
or,
o Afederal disaster declaration has been made

NOTE: During a declared disaster, school employees are required, by law, to serve as disaster service workers

and cannot leave their school site until formally released.

o Certificated employees risk losing their teaching credentials
o Classified employees may be charged with a misdemeanor

*This is not a legal opinion, confirmation is required determine if your organization is exempt from any
regulations targeting schools. The assumption is that the laws apply to all public schools.

POST-DISASTER SHELTERS

Schools are required by both federal statute and state regulation to be available for shelters
following a disaster.

o The American Red Cross has access to schools to set up shelters
o Local governments have access to schools to set up shelters
o Plan and make arrangements in advance to assure that you are prepared.

THE PETRIS BILL
California Government Code Section 8607

Requires schools to respond to disasters using the Standardized Emergency
Management System (SEMS) by December 1996.

ICS - (Incident Command System) organizing response efforts into five basic functions: Management,

Operations, Logistics, Planning/Intelligence and Finance/Administration

EOC - (Emergency Operations Center) setting up a central area of control using the five basic functions

* Coordinate all efforts with the operational area (county) EOC, city EOC and county office of education
EOC

* Incorporation of SEMS into all school plans, training and drills

* Documentation of the use of SEMS during an actual emergency

20



21

HOMELAND SECURITY PRESIDENTIAL DIRECTIVE HSPD-5
February 28, 2003

On February 28, 2003, President George W. Bush issued Homeland Security Presidential Directive
5 (HSPD-5). HSPD-5 directed the Secretary of Homeland Security to develop and administer a
National Incident Management System (NIMS).

HSPD-5 requires Federal departments and agencies to make the adoption of NIMS by state and
local organizations a condition for Federal preparedness assistance (grants, contracts and other
activities) by Fiscal Year 2005.

NIMS training requirements: All school employees (as designated Disaster Services Workers) are
to complete 1CS100, ICS200 and 1S700.)

USING SEMS AND NIMS IN YOUR SCHOOL - AN OVERVIEW

Within SEMS and NIMS, an emergency response organization, known as the Incident Command
System, consists of five Sections:

Management: responsible for policymaking with respect to disaster planning and preparedness
and for the overall coordination of emergency response and recovery activities. This section has
four members, the EOC Director/Incident Commander (IC), the Public Information Officer (PIO),
the Safety Officer, and the Liaison Officer (LO). In short: they are the leaders.

Planning/Intelligence: responsible for creating the action plans and checklists that will be used
by all of the sections during crisis response and recovery. The section is comprised of two teams:
the Situation Status Team and the Documentation Team. During an emergency, these teams
gather, analyze, disseminate, and record information critical to the functioning of the
Management Section. Planning/Intelligence are often referred to as the thinkers.

Operations: responsible for response preparedness of the Assembly/Shelter, Communications,
Crisis Intervention, Light Search and Rescue, First Aid, Student Release/Staff Accounting, and
Maintenance/Fire/Site Security Teams. During a disaster, this section directs response activities
of all of these teams and coordinates that response with the Management Section. These folks
represent the doers.

Logistics: prior to a disaster, this section is in charge of creating a transportation plan, and
ensuring that there are adequate supplies of food, water, and equipment for crisis response.
During an emergency, the section’s two teams, the Supplies/Staffing Team and the
Transportation Team provide services, personnel, equipment, materials, and facilities, as needed.
They are the getters.

Finance/Administration: in charge of creating policies and procedures for documenting costs
associated with emergency response. This section has one team, called the Recordkeeping Team.
During a disaster, they activate contracts with vendors, keep time records, track receipts, and
account for expenditures. Their efforts make it possible for schools to reclaim costs associated
with response and recovery activities from the state. They also gather all paperwork and



22

documentation at the end of the incident for inclusion in the After Action Report (AAR). They are
called the payers.

THE EMERGENCY OPERATIONS CENTER

During an emergency, the Management Section gathers together in an area/room to set-up a
“command center” also known as the Emergency Operations Center (EOC). In the EOC, the
Management Section makes decisions affecting response activities based upon information
coming in from the Section Chiefs.

A Word About Unified Command

The control of and response to emergencies is the sole responsibility of the site teams until
first responders arrive. Once they arrive, incident command transitions to “Unified
Command.” This transition is immediately facilitated by an on-site briefing of first responders
by the Management Staff and Section Chiefs. Following the initial briefing, the site’s Incident
Commander will begin to work closely with representatives of each response agency to plan
and carry out response activities. Other employees may be asked to participate as well,
depending upon the incident at hand and the available staffing of emergency responders. All
staff should be prepared to participate if necessary.

In the EOC, this means that first responder representatives will essentially be running
response activities in consultation with the organization’s Management Staff and Section
Chiefs. In the field, Team Leaders and Team Members will work alongside first response teams,
unless the EOC Director/Incident Commander has deemed it is too dangerous or unsafe for
them to do so. Remember, first responders are professionals. Work with them and take your
cues from them.
The Dual Role of the School Office

® The School must organize to respond to incidents that occur at their location

— Ensure that the School has a functional Emergency Action Plan

— Ensure that School staff are trained and well prepared

e The School office must also organize to provide support when the incident happens at school sites
within the organization

Provide leadership

— Provide assistance with response and recovery, when needed

Ensure that school staff are trained and well prepared

Ensure that each school has a functional Emergency Operations Plan

INCIDENT COMMAND SYSTEM AND DIVISION OF LABOR

I MANAGEMENT I
I Jenell Sherman I

Logistics Planning/ Finance/
Kirsten Graat Intelligence Administration

Kristi Nicosia Darcy Belleza




Divisions of Labor
Each one of the five functions have certain roles and responsibilities during a disaster or school emergency. The
Management Section oversees response activities in consultation with the Chiefs of the Operations, Logistics,

Planning/Intelligence, and Administration/Finance Sections. Each of these sections in turn, has a team or teams
tasked with implementing very specific components of the emergency response plan.

Students primarily learn at home. No learning center/resource center.

23



STAFF ROSTER

Julie Haycock

Jenell Sherman

Kristi Nicosia

Allie Suydam

Shannon Breckenridge
Darcy Belleza

Amy Frydenlund

Sheryl Adler-Eldridge
Tracy Amano

Anna Bellon

Cheri Black
Gregory Brown
Teresa Brown
Elvira Burlingham
Patricia Canepa
Carolyn Chandler-Ebert
Nancy Christiansen
Michele Cowden Applebee
Sarah Davis

Elvira DiBrigit

Eva Dwyer

Deanna Dyer
Leslie Fisher
Monica Galvan
Dianna Gartner
Gina Gascon

Tori Greer

Theresa Herning
Lynn Hester
Michelle Hite

Keri Hodgson
Alicia Insinna

Julia Jones

Twa'Lea Jordan
Audra Koopmans
Dana Krieshok
Heather Largent
Beth LeMasters
Idania Little
Janelle Martinez

Monica Mendez
Tracy Millett
Valerie Myrick
Gina Osak

Surya Oshea
Jeneka Ossa
Susan Pagel
Laura Quezada
Valerie Rodriguez
Elizabeth Schamp
Lydia Schreiber
Lorraine Sewell
Carey Shaw
Rebecca Smithhart
Mirian Song
James Spence
Seren Stewart
Heather Stokhaug
Christie Syftestad
Karen Trexler
Camille Vocker
Teresa Vuinovic
Claire Walker
Deborah Woodward

24




The following Standard Operating Procedures have been developed to address a multitude of incidents that could occur at a school
office or student location. This is a living document that should be updated and modified as additional information is acquired. A
hazard assessment should be conducted to identify specific areas of concern for your location in order to maximize the number of
response situations included in this plan.

EVACUATION PROCEDURES

Earthquakes, fire, bomb threats, hazardous chemical spill, or an incident on or near campus are just a few
examples of an emergency incident situation that may require that portions of a building or an entire school
building be evacuated.

The building Emergency Preparedness Committee should identify evacuation areas on site and alternative off-
sites areas should it be necessary to evacuate.

A safe evacuation route must be able to accommodate moving a large number of people, while not exposing
employees to danger. The location and type of emergency necessitates evaluation and possible adjustments to
the usual evacuation routes. This evaluation will determine if the building should be evacuated in segments or
if stationing a person at certain exits is necessary so that staff can be re-routed away from danger.

The movement of staff out of buildings requires accounting for every employee. In order to account for staff,
work area supervisors must have available employee lists so that missing or extra staff can be reported
immediately to the Command Posts (school; law enforcement; fire). When evacuating their work area, work
site supervisors must bring with them the location roster and emergency supplies.

During an evacuation, the following procedures must be followed:
v Move staff to the designated Evacuation Area.

Take roll by completing Staff Accountability Form
Runners collect Staff Accountability Report from classroom or work areas.

EUEN

If employee has an assignment on Emergency Management Team Organizational Chart, report to the
Command Post (CP) and sign in.

&

Report to Incident Commander (IC) for briefing and assignment.

LOCKDOWN/REVERSE EVACUATION PROCEDURES

Some emergencies may prevent safe evacuation and require steps to isolate staff from danger by instituting a
lockdown. Other emergencies may occur prior to the work day, during break or lunch periods, or after the work
day. When staff may be outside the school building or work site, a reverse evacuation should be initiated.

All employees and must be familiar with the specific actions they must take during a lockdown or reverse
evacuation. Discussions, training, and practice drills are essential to make these procedures workable.
In the event of a lockdown or reverse evacuation, work area supervisors must utilize the following procedures:

v If outside, move to the nearest building or room providing it is a safe route and that you are not moving
in the direction of danger.

If inside, stay inside.

Lock door(s) to buildings and or work areas.

If possible, quickly close all windows and then move away from the windows.
Use caution when allowing late reporting staff to enter into a classroom.

NENENENEN

Have staff hide, if appropriate.
25



v Take roll using Staff Accountability Form.

Report any “extra” staff that sought cover in your work area. Take this form with you if you are directed by the
Incident Commander to evacuate your work area at a later time.
v/ Await further instructions from the Incident Commander via public address system, phone or an e-mail
notification to all staff.
v DO NOT use the telephone to call out as all lines must be keep open, unless there is a dire emergency in
your work area.
v Remain in the room/office until a member of the Emergency Management Team or a law enforcement
officer arrives with directions.

PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING A “SIZE-UP”

A “SIZE-UP” is a nine-step continual data gathering process that determines if it is safe to perform a certain
emergency task, whether fire suppression, search and rescue, facilities assessment, etc. A size-up enables first
responders to make decisions and respond appropriately in the areas of greatest need. The nine steps in a
“size-up” are:

1. Gather Facts:
e What has happened?

How many people are involved?

What is the current situation?

Does the time of day or week affect this situation?

Do weather conditions affect the situation (e.g. forecast, temperature, wind, rain)?
What type(s) of structures are involved?

Are buildings occupied? If yes, how many?

Are there special considerations involved (e.g. children, elderly, disabled)?

Are hazardous materials involved at or near the situation?

Are other types of hazards likely to be involved?

2. Assess and Communicate the Damage:
o Take alap around each building and try to determine what has happened, what is happening now, and

what may happen next.
e Are normal communications channels functioning (e.g. ICS, radios, e-mail, phones)?

3. Consider Probabilities:
e What is likely to happen?
e What is the worst-case scenario?

4, Assess Your Own Situation:
e Areyouinimmediate danger?
e Have you been trained to handle this situation?
e What resources are available which can assist with your current situation?

5. Establish Priorities:
e Are lives at risk? Remember, life safety is the first priority!

26



e (Can you and available resources handle this situation SAFELY without putting others at risk?
® Are there more pressing needs at the moment? If yes, what are they?

6. Make Decisions:
® Base decisions on the answers to Steps 1 through 3 and the priorities that your team has established.
o Where will deployment of resources do the most good while maintaining an adequate margin of safety?

7. Develop an INCIDENT ACTION PLAN:
e Develop a plan that will help you accomplish your priorities.
e Simple plans may be verbal, but more complex plans should always be written.
e Determine how personnel and other resources should be deployed.

8. Take Action:
e Execute your plan, documenting deviations and status changes so that you can accurately report the
situation to first responders, the Incident Command Post, the EOC, or other agencies that respond to the
scene (e.g. fire, law enforcement, medical, media, coroner, parents).

9. Evaluate Progress:
e At reasonable intervals, evaluate progress in accomplishing the objectives in the plan of action
(Incident Action Plan) to determine what is working and what changes you may have to make to stabilize
the situation

BOMB THREAT

TELEPHONE BOMB THREAT
e During the call, complete the bomb threat checklist found on the next page.
e Stay on the line with the caller as long as possible, continuing to try and obtain more information about
the threat.
Have someone else call 911 (dial 9 is to obtain outside line) and notify the School office.
Without using portable radios or cell phones, organize a meeting with the school’s Emergency
Management Team (EMT). Radio and cell phone usage can resume once you are 300 feet away from
school premises as a bomb could be hidden outside.
If necessary, implement the ICS with only those positions deemed necessary.
Assign a recorder to document events as they take place.
Any search of the site should be done under the direction of law enforcement.
The decision to evacuate the location is the responsibility of the Executive Director or his/her designee.
If an evacuation is ordered, do not touch anything while leaving the building. Report any suspicious
items to the Incident Commander.
Follow off-site evacuation procedures.
If the caller identifies a location where the device has been placed, avoid evacuating through the
identified area.
e EMT members responsible for off-site evacuation and student accounting should begin making
preparations for an orderly transition of the students/staff to the evacuation site.
e [f an announcement is made over the school PA to evacuate, remind teachers and site supervisors to
bring their class or work area rosters and emergency supplies.

27



e When the off-site evacuation location is reached, account for all students and staff. Report missing
students/staff to the Incident Commander. The Incident Commander will report missing students/staff
to the law enforcement agency assisting with the evacuation.

e Re-entry onto the school campus can only take place at the direction of Incident Commander.

E-MAIL BOMB THREAT
® Save the e-mail message.
e Print a copy of the message and give to the Executive Director, law enforcement, and the Technology
Department.
e Follow applicable procedures from above.

28



BOMB THREAT REPORT FORM:

School:

This form will help you obtain the necessary information from the caller. Keep this information near the
phone.

Date: Time: AM PM

Exact words of the person placing call:

QUESTIONS TO ASK:
1.) When is the bomb going to explode?

2.) Where is the bomb right now?

3.) What kind of bomb is it?

4.) What does it look like?

5.) Why did you place the bomb?

6.) What will prevent you from doing this?

7.) What is your name? (He/she may inadvertently give it)

TRY TO DETERMINE THE FOLLOWING: (Circle all that apply)
Caller Description: Male Female Adult Juvenile Middle Aged Old

Voice: Loud Soft High-pitch Deep Raspy Pleasant Intoxicated
Accent: Local Non-Local Foreign Region Other:
Speech: Fast  Slow Distinct Distorted Stutter Nasal Slurred Lisp
Language: Excellent Good Fair Poor Foul Other:
Manner: Calm Angry Rational Irrational Coherent Incoherent Deliberate  Emotional
Righteous Laughing Intoxicated
Background Noises: Office Machines  Factory Machines  Trains Animals Music Quiet Voices
Airplanes  Street Traffic Party Atmosphere Other:

NOTIFY THE FOLLOWING PERSON(S):
Do not panic and do not discuss the information you have received except with the above-named persons.

Person receiving the Bomb Threat: _ at telephone

number

29



Caller ID returned the following number:

Police contacted by:

Time:

Date:

Search was made for the bomb: Y N Evacuation was conducted: Y N

FIRE/EXPLOSION

Apart from arson, major causes of fires include improper handling and storage of flammable liquids, overloaded
electrical outlets, and excessive accumulation of rubbish.

FIRE DRILL PROCEDURES

NO advance notice of fire drills should be given to building occupants.

All drills shall be conducted using the same procedures that would be followed in case of an actual fire.
Fire drills should be conducted at different hours of the day.

An appropriate number of staff members should know how to reset the fire alarm.

Immediately after the alarm has sounded for the drill, call the Fire Department non-emergency number
to advise that this is only a drill.

Keep documentation for each drill and record notable events for future consideration/improvement.

POSTING OF EVACUATION ROUTES

A map, showing the primary and secondary evacuation routes shall be posted inside each room. The
evacuation map shall have the office location highlighted and be placed on the wall so that an arrow
indicating the exit route is pointing in the direction of the exit from the room.

The map shall be labeled “EVACUATION PLAN” in bold letters and prominently posted in hallways,
offices, bathrooms, cafeterias, lounges.

FIRE/EXPLOSION CHECKLIST

e |f fire or smoke is detected, or a burning odor is sensed, pull the closest fire alarm to initiate building

evacuation procedures.
Call 911 to report all known information about the incident.
Site administration should assign a recorder to begin documentation of the event.
Before leaving a work area, the work area supervisor or their designee should make sure all windows are
closed.
Procedures for anyone with special-needs should be planned in advance and practiced.
Administration should initiate the Incident Command System (ICS) and the designee assumes the role of
the Incident Commander (IC) and establishes a Command Post staging area.
Supervisors are to complete the Staff Accountability Report.
Data collected from the Staff Accountability Form will determine if the Incident Commander needs to
activate additional portions of the ICS, such as First Aid, Medical, Search and Locate/Rescue, etc.
Establish contact with fire and law enforcement agencies.
The fire department will give clearance to site administration when it is OK for staff to re-enter the
building or an alternative plan if the building will not be able to be occupied.

EARTHQUAKE

An earthquake’s effect on facilities will vary from building to building. Fire alarm or sprinkler systems may be
activated by the shaking. Elevators and stairways will need to be inspected for damage before they can be used.
Another major threat during an earthquake is from falling objects and debris. Injuries may be sustained during

30



the earthquake while evacuating the building(s) or upon re-entry. Use the following guidelines/procedures to
manage the incident:

IF INDOORS
e DROP, COVER AND HOLD ON by getting under a desk or table. Protect eyes, head and neck.
® Move away from windows and objects that could fall.
e Stay under desk or table until shaking stops.
e Listen for emergency instructions.
e FEvacuate building if necessary and stay away from buildings, utility poles and large objects while

transferring to the assembly area.

e Account for all staff using Staff Accountability Report.
IF OUTDOORS
e Move away from buildings, utility poles and large objects.
Avoid all downed electrical lines.
e Do not touch any wire or any metal objects.
e Sit down in a safe area.
® Move to assembly area and begin accounting for all staff.
IN VEHICLE:
e Stop vehicle in a safe location away from power lines, overpasses or buildings.
e Stay in vehicle and establish radio contact with School office.

GENERAL GUIDELINES (AFTER THE QUAKE):

Be prepared for aftershocks and ground motion.

Evaluate immediate area for earthquake related hazards (fire, building collapse, gas leaks, downed
electrical lines, wires, etc.).

Account for all staff.

Activate necessary portions of the ICS in collaboration with the site emergency team.

Determine injuries and provide basic first aid via Medical/First Aid Group.

Call 911 if there is a major emergency that is life threatening. You may not get a response from 911 if a
major disaster has occurred affecting a large local area. As we have been warned, we may be on our
own for several hours or days.

Establish communication with your Supervisor and Incident Commander

Assist any law enforcement or fire units that may respond to your site.

Control internal and external communications, including contact with school sites and city agencies by
use of telephones, cell phones, radios, runners, e-mail, text messages, or other means.

Refer all media inquiries to the PIO.

In communication with the school sites, assess the overall situation, how long students and staff might
be at school, how supplies might be distributed and sheltering of students and staff.

SHOOTING/STABBINGS

No single warning sign can predict that a dangerous act will occur; however, certain warning signs may indicate
that someone is close to behaving in a way that is potentially dangerous to self and/or others. Imminent warning
signs usually are present as a sequence of overt, serious, or hostile behaviors or threats directed at peers, staff
(usually more than one staff member), as well as the person’s immediate family.

31



IMMINENT WARNING SIGNS REQUIRE AN IMMEDIATE RESPONSE AND MAY INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING

Physically fighting with peers or family members.

Hostile interactions with law enforcement that involve a number of recorded incidents.
Hostile interactions with staff and administration.

Destruction of property (school, home, community).

Severe rage for seemingly minor reasons.

Detailed (time, place and method) threats (written and/or oral) to harm or kill others.
Possession and/or use of firearms and other weapons.

Self-injurious behaviors or threats of suicide.

Is carrying a weapon, particularly a firearm, and has threatened to use it.

WHAT TO DO IF A SHOOTING/STABBING OCCURS AT THE SCHOOL OFFICE

The first indications of a shooting may include: sound of gunfire, loud cracking sounds, banging noises,
windows shattering, glass exploding, bullets ricocheting or a report of a stabbing incident on campus.
Call 911. Identify your address, and succinctly explain the emergency incident and exact location. Stay
on the line until the 911 dispatcher has all the information needed to respond to the situation.

Activate Incident Command System (ICS) with Emergency Management Team.

Establish Command Post and appoint Incident Commander and communicate location to law
enforcement and fire/rescue units.

Notify appropriate individuals, i.e. Administrators, Policy Group.

Provide information, when practicable, about the incident to staff via PA system, e-mail or by phone.
Account for all staff members by using phone or e-mail or other communication means. Attempt to
determine if the shooter/stabber is still on the work site.

Attempt to determine if the weapon has been found or secured.

Attempt to determine if the shooter/stabber has been identified.

Assign a liaison (preferably an administrator) to interface with law enforcement and fire department.
Liaison can supply law enforcement with radio or phone communication, phone numbers, maps, keys,
and other information deemed pertinent to the safe operation of the incident.

Gather witnesses in secure room for law enforcement questioning. DO NOT allow witnesses to talk to
one another (to protect the investigation). Assign staff to stay with witnesses until law enforcement
arrives.

Develop plan to evacuate staff to an off-site or alternate evacuation area should it be necessary to
evacuate the building.

Gather information of staff members involved in the incident.

Prepare written statements for telephone callers and media in cooperation with law enforcement and
the Executive Director. Can a message be placed on the website?

Provide a liaison representative for family members for any injured staff members.

Provide Crisis Response Team to provide counseling and to help deal with any psychological factors.

IF STAFF ARE OUTSIDE, THEY SHOULD BE TRAINED AND/OR INSTRUCTED TO

32

Move or crawl away from gunfire, trying to put barriers between you and the shooter.

Understand that many barriers may visually conceal a person from gunfire but may not be bulletproof.
Try to get behind or inside a building. Stay down and away from windows.

When reaching a relatively safe area, stay down and do not move. Do not peek or raise head.

Listen for directions from law enforcement.



Provide your name to work area supervisor who is accounting for all staff.
Help others by being calm and quiet.
Provide law enforcement with as much information as possible, such as:

V' Is suspect still on site and do you know current location?
Where was the specific location of occurrence?
Are there wounded staff members? How many?

NENEN

Description of all weapons (hand gun, shotgun, automatic, dangerous objects, explosive devices,
other).

Vv Describe sound and number of shots fired.

SCENE OF INCIDENT

The scene of an incident/crime shall be preserved.

With the exception of rescue and law enforcement personnel, no one is allowed to enter the immediate
area or touch anything.

Any witnesses, including staff members, should be held near the area of the incident and be made
available to law enforcement for questioning.

Law enforcement responding to the incident will coordinate activities at the scene of the incident and
finished, release the area to school officials when finished.

DEATH AND/OR SUICIDE

Death at a workplace is rare; however, you should be prepared in the event of a death whether it be caused by
earthquake, explosion, building collapse, fire, choking, heart attack, seizure, or an incident such as a
shooting/stabbing, fight, suicide, etc.

Organizations should also be prepared for the sudden, unexpected death of a staff member or a family member
that does not occur on the school campus (automobile accident, sudden death, drive by shooting, gang violence,

etc.).

Guidelines to utilize in the event of a death are outlined below.
DEATH OCCURS AT SCHOOL (student’s learn primarily at home)

33

Call 911. Identify your address and briefly outline the emergency and location on campus.

Notify the school administration.

Activate the Incident Command System if necessary and contact the school Emergency Management
Team. Assign staff as needed.

Notify the Managing Director’s office.

Isolate other staff from scene.

If there is a death, do not move body. Law enforcement will contact the coroner’s office so that the body
can be removed, and any personal items of the victim can be returned to family or secured as evidence.
DO NOT disturb or touch anything if the event is declared a crime scene.

Secure area with yellow caution tape and assign staff to guard area.

Gather all witnesses and place them in a secure location. Tell witnesses not to discuss any part of their
observations until law enforcement arrives to interview or release them. Assign staff to monitor
withesses.

Consider impact on staff. Activate the Crisis Response Team as appropriate.

If the deceased is an employee, the Executive Director must notify Cal-OSHA within the 8-hour time
requirement. Law enforcement or fire department may inform you they will contact Cal-OSHA; however,
the School still must make certain it calls Cal-OSHA.



o Monitor staff emotional responses. Following a death there may be:
v Self-referrals
v/ Parent referrals
v Reports and concerns expressed by relatives or good friends
v/ Students who have experienced a recent loss.
e Develop a list of students and staff members that are having emotional symptoms.
HOSTAGE SITUATIONS

In any hostage situation, the primary concern must be the safety of staff.

Individuals who take hostages are frequently disturbed and the key to dealing with them is to make every
attempt to avoid antagonizing them. Communication and demeanor with a hostage taker must be handled in a
non-threatening, non-joking manner, always remembering that it may take very little to cause an individual to
become violent.

IF THE OFFICE IS TAKEN HOSTAGE

n u

Do not use words such as “hostage,” “captives,” or “negotiate.”

Stay calm.

No heroics, challenges or confrontation.

Obey all commands.

When safe, call 911. Identify your work site and give the exact location in the building of the incident.
Stay on the phone until law enforcement arrives to assume control of the situation.

If possible, assign another staff member to notify the Site administrator.

If possible, initiate a work site lockdown to stabilize areas around the incident and make for an easier
evacuation.

The work site emergency team shall activate the Incident Command System and make needed
assignments including staging a Command Post (CP) and appointing an Incident Commander (IC).

If possible, the emergency team should provide law enforcement with a liaison from the work site. The
liaison can assist in providing name of IC, location of CP and obtaining maps, keys, radio and phone
numbers, etc.

Keep all radios, television sets, and computers turned off to minimize any possibility that suspect can
hear or see “NEWS REPORTS.”

Make an effort to establish rapport with suspect. Provide your first name. Find out his/her first name
and use first names, including those of other staff members involved in the situation. If you do not know
first names, refer to the hostages(s) as men, and women.

Be calm and patient and wait for help. Keep in mind that the average hostage incident lasts
approximately six (6) to eight (8) hours, and the average barricade incident lasts approximately three (3)
hours. TIME IS ON YOUR SIDE.

Anticipate a point of law enforcement entry, rescue and how suspects will be apprehended.

WHEN THE HOSTAGE LOCATION IS OTHER THAN AN OFFICE

34

Immediately call 911. Identify your address and the situation, providing the exact location of the
incident. STAY ON THE LINE UNTIL LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES.
While on the phone with the 911 dispatcher report the following if known:

v Number of suspect(s)
v Names(s) of suspect(s) (if known)



v/ Description of suspect(s):
> Male or Female

> Race
> Weight (Light; Lean; Heavy; Obese) stay away from using lbs.
> Height (short; medium; tall) avoid using feet/inches
> Hair
> Eyes
> Approximate age
> Description of clothing
> Anything special or unusual, like:
o Scars
Tattoos
o Burn marks
o Birthmarks
o Pierced body parts
o lJewelry
v/ Exact location of suspect (building, room) and include North, South, East or West in your directions.
v/ Approximate number of staff in hostage area.
v/ Are weapons or explosive devices involved?
v/ Have any shots been fired? If yes, describe sound and number of shots fired.
v/ Are there reports of any injuries or emergency medical needs (medication)? Describe exact location
and condition of victim(s).
v/ Are there any demands the suspect has made?
v Is there any other background information, past problems with suspect, demeanor, possible motive,

or vendettas against staff or particular staff member?

If the hostage situation is on one side of the building, law enforcement will likely want to enter from the other
side. Inform law enforcement exactly where the “Hostage Situation” is located and advise law enforcement
what you consider to be the best “other side” entrance for law enforcement response.

e If possible, assign another staff member to notify the Site Administrator.

WHILE WAITING FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT
e If you can safely communicate to other offices by phone, implement lockdown procedures. For this
situation, DO NOT set off any alarms as the bell may cause staff to panic and rush into a dangerous area.
DO NOT EVACUATE until instructed or escorted by law enforcement.
Complete Staff Accountability Report.

ONCE LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES
e Law enforcement will need assistance in identifying witnesses. Gather witnesses in a secure location but

do not let them talk with one another (to protect the investigation).

THE SITE EMERGENCY TEAM SHOULD MAKE PLANS TO
e Establish their Command Posts and assignment of necessary personnel.
e Record all events.
e Account for all staff.

35



® Prepare for a possible off-site evacuation route and location.
e Establish a media staging area.
e Alert Crisis Response Team for possible counseling of staff.

HOSTILE VISITOR

A hostile visitor could be an irate parent, a staff member, a neighbor, or an acquaintance of a staff member.
The situation may begin in the front office; however, the individual may bypass the office and go directly to the
target of his/her hostility. It is the responsibility of staff to protect staff, attempt to defuse the situation, and, if
necessary, notify law enforcement.

UNDERSTANDING NONVERBAL MESSAGES

Body language plays a role in communication. Nonverbal cues are especially crucial when dealing with a person
who is upset and potentially violent. Pay attention to signs that a person is angry or frightened. These include:
Trembling

Sweating

A red face

Crossed arms

Clenched jaw or fists

Shallow breathing

Glaring or avoiding eye contact

Pacing the floor

Sneering

Crying

Ranting

SEND THE RIGHT NONVERBAL MESSAGES
Don’t get too close. An angry or upset person feels threatened by someone who stands too close. Give the
person two to four feet distance from you.
Avoid doing any of the following:
e Glaring or staring at the visitor
e Threatening mannerisms such as clenched fists and a raised voice.
® Getting angry

Consider doing the following:

Be courteous and confident

Do not touch the individual

Protect yourself at all times

Find another staff member to join you or keep the meeting in an open area
Listen to the visitor, giving him/her the opportunity to vent

Do not disregard the person’s opinion or blame the person.

ATTEMPT TO USE PHRASES SUCH AS:
e What can we do to make this better?
e | understand the problem and | am concerned.
e We need to work together on this problem.

36



WHAT TO DO:

As soon as possible, call 911 and stay on the line. State your address, and exact location of hostile visitor.
Identify building by letter (A, B, C, D, etc.) or number and use directions (North, South, East or West) for
law enforcement as they enter the grounds. Give a description of the hostile visitor.

If possible, assign a staff member to meet law enforcement and direct them to the location.

The staff member should unlock any gate that makes access to campus easier and faster.

If possible, notify the Site Administrator.

If necessary, activate the Incident Command System, using only those parts of ICS as determined by the
information at hand. Expand ICS as needed.

Use staff members to keep staff away from the location of the hostile visitor.

CHEMICAL RELEASE/ HAZARDOUS MATERIAL SPILL
A chemical release or hazardous material spill could affect one classroom, an entire worksite or larger area.
HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OFFICE PREPARE?

The Emergency Management Teams should discuss and review plans to “Shelter in Place” or to
“Evacuate the Area” using an alternative evacuation staging area.

Staff should be trained to know what type of Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) and clothing to wear
when handling hazardous material. The type of PPE to be worn, if any, is contained in the Safety Data
Sheet (SDS).

Staff utilizing or handling any hazardous material, should know the symptoms of exposure, emergency
first aid and treatment for exposure.

All hazardous materials should be stored in a manner prescribed on the SDS.

HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OR DISTRICT RESPOND?

37

If a hazardous spill or chemical release occurs within any area of the School office, immediately notify
911. Inform the dispatcher of your school/address and a brief summary of the problem including the
name of the hazardous material/chemical, location of the spill and a report of any injuries, illnesses, fire,
explosion, etc.

Approach incident from upwind.

Stay clear of all spills (vapors, fumes, smoke, fire, possibility of explosion, other).

Notify Site Administrator.

Activate necessary portions of Incident Command System (ICS) and appoint Incident Commander.
Expand ICS as needed and make necessary assignments appropriate to incident.

Begin documentation of events.

The situation or advice from law enforcement, fire department or a hazardous materials unit deployed
to the scene of the spill will determine whether to “Shelter-In-Place” or to “Evacuate” the building. If
evacuation is ordered, instruct staff to always move crosswind and upwind. Never move downwind into
a chemical. To check wind direction, look at movement of trees or flag.

If “Sheltering-In-Place” and, if possible, shut off all air-conditioning and heating units. Close all windows
and door openings and try to seal gaps under doorways and windows with wet cloth or towels.

Close all shades or drapes. Instruct staff to stay away from windows.

If gas or vapors have entered the building, take shallow breaths through a cloth or towel.

Keep telephones lines clear for emergency calls.

If an evacuation is ordered, follow all instructions.



e Upon reaching alternative evacuation area, take head count and report missing or ill staff to Incident
Commander and/or law enforcement.

MEDICAL EMERGENCY
Occasionally a medical emergency will occur, and personnel must be prepared to respond quickly, effectively,
and efficiently.

SOME EMERGENCY PREVENTION/PREPAREDNESS GUIDELINES
e |Insist that all accidents be reported, even if no visible harm or injury occurred.
e Follow established procedures for issuing medication.

WHAT TO DO IF A MEDICAL EMERGENCY OCCURS
® Assess seriousness of injury and/or illness by doing START (Simple Triage and Rapid Treatment,
commonly called Thirty-Two-Can Do). If a staff member fails any of the three simple tests (Respirations,
Perfusion, and Mental), their medical status is IMMEDIATE (RED). Administer first aid or CPR as needed.
e (Call 911 and be prepared to provide:
V' Your address, building letter (A, B, C, D, etc.), room or floor number
v Describe illness or type of injury
v How the illness or type of injury occurred
v Age of ill or injured staff member
v/ Quickest way for ambulance to enter location on site
Notify the Executive Director.
Assign a staff member to meet and direct rescue services to location of injured party.
Notify staff member’s family of situation, including type of injury/illness, medical care being given and
location where staff has been transported.
When appropriate, advise other staff of situation.
Follow-up with staff member’s family.

GAS ODOR/LEAK
Natural gas has an additive that gives off a distinct odor allowing you to detect (smell) a leak. In most cases,
handling a gas leak involves:

e |solating the area and moving staff to safety.

e Eliminating potential ignition sources.

e Securing the leak.

The primary responsibility of the worksite staff is to determine how to safely house or evacuate staff and to
protect property. The following agencies should be contacted:
e Fire Department (Call 911)
e Site Administrator. Have a phone number for a point of contact if a leak is detected after business hours.
(see emergency contact list)
® Local Gas Company

GAS ODOR OR LEAK INSIDE A BUILDING
e Evacuate the building(s) and move to a safe assembly area as far away as possible from the targeted
building.
e Assign Emergency Management Team members to direct staff evacuating other buildings to stay away
from the building with odor/leak.

38



If necessary, activate the Incident Command System and establish Command Post.
Begin completing Staff Accountability Report.

Report any missing students and staff to Command Post.

Assign a liaison to interact with Fire Department, Gas Company or law enforcement.

IF GAS ODOR OR LEAK IS DETECTED OUTSIDE THE BUILDING
e |t may not be necessary to evacuate the building. Evacuation is called for only if odor seeps into a

building.

SHELTER-IN-PLACE PROCEDURES

Why You Might Need to Shelter-In-Place

Chemical, biological, or radiological contaminants may be released accidentally or intentionally into the
environment. Should this occur, information will be provided by local authorities, TV or radio on how to protect
staff. Because information will most likely be provided on television and radio, it is important to keep a TV or
radio on, even during the workday or instructional time. The important thing is for you to follow instructions of
local authorities.

Following Are Actions to Follow at Your Worksite:

e Follow reverse evacuation procedures to bring students and staff indoors.

e If there are visitors in the building, provide for their safety by asking them to stay. When authorities
provide directions to “shelter-in-place”, they want everyone to take those steps now, where they are,
and not drive or walk outdoors.

e Provide for answering telephone inquiries by having at least one telephone available in the room
selected to provide shelter for the Office Manager, or the person designated to answer these calls. This
room should also be sealed. There should be a way to communicate among all rooms where staff are
sheltering-in-place.

e |deally, provide a way to make announcements over the public address system from the room where
the site administrator takes shelter.

Provide directions to close and lock all windows, exterior doors and any other openings to the outside.
If there is danger of an explosion, direct that window shades, blinds, or curtains be closed.

Have employees familiar with the building’s mechanical system turn off all fans, heating and air
conditioning systems. Some systems automatically provide for exchange of inside air with outside air —
these systems, in particular, need to be turned off, sealed, or disabled.

e Gather essential disaster supplies, such as nonperishable food, bottled water, battery-powered radios,
first aid supplies, flashlights, batteries, duct tape, plastic sheeting and plastic garbage bags.

e Designate interior rooms(s) above the ground floor with the fewest windows or vents. The room(s)
should have adequate space for everyone to be able to sit in. Avoid overcrowding by selecting several
rooms if necessary. Large storage closets, utility rooms, meeting rooms, or conference room without
exterior windows will also work well.

Call emergency contacts and have the phone available if you need to report a life-threatening condition.
Bring everyone into the rooms that have been designated. Shut and lock the door.

Use duct tape and plastic sheeting (heavier than food wrap) to seal all cracks around the doors and any
vents into the room. Consider precutting plastic sheeting to seal windows, doors, and vents. Each piece
should be several inches larger than the space you want to cover so that it lies flat against the wall or
ceiling/. Label each piece with the location of where it fits.

39



EXTENDED POWER LOSS

In the event of extended power loss to a facility certain precautionary measures should be taken depending
on the geographical location and environment of the facility:

. Unnecessary electrical equipment and appliances should be turned off in the event that power
restoration would surge causing damage to electronics and effecting sensitive equipment.
. Facilities with freezing temperatures should turn off and drain the following lines in the event
of a long-term power loss.
. Fire sprinkler system
. Standpipes
. Potable water lines
. Toilets
. Add propylene-glycol to drains to prevent traps from freezing
. Equipment that contain fluids that may freeze due to long term exposure to freezing

temperatures should be moved to heated areas, drained of liquids, or provided with auxiliary
heat sources.

Upon Restoration of heat and power:

. Electronic equipment should be brought up to ambient temperatures before energizing to
prevent condensate from forming on circuitry.
. Fire and potable water piping should be checked for leaks from freeze damage after the heat

has been restored to the facility and water turned back on.
GUIDELINES FOR SPEAKING TO THE MEDIA
When speaking to the media about emergencies, it is extremely important to adhere to the following guidelines:

= Executive Director READ all press statements

= Re-state the nature of the incident; its cause and time of origin

= Describe the size and scope of the incident

* Report on the current situation

» Speak about the resources being utilized in response activities

= Reassure the public that everything possible is being done

= DO NOT release any names

= When answering questions be truthful; but consider the emotional impact the information could have upon
listeners

* Avoid speculation; do not talk “off the record”

* Do not use the phrase “no comment”

= Set up press times for updates

= Control media location

40



**SAMPLE PRESS RELEASE**

Event: EARTHQUAKE Date: MARCH 1, xxx
Release #: 001 Time: 8:00 A.M.
TITLE OF RELEASE: LARGE EARTHQUAKE CAUSES MODERATE DAMAGE TO SCHOOL OFFICES IN GENERIC COUNTY

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

EXAMPLE....... At 5:25 a.m. on March 1, 2006 an earthquake measuring 7.2 on the Richter Scale caused moderate damage to the
NAME OF SCHOOL located at 1234 Anywhere Blvd. in Our Town, CA. There are no reports of injuries available. Search and Rescue
crews are searching the building at this time. Roadways leading to the location have been damaged and an overpass on Hwy. 101
leading to the location has been damaged and is closed. The public is asked to remain clear of the area to allow emergency
responders to access the site. Parents are asked NOT to go to the location as this will hamper rescue efforts.

School Districts throughout the county are instructed to call in to the County Office of Education at -(XXX) XXX-XXXX - to report
any damage or injuries to their own buildings or their school sites following established school closure procedures.

Due to the magnitude of the earthquake and the damage throughout the county, the County Operational Area Emergency
Operations Center has been activated. Additional information can be obtained by called the Op Area Public Information Hotline at
XXX-XXXX.

Further details will be provided when available.

Next Scheduled Release: As needed
H#Hi#

41



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section C: Disaster Procedures

Part 2: Biological/Chemical Weapons Assault

Biological and chemical weapons are unconventional warfare tactics that can be deployed upon the public
with little or no notice. Such weapons typically involve microscopic materials that may be organic or
synthetically manufactured in laboratories. Biological or chemical weapons can be in powder form, liquid, or
vaporous. Agents used in biological/chemical attacks include, but are not limited to: anthrax, smallpox, other
harmful viruses, various forms of nerve gas, tear gas, and other vaporous irritants. Pranks using stink bombs
should also be considered a chemical weapons attack.

There are several possible dispersion techniques to deliver biological and chemical agents. The following
procedures should be utilized in the event of an assault involving biological or chemical weapons.

Any possible biological/chemical weapons assault should be reported immediately to the Executive Director.
The Executive Director should notify law enforcement authorities immediately.

As necessary alert all site employees of the situation by intercom.

If the agent is delivered via aircraft:

All staff and students should be moved indoors.

[ ]

. Keep students inside and take roll.

o Close and secure all doors and windows.

o Ensure that the HVAC is shut down.

. Cover vents with plastic or thick paper using tape to create a seal.

° Inspect all windows and doors for cracks, gaps, or holes. Cover any with plastic or thick paper
using tape to create a seal.

° Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Executive Director, Executive Director’s
designee or officers of emergency response agencies.

° Immediately report any injuries or illnesses to the Executive Director, Executive Director’s

designee or officers of emergency response agencies.

42



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 2: Biological/Chemical Weapons Assault

If the agent is delivered via dispersion device that is outdoors:

All staff and students should be moved indoors.

Keep students inside and take roll.

Close and secure all doors and windows.

Ensure that the HVAC is shut down.

Cover vents with plastic or thick paper using tape to create a seal.

Inspect all windows and doors for cracks, gaps, or holes. Cover any with plastic or thick paper
using tape to create a seal.

Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Executive Director, Executive Director’s
designee or officers of emergency response agencies.

Immediately report any injuries or illnesses to the Executive Director, Executive Director’s
designee or officers of emergency response agencies.

If the agent is delivered via dispersion device that is indoors:

All staff and students should be evacuated to the school’s normal outdoor evacuation assembly
area unless that area may be affected by the assault. Role should be taken.

Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Executive Director, Executive Director’s
designee or officers of emergency response agencies.

The HVAC system should be shut down.

If the agent is delivered via the school’s HVAC system:

All staff and students should be evacuated to the school’s normal outdoor evacuation assembly
area unless that area may be affected by the assault. Role should be taken.

Remain in this area until notified to leave by the Executive Director, Executive Director’s
designee or officers of emergency response agencies.

The HVAC system should be shut down.

In any situation involving biological or chemical weapons the Executive Director and staff must follow all
instructions given by officers of emergency response agencies. Feather River Charter School EOC will develop
an action plan to handle telephone inquiries, rumor control, media relations, public information,
employee/student crisis counseling, and facility damage assessment/control

43



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 3: Bomb Threat Procedures

If you observe a suspicious object or potential bomb on property, DO NOT HANDLE THE OBJECT,
IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY 911.

1. Receiving the Call

Make every attempt to keep the caller on the phone as long as possible to gain information. Try if possible, to
determine the gender and age of caller. Try if possible, to get the caller to tell you the exact location of the
bomb and the time of threatened detonation.

2. Notification Procedures

School Location communicate the above information to the following in this order:

° School Executive Director/Administrator
° Assistant Executive Directors
° Regional Coordinators

The Executive Director/Administrator will notify local law enforcement and Feather River Charter School
District office.

The Executive Director will communicate the above information to notify local law enforcement.

Strictly follow the above notification procedures and do not discuss or notify others of the bomb threat since
this may create an unwarranted panic response at the facility.

3. Action Plan Procedures

If required to develop an action plan, the Executive Director/Administrator may consult with the following:
Executive Directors and other administrators utilizing their expertise.

If the location of the bomb is not specifically designated, students will be kept in a secure location.

44



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 3: Bomb Threat Procedures

The Executive Director will make the decision to evacuate the building. However, if possible, this decision
should be made in conjunction with law enforcement authorities after they arrive at the location.

The decision to search the building will be made in conjunction with law enforcement authorities and
performed by them.

Reoccupation of an evacuated building will be authorized by the Executive Director only after consulting with
law enforcement authorities.

45



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 4: Chemical or Hazardous Material Incident

If a hazardous material incident occurs off site, stay indoors and close all doors and windows (referred to as
taking “Shelter in Place”).

Notify 911 of the Chemical or Hazardous Material Incident.
If possible, determine the location of the spill in relation to facility buildings and wind direction.

Do not evacuate buildings until you are sure you will not be evacuating into an area which may be more
hazardous.

Follow all instructions given by the Fire Department when they arrive at the facility.

46



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 5: Earthquake Procedures

Indoors

DUCK, COVER, AND HOLD.

Get under desk or table. Move away from windows and objects that could fall. Stay under desk or table until
shaking stops.

Outdoors
Move away from building, utility poles and vehicles. Avoid all down wires or electrical lines. Do not run.

In School Bus
Stop vehicle in safe location away from power lines, overpasses or large buildings. Stay in vehicle and
establish radio contact with Transportation and/or School’s E.O.C.

General
Be prepared for immediate aftershocks and ground motion

Evaluate immediate area for earthquake related hazards (fire, building collapse, gas leaks, broken electrical
lines, wires etc.)

Evaluate immediate area (classroom, bus, etc.) for injuries or medical aid situations.
Call 9-1-1, if you have an immediate emergency such as a fire or serious injury.

Assist injured with First Aid treatment

Do not evacuate buildings or vehicles unless you have a hazard-related reason to do so.
Conduct a headcount to account for all personnel and students

Establish communications with your supervisor, Executive Director or District EOC and follow emergency
checklist and procedures.

Assist any police or fire units that respond to your location.

47



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 6: Explosion, Aircraft Crash or Similar Incident

If possible, Duck and Cover under a desk or table.

Notify 911 of the explosion or crash

Assist any injured requiring first aid treatment

If necessary because of fire, building damage etc., evacuate building

Assist any persons who would have physical problems evacuating the building.

Go to an outdoor evacuation/assembly area which is hazard free and not affected by the explosion or crash.
Keep fire lanes, streets and walkways open for emergency responders.

Stay in assembly area and account for all personnel and students.

Do not return to buildings until authorized by fire department or Executive Director

Information is provided to students at times of state testing, ingress and egress, safety

48



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 7: Fire Procedures

Call 911 to report a fire, stay one line and give specific information (name, address of school or facility,
student’s learn primarily at home, no school location).

Utilize manual pull station to activate building alarm system and evacuate building when you hear an alarm.

In the event of a small fire, notify 911 and then use the nearest fire extinguisher to control the fire if you have
been trained in their use.

Do not attempt to fight large fires, call 911 and evacuate building.

Assist students in building evacuation and proceed to outdoor school evacuation area or areas.
When evacuating buildings walk, do not run.

Do not use elevators for building evacuation or in an emergency.

If heavy smoke is present, crawl or stay near floor for breathable air.

Assist any individuals who would have physical problems evacuating the building.

Stay in the designated assembly area and account for all personnel and students.

Do not block fire lanes or areas used by the fire department

Do not re-enter building until authorized by fire department or the Executive Director.

If the fire is off site, wait for instructions from the Executive Director or District EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S
DESIGNEE.

49



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 8: Flood Procedures

If a flood warning is received by a District school or location, notify Feather River Charter School Executive
Director immediately.

If a major flood warning is received at Feather River Charter School Office, Feather River Charter School EOC
should be activated.

Based upon the specific threat, Feather River Charter School EOC in conjunction with the Operational Area
EOC and SEMS system will develop an action plan to protect personnel, students and facilities.

Evacuation of specific schools, facilities or areas will be directed by Feather River Charter School EOC in
coordination with SEMS.

50



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 9: Lockdown/Civil Unrest Procedures

Any threatening disturbance should be reported immediately to the Executive Director/Administrator.

If the disturbance is affecting normal school or facility operations, the Executive Director/Administrator should
notify law enforcement authorities immediately.

As necessary, alert all site employees of the situation by intercom, Site staff must follow the instructions
below:

If you are inside:

° Close and lock all doors and windows immediately upon notification of situation

° Keep all students inside and take roll

° If feasible, move all students to a center point and keep low to the ground. Stay away from all doors
and windows.

° Never open the door or window to anyone

° Keep students inside classroom, regardless of lunch or recess until you are told by the Executive

Director or Executive Director’s designee that the situation has been resolved.

If you are outside:

° Immediately have students and staff seek shelter if it is safe to do so. Drill with students and staff to
go to the nearest room to them.

° If shelter is not available, ensure students lie flat on the ground immediately.

° Children in restrooms should be instructed to stay there until directed to exit by the Executive Director

or Executive Director’s designee.

If situation is violent and may include the use of firearms, the Executive Director or Executive Director’s
designee should instruct all staff and students to lie face down on the floor and remain immobile.

Executive Director and staff must follow all instructions given by responding law enforcement.

If the event is major, the Executive Director will activate Feather River Charter School EOC to develop an
Action Plan to deal with the situation as well as the following:

Telephone inquiries and rumor control
Media relations and public information
Employee/Student crisis counseling
Facility damage assessment/control

oo >

51



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 10: Severe Windstorm Procedures

If a severe wind warning is received at school location, notify Feather River Charter School Executive Director
immediately. (Students learn primarily at home, no school location)

If a severe wind warning is received at Feather River Charter School Office, Feather River Charter School EOC
should be activated.

Based upon the specific threat, Feather River Charter School EOC in conjunction with the Operational Area
EOC or City EOC will develop an action plan to protect personnel, students and facilities.

In general, if severe winds are affecting a school or facility, employees and students should be moved to the
interior core area of the building (inside wall on the ground floor) away from outside windows and doors.

Close all windows and blinds and avoid auditoriums, gymnasiums and other building locations that have large
roof areas or spans.

Avoid all areas that have large concentrations of electrical equipment or power cables.

Evacuation of specific schools, facilities or areas will be directed by Feather River Charter School EOC in
coordination with SEMS.

52



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 11: Suspicious Mail/Packages

All incoming mail and packages should be handled with caution.

Below are Indicators of suspicious mail and steps to take in the event that suspicious mail is received.

Mail that ...

.. is unexpected or from an unfamiliar source

.. has excessive postage

.. is addressed to someone who no longer works in Feather River Charter School
.. is addressed to a current employee but with the wrong title

.. contains several misspelled words on the envelope

.. marked with restrictive endorsements such as “Personal” or “Confidential”
.. has no return address or an address that cannot be verified

.. mail that is from a foreign country

.. shows a city or state in the postmark that doesn’t match the return address
.. is lopsided, oddly shaped, or has an unusual weight, given its size

.. has protruding wires, strange odors or stains

.. has powdery substance on the outside

.. has an unusual amount of tape on it

.. is ticking or making unusual sounds

Not all mail comes perfectly packaged or with accurate information on it, so it is important that employees

ha

ndling mail remain sensible in the screening of mail. However, prudent scrutiny conducted in a reasonable

manner can greatly reduce the school’s chances of becoming the victim of attack by mail.

53



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section 3: Disaster Procedures

Part 11: Suspicious Mail/Packages

What to do with suspicious mail (general response):

Do not try to open the package or envelope.
Do not sniff, taste or shake the package.
Isolate the package.

Evacuate the immediate area; close the door.
Contact your supervisor and call 911.

Response to mail suspected of delivering biological/chemical agents in powder form:

54

NOTE:

Do not open an envelope or package with powder on the outside.

If powder is spilled from an envelope or package, do not try to clean up the powder.

Cover the spilled contents immediately with anything (clothing, paper, trash can).

Do not remove this cover.

Leave the room and close the door or otherwise prevent access to the room.

Wash your hands with soap and hot water.

Ensure that everyone who had contact with the piece of mail washes his/her hands with soap and
hot water.

Notify your supervisor.

Supervisor should immediately contact the local police (911) or the U.S. Postal Inspection Service
(626-405-1200).

Supervisor should notify Feather River Charter School’s Office.

Remove heavily contaminated clothing as soon as possible and place inside a plastic bag or some
other container that can be sealed. This clothing should be given to the responding emergency
response units.

Shower with soap and water as soon as possible. Do not use bleach or other disinfectant on your
skin.

Make a list of all the people who were in the room or area, especially those who had contact with
the envelope or package. Provide this list to the emergency response teams investigating the
incident.

Investigators will remove the envelope or package and conduct a thorough check of the area for
contamination.

If you are prescribed medicine as a result of this exposure, take it until instructed or until it runs
out.

Contacting the U.S. Postal Service is less likely to create a media event than the local police but
their response may be slower.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions Policies and Procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

Feather River Charter School
— Suspension and Expulsion/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline

Note on Education Code: This requirement refers to EC 35291.5. This section reads:

35291.5. (a) On or before December 1, 1987, and at least every four years thereafter, each public school
may, at its discretion, adopt rules and procedures on school discipline applicable to the school. For schools
that choose to adopt rules pursuant to this article, the school discipline rules and procedures shall be
consistent with any applicable policies adopted by the governing board and state statutes governing
school discipline. In developing these rules and procedures, each school shall solicit the participation,
views, and advice of one representative selected by each of the following groups: (1) Parents. (2) Teachers.
(3) School administrators. (4) School security personnel, if any. (5) For junior high schools and high schools,
pupils enrolled in the school... (b) The governing board of each school district may prescribe procedures to
provide written notice to continuing pupils at the beginning of each school year and to transfer pupils at
the time of their enrollment in the school and to their parents or guardians regarding the school discipline
rules and procedures adopted pursuant to subdivision (a)...(d) The governing board may review, at an open
meeting, the approved school discipline rules and procedures for consistency with governing board policy
and state statutes.

Feather River Charter School includes rules and guidelines in the: Student/Parent Handbook. Given to all
families upon enrollment.

Board Policy for Suspensions and Expulsions
Philosophy of Student Discipline

Our focus for all students is to be respectful and supportive of each other.

55



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

56

Process and Procedures

Level | - Immediate Redirection and Verbal Reprimand

Minor issues that are resolved by the supervising adult; behavior is seen as a learning opportunity and is
expected to be corrected with no additional interventions; office referral is only needed if the student fails
to correct behavior (mostly classroom managed behavior)

Level Il - Learning Opportunity Office Referral, Parent contact, Counselor

Common misbehaviors needing redirection; again seen as a learning opportunity to be handled between
The student and supervising adult; in some cases office referral and parent notification is required (mostly
managed with teacher)

Level lll - Immediate Administrative referral; Parent Contact/Written Documentation, suspensions,
Law Enforcement

Severe misbehaviors with potentially strong consequences including school suspensions and legal
involvement; supervising adult is not expected to engage in any learning, but rather immediately refer
student to the office and insure the safety of staff and students (managed by director)

Administrative Referral

In some cases, student behaviors do not get corrected, or are so severe that they do not allow for a safe
and purposeful learning environment. By referring a student to an administrator, the teacher is seeking
additional resources to assist in the correction of the behavior. At this point, parents and school
administration join the teacher in attempts to meet the behavioral needs of the student.

The following process will be used for all office referrals:

Student is referred to Administration by supervising adult

Student completes reflection questions related to incident

Referral form is returned to the teacher for comments

Parental contact is made by the student or staff member to explain incident and schedule detention
Referral form is returned to the Executive Director or designee

Student conference with the Executive Director is scheduled



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

57

Follow-up phone call from Administration is made when necessary

e Harassment Complaints- Students are occasionally the victim of bullying or harassing behaviors. While
common in the school setting, such behaviors are not acceptable and will not be tolerated at any
function of our school community.

The following process is designed to assist students who believe they are the victim of such behaviors:
e Student informs teacher or staff person of situation

e Student reports to the office to complete a confidential “Harassment Complaint Form”

e Administrator investigates allegations

Typical consequences for a bully/harasser are as follows:

Warning- conference with Executive Director or designee discussing allegations, perceived
intentions and future consequences; student is informed that such behavior, as well as any retaliation, will
not be tolerated.

Parental Conference- Sharing the dangers of bully/harassing behaviors for both parties.

Suspension- To insure the safety of staff and students, various forms of suspension may be used in efforts
to correct student behavior.

Expulsion- If bullying/harassment continues or if any given incident is so severe that a safe learning
environment cannot exist, the Executive Director will recommend the expulsion of the offending
student.

— Feather River Charter School is committed to promoting learning and protecting the safety and well-being
of all students at the Charter School. In creating this policy, Feather River Charter School has reviewed
Education Code Section 48900 et seq. which describes the non-charter schools’ list of offenses and
procedures to establish its list of offenses and procedures for suspensions and expulsions. The language
that follows closely mirrors the language of Education Code Section 48900 et seq. Feather River Charter
School is committed to annual review of policies and procedures surrounding suspensions and expulsions
and, as necessary, modification of the lists of offenses for which students are subject to suspension or
expulsion.



58

The purpose of the Feather River Charter School Governing Board approving this Suspension and Expulsion
Policy is to accomplish the following:

1. Establish the Responsibility of Feather River Charter School

2. Identify the Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students
3. Identify Enumerated Offenses

4. Outline Suspension Procedures

5. Outline the Authority to Expel

6. Outline Expulsion Procedures

7. Outline Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses
8. Identify the Record of Hearing

9. lIdentify the Presentation of Evidence

10. Outline the Written Notice to Expel

11. Outline the Maintenance of Disciplinary Records

12. Identify a Student’s Right to Appeal

13. Outline Expelled Students/Alternative Education

14. Outline Rehabilitation Plans

15. Outline the Readmission Process

1. Responsibility of the Feather River Charter School: When the policy is violated, it may be necessary to
suspend or expel a student from the Feather River Charter School. This policy shall serve as the Feather River
Charter School’s policy and procedures for student suspension and expulsion and it may be amended from
time to time without the need to amend the charter so long as the amendments comport with legal
requirements. Feather River Charter School staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and procedures fairly and
consistently among all students. This Policy and its Procedures will be printed and distributed as part of the
Parent-Student Handbook and will clearly describe discipline expectations. Corporal punishment shall not
be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. Corporal punishment includes the willful infliction of
or willfully causing the infliction of physical pain on a student. For purposes of the Policy, corporal
punishment does not include an employee’s use of force that is reasonable and necessary to protect the
employee, students, staff, or other persons or to prevent damage to school property.

The Feather River Charter School administration shall ensure that students and their parents/guardians are
notified in writing upon enrollment of all discipline policies and procedures.

Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related activities unless
otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

59

A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom Feather River Charter School has a basis
of Knowledge of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement
Act of 2004 (“IDEIA”) or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
(“Section 504”) is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and is accorded the same due
process procedures applicable to general education students except when federal and state law mandates
additional or different procedures. Feather River Charter School will follow all applicable federal and state
laws including but not limited to the California Education Code, when imposing any form of discipline on a
student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom Feather River Charter School has a basis of
knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise qualified for such services or protections in
according due process to such students.

Additional detail follows below.

e Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students: A student may be suspended or expelled for
prohibited misconduct if the act is related to school activity or school attendance occurring at any time
including but not limited to: a) while on school grounds; b) while going to or coming from school; c)
during the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus; d) during, going to, or coming from a
school-sponsored activity.

3. Enumerated Offenses:
Discretionary Suspension Offenses. Students may be suspended for any of the following acts when it is
determined the student:
Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.
Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled
substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant of any
kind.
Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and
Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered
or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented same as
controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

60

Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.

Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property.

Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.

Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited,
to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and betel.
This section does not prohibit the use of his or her own prescription products by a student.

Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.

Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as
defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.

Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers,
administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their
duties.

Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.

Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm.

Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266¢, 286,
288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school

disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or
retaliating against that student for being a witness.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

61

Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.

Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision, “hazing” means a
method of initiation or preinitiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the organization
or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious bodily injury
or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or
prospective student. For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include athletic events or school
sanctioned events.

Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. For purposes of this section,
“terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully
threatens to commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property
damage in excess of one thousand dollars (51,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be
taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the
circumstances in which it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey
to the person threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat,
and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or
her immediate family’s safety, or for the protection of school property, or the personal property of the
person threatened or his or her immediate family.

Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the purposes of this
section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the same
gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual’s
academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This
section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in
subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. This section shall apply to students in any of grades
4 to 12, inclusive.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

62

Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to the extent of having
the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial
disorder and invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This
section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means of an electronic
act.

1. “Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including one or more acts
committed by a student or group of students which would be deemed hate violence or
harassment, threats, or intimidation, which are directed toward one or more students that has
or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

i. Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not limited to, a student
with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in conduct for a person
of his or her age, or for a person of his or her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of
harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.

ii. Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his or her
physical or mental health.

iii. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with his or her academic
performance.

iv. Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with his or her ability to
participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by Feather River
Charter School.

2. “Electronic Act” means the transmission by means of an electronic device, including, but not
limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer,
or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

i. A message, text, sound, or image.
ii. A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

a. Postingto or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet Web site created for
the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in subparagraph (1) above.

b. Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the purpose of having
one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “Credible impersonation”
means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a student for the purpose of
bullying the student and such that another student would reasonably believe, or has
reasonably believed, that the student was or is the student who was impersonated.

c. Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in
subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a profile of a fictitious student or a profile
using the likeness or attributes of an actual student other than the student who created
the false profile.

e Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive
conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is currently posted on the
Internet.

e A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or attempted
infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not expulsion, except
that a student who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and
abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily
injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (1).

e Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession of any object of
this type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school
employee, with the Executive Director or designee’s concurrence.

e Non-Discretionary Suspension Offenses: Students must be suspended and recommended for expulsion
or any of the following acts when it is determined the student:

e Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous object unless, in
the case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained written permission to
possess the item from a certificated school employee, with the Executive Director or designee’s
concurrence.

63



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

64

Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students may be recommended for expulsion for any of the following
acts when it is determined the student:

Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another person.
Willfully used force of violence upon the person of another, except self-defense.

Unlawfully possessed, used, sold or otherwise furnished, or was under the influence of any controlled
substance, as defined in Health and Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage, or intoxicant

of any kind.

Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any controlled substance as defined in Health and
Safety Code Sections 11053-11058, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant of any kind, and then sold, delivered
or otherwise furnished to any person another liquid substance or material and represented same as
controlled substance, alcoholic beverage or intoxicant.

Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.

Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property.

Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.

Possessed or used tobacco or products containing tobacco or nicotine products, including but not limited
to cigars, cigarettes, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets and
betel. This section does not prohibit the use of his or her own prescription products by a student.

Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.

Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell any drug paraphernalia, as
defined in Health and Safety Code Section 11014.5.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

65

Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of supervisors, teachers,
administrators, other school officials, or other school personnel engaged in the performance of their
duties.

Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.

Possessed an imitation firearm, i.e.: a replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical
properties to an existing firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm.

Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Penal Code Sections 261, 266¢, 286,
288, 288a or 289, or committed a sexual battery as defined in Penal Code Section 243.4.

Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a student who is a complaining witness or witness in a school
disciplinary proceeding for the purpose of preventing that student from being a witness and/or
retaliating against that student for being a witness.

Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug Soma.

Engaged in, or attempted to engage in hazing. For the purposes of this subdivision, “hazing” means a
method of initiation or pre-initiation into a student organization or body, whether or not the
organization or body is officially recognized by an educational institution, which is likely to cause serious
bodily injury or personal degradation or disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former,
current, or prospective student. For purposes of this section, “hazing” does not include athletic events
or school sanctioned events.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

66

Made terrorist threats against school officials and/or school property. For purposes of this section,
“terroristic threat” shall include any statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully threatens
to commit a crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property damage in
excess of one thousand dollars (51,000), with the specific intent that the statement is to be taken as a threat,
even if there is no intent of actually carrying it out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which
it is made, is so unequivocal, unconditional, immediate, and specific as to convey to the person threatened
a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the threat, and thereby causes that person
reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or her own safety or for his or her immediate family’s safety, or for
the protection of school property, or the personal property of the person threatened or his or her immediate
family.

Committed sexual harassment, as defined in Education Code Section 212.5. For the purposes of this
section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered by a reasonable person of the same
gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or pervasive to have a negative impact upon the
individual’s academic performance or to create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational
environment. This section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Caused, attempted to cause, threaten to cause or participated in an act of hate violence, as defined in
subdivision (e) of Section 233 of the Education Code. This section shall apply to students in any of grades
4 to 12inclusive.

Intentionally harassed, threatened or intimidated a student or group of students to the extent of having
the actual and reasonably expected effect of materially disrupting class work, creating substantial
disorder and invading student rights by creating an intimidating or hostile educational environment. This
section shall apply to students in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive.

Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by means of an electronic
act.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Procedures

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and

67

“Bullying” means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct, including
communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and including acts one or more
acts committed by a student or group of students which would be deemed hate violence or
harassment, threats, or intimidation, which are directed toward one or more students that has
or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect of one or more of the following:

Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not limited to, a
student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill, and judgment in
conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a person of his or her age with exceptional
needs) or students in fear of harm to that student’s or those students’ person or property.
Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental effect on his or
her physical or mental health.

Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with his or her
academic performance.

Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference with his or her ability
to participate in or benefit from the services, activities, or privileges provided by Feather
River Charter School.

“Electronic Act” means the transmission by means of an electronic device, including, but not
limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer,
or pager, of a communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:

i A message, text, sound, or image.
ii. A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:

a. Posting to or creating a burn page. A “burn page” means an Internet Web site
created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as listed in
subparagraph (1) above.

b. Creating a credible impersonation of another actual student for the purpose
of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above. “Credible
impersonation” means to knowingly and without consent impersonate a
student for the purpose of bullying the student and such that another student



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the student was or
is the student who was impersonated.

c. Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the effects
listed in subparagraph (1) above. “False profile” means a profile of a fictitious
student or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual student other
than the student who created the false profile.

d. Notwithstanding subparagraphs (1) and (2) above, an electronic act shall not
constitute pervasive conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted
on the Internet or is currently posted on the Internet.

3. A student who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or
attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension, but not
expulsion, except that a student who has been adjudged by a juvenile court to have committed,
as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence in which the victim suffered great bodily
injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject to discipline pursuant to subdivision (1).

e Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any knife unless, in the case of possession of any object of this
type, the student had obtained written permission to possess the item from a certificated school
employee, with the Executive Director or designee’s concurrence.

e Non-Discretionary Expellable Offenses: Students must be recommended for expulsion for any of the
following acts when it is determined pursuant to the procedures below that the student:

e Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished any firearm, explosive, or other dangerous object unless, in the
case of possession of any object of this type, the students had obtained written permission to possess
the item from a certificated school employee, with the Executive Director or designee’s
concurrence.

68



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

69

If it is determined by the Board of Directors that a student has brought a fire arm or destructive device, as
defined in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United States Code, on to campus or to have possessed a firearm or
dangerous device on campus, the student shall be expelled for one year, pursuant to the Federal Gun Free
Schools Act of 1994.

The term “firearm” means (A) any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily
be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive; (B) the frame or receiver of any such weapon;
(C) any firearm muffler or firearm silencer; or (D) any destructive device. Such term does not include an
antique firearm.

The term “destructive device” means (A) any explosive, incendiary, or poison gas, including but not limited
to: (i) bomb, (ii) grenade, (iii) rocket having a propellant charge of more than four ounces, (iv) missile having
an explosive or incendiary charge of more than one-quarter ounce, (v) mine, or (vi) device similar to any of
the devices described in the preceding clauses.

4. Suspension Procedure: Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures:

e Conference: Suspension shall be preceded, if possible, by a conference conducted by the Executive
Director or designee with the student and his or her parent and, whenever practical, the teacher,
supervisor or Feather River Charter School employee who referred the student to the Executive Director or
designee.

The conference may be omitted if the Executive Director or designee determines that an

emergency situation exists. An “emergency situation” involves a clear and present danger to the lives,
safety or health of students or Feather River Charter School personnel. If a student is suspended without
this conference, both the parent/guardian and student shall be notified of the student’s right to return to
school for the purpose of a conference.

At the conference, the student shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the evidence
against him or her and shall be given the opportunity to present his or her version and evidence in his or



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

her defense. This conference shall be held within two school days, unless the student waives this right or is
physically unable to attend for any reason including, but not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. No
penalties may be imposed on a student for failure of the student’s parent or guardian to attend a
conference with Feather River Charter School officials. Reinstatement of the suspended student shall not
be contingent upon attendance by the student’s parent or guardian at the conference.

Notice to Parents/Guardians: At the time of the suspension, an administrator or designee shall make a
reasonable effort to contact the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is
suspended, the parent/guardian shall be notified in writing of the suspension and the date of return
following suspension. This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student. In addition, the
notice may also state the date and time when the student may return to school. If Feather River Charter
School officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the suspension,
the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without delay.

e Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion: Suspensions, when not including a
recommendation for expulsion, shall not exceed five (5) consecutive school days per suspension. Upon
a recommendation of Expulsion by the Director or Director’s designee, the student and the student’s
guardian or representative will be invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the
student should be extended pending an expulsion hearing. This determination will be made by the
Director or designee upon either of the following: 1) the student’s presence will be disruptive to the
education process; or 2) the student poses a threat or danger to others. Upon either determination,
the student’s suspension will be extended pending the results of an expulsion hearing.

5. Authority to Expel: A student may be expelled either by the Feather River Charter School Board
following a hearing before it or by the Feather River Charter School Board upon the recommendation
of an Administrative Panel to be assigned by the Board as needed. The Administrative Panel should
consist of at least three members who are certificated and neither a teacher of the student or a Board
member of the Feather River Charter School’s governing board. The Administrative Panel may
recommend expulsion of any student found to have committed an expellable offense.

6. Expulsion Procedures: Students recommended for expulsion are entitled to a hearing to determine
whether the student should be expelled. Unless postponed for good cause, the hearing shall be held
within thirty (30) school days after the Executive Director or designee determines that the Student has

committed an expellable offense.
70



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and

Procedures

71

In the event an Administrative Panel hears the case, it will make a recommendation to the Board for a final

decision whether to expel. The hearing shall be held in closed session (complying with all student

confidentiality rules under FERPA) unless the Student makes a written request for a public hearing three

(3) days prior to the hearing.

Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the student and the student’s parent/guardian at least

ten (10) calendar days before the date of the hearing. Upon mailing the notice, it shall be deemed served

upon the student. The notice shall include:

a. The date and place of the expulsion hearing;

b. A statement of the specific facts, charges and offenses upon which the proposed expulsion is
based;

c. A copy of the Feather River Charter School’s disciplinary rules which relate to the alleged
violation;

d. Notification of the student’s or parent/guardian’s obligation to provide information about
the student’s status at the Feather River Charter School to any other school district or school
to which the student seeks enrollment;

e. The opportunity for the student or the student’s parent/guardian to appear in person or to
employ and be represented by counsel or a non-attorney advisor;

The right to inspect and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing;

g. The opportunity to confront and question all witnesses who testify at the hearing;

h. The opportunity to question all evidence presented and to present oral and documentary
evidence on the student’s behalf including witnesses.

7. Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery Offenses:

The Feather River Charter School may, upon a finding of good cause, determine that the

disclosure of either the identity of the witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or

both, would subject the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon

this determination, the testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of

sworn declarations that shall be examined only by the Feather River Charter School or the hearing

officer. Copies of these sworn declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness,

shall be made available to the student.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

72

The complaining witness in any sexual assault or battery case must be provided with a copy of the applicable
disciplinary rules and advised of his/her right to (a) receive five days’ notice of his/her scheduled testimony,
(b) have up to two (2) adult support persons of his/her choosing present in the hearing at the time he/she
testifies, which may include a parent, guardian, or legal counsel, and (c) elect to have the hearing closed
while testifying.

The Feather River Charter School must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing
room for the complaining witness’ use prior to and during breaks in testimony.

At the discretion of the entity conducting the expulsion hearing, the complaining witness shall be
allowed periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which he or she may leave
the hearing room.

The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the hearing room
to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness.

The entity conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the testimony of the
complaining witness to the hours he/she is normally in school, if there is no good cause to take the
testimony during other hours.

Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that the hearing
is confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the person presiding over the hearing from removing a
support person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting the hearing. The entity conducting the
hearing may permit any one of the support persons for the complaining witness to accompany him
or her to the witness stand.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

73

If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, the Feather River Charter School must present
evidence that the witness’ presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to the Feather River
Charter School.

The person presiding over the hearing shall permit the witness to stay unless it is established that there is a
substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining witness would be influenced by the support person,
in which case the presiding official shall admonish the support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or
influence the witness in any way. Nothing shall preclude the presiding officer from exercising his or her
discretion to remove a person from the hearing whom he or she believes is prompting, swaying, or
influencing the witness.

* The testimony of the support person shall be presented before the testimony of the complaining
witness and the complaining witness shall be excluded from the courtroom during that testimony.

e Especially for charges involving sexual assault or battery, if the hearing is to be conducted in public
at the request of the student being expelled, the complaining witness shall have the right to have
his/her testimony heard in a closed session when testifying at a public meeting would threaten
serious psychological harm to the complaining witness and there are no alternative procedures to
avoid the threatened harm. The alternative procedures may include videotaped depositions or
contemporaneous examination in another place communicated to the hearing room by means of
closed-circuit television.

e Evidence of specific instances of a complaining witness’ prior sexual conduct is presumed
inadmissible and shall not be heard absent a determination by the person conducting the hearing
that extraordinary circumstances exist requiring the evidence be heard. Before such a
determination regarding extraordinary circumstance can be made, the witness shall be provided
notice and an opportunity to present opposition to the introduction of the evidence. In the hearing
on the admissibility of the evidence, the complaining witness shall be entitled to be represented by
a parent, legal counsel, or other support person. Reputation or opinion evidence regarding the
sexual behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible for any purpose.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

8. Record of Hearing: A record of the hearing shall be made and may be maintained by any means,
including electronic recording, as long as a reasonably accurate and complete written
transcription of the proceedings can be made.

9. Presentation of Evidence: While technical rules of evidence do not apply to expulsion hearings,
evidence may be admitted and used as proof only if it is the kind of evidence on which reasonable
persons can rely in the conduct of serious affairs. Arecommendation by the Administrative Panel
to expel must be supported by substantial evidence that the student committed an expellable
offense. Findings of fact shall be based solely on the evidence at the hearing. While hearsay
evidence is admissible, no decision to expel shall be based solely on hearsay. Sworn declarations
may be admitted as testimony from witnesses of whom the Board or Administrative Panel
determines that disclosure of their identity or testimony at the hearing may subject them to an
unreasonable risk of physical or psychological harm.

If, due to a written request by the expelled student, the hearing is held at a public meeting, and the charge
is committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery as defined in
Education Code Section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his or her testimony heard
in a session closed to the public.

The decision of the Administrative Panel shall be in the form of written findings of fact and a written
recommendation to the Board who will make a final determination regarding the expulsion. The final

decision by the Board shall be made within ten (10) school days following the conclusion of the hearing.

If the Administrative Panel decides not to recommend expulsion, the student shall immediately be returned
to his/her educational program.

74



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Feather River Charter School

Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915

Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and
Procedures

75

10.

Written Notice to Expel: The Executive Director or designee, following a decision of the Board to

expel, shall send written notice of the decision to expel, including the Board’s adopted findings
of fact, to the student or parent/guardian. This notice shall also include the following: (a) Notice
of the specific offense committed by the student; and (b) Notice of the student’s or
parent/guardian’s obligation to inform any new district in which the student seeks to enroll of
the student’s status with the Feather River Charter School.

The Executive Director or designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to

the authorizer. This notice shall include the following: (a) The student’s name; and (b) The specific expellable

offense committed by the student.

11.

12.

13.

Disciplinary Records: The Feather River Charter School shall maintain records of all student
suspensions and expulsions at the Feather River Charter School. Such records shall be made
available to the authorizer upon request.

Right to Appeal: Per AB 1360, a student being expelled or suspended will be provided “oral or

n u

written notice of the charges against the student,” “an explanation of the evidence that supports
the charges and an opportunity for the student to present his or her side of the story,” and/or
the opportunity for “a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of
days at which the student has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses
and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the student has the right to
bring legal counsel or an advocate.” Moreover, for any non-voluntary removal, the student’s
parent or guardian will be given written notice of intent to remove the student no less than 5
school days in advance, and the parent/guardian will be given the right to challenge the non-

voluntary removal under the same procedures as an expulsion.

Expelled Students/Alternative Education: Students who are expelled shall be responsible for
seeking alternative education programs including, but not limited to, programs within the County
or their school district of residence. The Feather River Charter School shall work cooperatively
with parents/guardians as requested by parents/guardians or by the school district of residence
to assist with locating alternative placements during expulsion.



76

14.

15.

Rehabilitation Plans: Students who are expelled from the Feather River Charter School shall be
given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as developed by the Board at the time of the expulsion
order, which may include, but is not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time
of review for readmission. The rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year
from the date of expulsion when the student may reapply to the Feather River Charter School for
readmission.

Readmission: The decision to readmit a student or to admit a previously expelled student from
another school district or Feather River Charter School shall be in the sole discretion of the
Board following a meeting with the Executive Director or designee and the student and
guardian or representative to determine whether the student has successfully completed the
rehabilitation plan and to determine whether the student poses a threat to others or will be
disruptive to the school environment. The Executive Director or designee shall make a
recommendation to the Board following the meeting regarding his or her determination. The
student’s readmission is also contingent upon the Feather River Charter School’s capacity at the
time the student seeks readmission.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section E: Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils - Ed Code 49079

Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

When the Executive Director at Feather River Charter School is aware that a student has caused or tried to
cause another person serious bodily injury, or any injury that requires professional medical treatment, a
separate and confidential file is created for that child. Information based upon written District records or
records received from a law enforcement agency are contained in the file.

When such a student is assigned to a teacher, the Executive Director shall provide the teacher with written
notification. The teacher is asked to review the student’s separate and confidential file in the office. Teachers
are informed that such information is to be kept in strictest confidence and is to disseminate no further.

Excerpts from the California Education Code and the California Penal Code are presented below.

From California Education Code Section 49079

77

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

A school district shall inform the teacher of every student who has caused or who has
attempted to cause serious bodily injury to another person, as defined in paragraphs (5) and (6)
of subdivision (e) of Section 243 of the Penal Code, to another person. Feather River Charter
School shall provide the information to the teacher based on any written records that Feather
River Charter School maintains or receives from a law enforcement agency regarding a student
described in this section.

No school district shall be liable for failure to comply with this section if, in a particular instance,
it is demonstrated that Feather River Charter School has made a good faith effort to notify the
teacher.

The information provided shall be from the previous three (3) school years.
Any information received by a teacher pursuant to this section shall be received in confidence

for the limited purpose for which it was provided and shall not be further disseminated by the
teacher.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079

Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

From California Penal Code Section 243(e) — Paragraphs 5 and 6

(5) ... “Injury” means any physical injury which requires professional medical treatment.

(6) ...“"Custodial Officer” means any person who has the responsibilities and duties and who is
employed by a law enforcement agency of the city or county or who performs those duties as a
volunteer.

Feather River Charter School — Employee Security

Notice Regarding Student Crimes and Offenses

The Executive Director or designee shall inform the teacher of every student who has engages in, or is
reasonably suspected to have engaged in, any act during the previous three years which could constitute
grounds for suspension or expulsion, with the exception of the possession or use of tobacco products. This
information shall be based upon written district records or records received from a law enforcement agency.
(California Education Code 49079).

When informed pursuant to Welfare and Institutions Code 828.1 that a student has committed crimes
unrelated to school attendance which do not therefore constitute grounds for suspension or expulsion, the
Executive Director or designee may so inform any teacher, counselor or administrator whom he/she
believes needs this information in order to work with the student appropriately, avoid being needlessly
vulnerable, or protect others from needless vulnerability. The Executive Director or designee shall

consult with the Executive Director of the school which the student attends in order to identify staff

that should be so informed. (California Welfare and Institutions Code 828.1).

Teachers shall receive the above information in confidence and disseminate it no further.
(California Education Code 49079, California Welfare and Institutions Code 828.1).

The Executive Director or designee shall maintain the above information in a separate confidential file

for each student. When such a student is assigned to a class/program, the Executive Director or

designee shall notify the teacher in writing and ask the teacher to initial this notice, return it to the Executive
Director or designee, and review the student’s file in the school office. This notification shall not

name or otherwise identify the student.

The Executive Director or designee shall notify all certificated personnel who are likely to come into

contact with the student, including the student’s teachers, special education teachers, coaches and
counselors.

78



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079

Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

From Feather River Charter School Employee Security (Continued)

79

The teacher shall initial the student’s file when reviewing it in the school office. Once Feather River
Charter School has made a good faith effort to comply with the notification requirement of Education

Code 49079, a teacher’s failure to review the file may be construed as a waiver of Feather River
Charter School’s liability.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 1: General Information

The administration, teachers and staff at Feather River Charter School actively strive to eliminate acts of
discrimination and sexual harassment at the school. All personnel are aware of the mandates from the State
of California, the California Department of Education, and the Board of Education of the Feather River Charter
School and support them fully. All personnel have received instruction regarding the recognition, prevention,
and reporting of acts of discrimination and sexual harassment. It is important that parents understand the
provisions regarding sexual harassment and, in particular, student-to-student harassment.

Feather River Charter School is committed to ensuring a professional work and learning environment without
discrimination, harassment, intimidation, or bullying on the basis of race, religious creed (including religious
dress and grooming practices), color, national origin (including language use restrictions), immigration status,
citizenship status, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, medical condition, genetic information,
marital status, sex (including pregnancy, childbirth, breastfeeding and medical conditions related to pregnancy
or childbirth), gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, military and veteran status,
or association with a person or group with one or more of the aforementioned characteristics or any other
legally protected category.

80



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 2: Sexual Harassment — All Personnel

Feather River Charter School
— Sexual Harassment

The Governing Board prohibits sexual harassment in the working environment of district employees or
applicants by any person in any form.

Employees who permit or engage in such harassment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and
including dismissal.

Any employee or applicant for employment who feels that he/she or another individual at Feather
River Charter School is being sexually harassed should immediately contact his/her supervisor,
Executive Director, other district administrator, or the Executive Director or designee in order to obtain
procedures for reporting a complaint.

Any supervisor who receives a harassment complaint shall notify the Executive Director or designee,
who shall ensure that the complaint is appropriately investigated.

The district prohibits retaliatory behavior against any complainant or any participant in the complaint
process. Each complaint of sexual harassment shall be promptly investigated in a way that respects
the privacy of all parties concerned.

Feather River Charter School - 4119.11, 4219.11, 4319.11 — Sexual Harassment

Sexual harassment is a form of harassment based on sex, including sexual harassment, gender harassment and
harassment based on pregnancy, childbirth or related medical conditions. It generally involves unwanted sexual
advances, or visual, verbal, or physical conduct of a sexual nature. This definition includes many forms of
offensive behavior and includes gender—based harassment of a person of the same sex as the harasser. The

following is a partial list of violations:

81

Unwanted sexual advances

Offering educational benefits in exchange for sexual favors

Making or threatening reprisals after a negative response to sexual advances

Visual conduct: Leering, making sexual gestures, displaying of suggestive objects or pictures,

cartoons or posters
Verbal conduct: Making or using derogatory comments, epithets, slurs and jokes

Verbal sexual advances or propositions



Verbal abuse of a sexual nature, graphic verbal commentaries about an individual’s body, sexually
degrading words used to describe an individual, suggestive or obscene letters, notes or
invitations

Physical conduct: Touching, assault, impeding or blocking movements

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, or other verbal, visual, or physical conduct of a sexual nature made by someone from or in the work or
educational setting when:

Submission to the conduct is made either expressly or by implication in terms or condition of
any individual’s employment.

Submission to or rejection of such conduct by an individual is used as the basis for an
employment decision affecting the individual.

The conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual’s work or
academic performance or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive working or
educational environment, or of adversely affecting the student or employee’s performance,
evaluation, advancement, assigned duties, or any other condition of education, employment or
career development.

Submission to, or rejection of, the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for any decision
affecting the individual regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available
at or through the educational institution.

Other examples of sexual harassment, whether committed by a supervisor or any other employee, are:

82

Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations or propositions.

Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or sexually
degrading descriptions.

Graphic verbal comments about an individual’s body, or overly personal conversation.
Sexual jokes, stories, drawings, pictures, or gestures.

Spreading sexual rumors.

Touching an individual’s body or clothes in a sexual way.

Cornering or blocking of normal movements.

Displaying sexually suggestive objects in the educational or work environment.

Any act of retaliation against an individual who reports a violation of Feather River Charter

School’s sexual harassment policy or who participates in the investigation of a sexual
harassment.



Each Executive Director and supervisor has the responsibility of maintaining an educational and work
environment free of sexual harassment. This responsibility includes and/or discussing Feather River Charter
School’s sexual harassment policy with his/her students and/or employees and assuring them that they are
not required to endure sexually insulting, degrading, or exploitive treatment or any other form of sexual
harassment.

83



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 2: Sexual Harassment — All Personnel

Notifications

A copy of Feather River Charter School’s policy on Harassment in Employment shall:

Be available, accessible, and displayed in a prominent location in the School’s digital manual.

Be provided to all staff members at the beginning of the first semester of the school year, or
whenever a new employee is hired.

Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school or district’s
comprehensive rules, regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct.

All employees shall receive either a copy of information sheets prepared by the California Department of Fair
Employment and Housing or a copy of district information sheets that contain, at a minimum, components on:

84

The illegality of sexual harassment.

The definition of sexual harassment under applicable state and federal law.
A description of sexual harassment with examples.

The district’s complaint process available to the employee.

The legal remedies and complaint process available through the Fair Employment and Housing
Department and Commission.

Direction on how to contact the Fair Employment and Housing Department and Commission.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 3: Sexual Harassment — Students

Feather River Charter School
— Sexual Harassment:

The Governing Board prohibits unlawful sexual harassment of or by any student by anyone in or from
Feather River Charter School.

Teachers shall discuss this policy with their students in age-appropriate ways and should assure them that
they need not endure any form of sexual harassment.

Any student who engages in the sexual harassment of anyone in or from Feather River Charter School may be
subject to disciplinary action up to and including expulsion. Any employee who permits or engages in sexual
harassment may be subject to disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

The Board expects students or staff to immediately report incidents of sexual harassment to the Executive
Director or designee or to another district administrator.

Any student who feels that he/she is being harassed should immediately contact the Executive Director
or designee or another district administrator in order to obtain a copy of AR 1312.3 — Uniform Complaint
Procedures. Complaints of harassment can be filed in accordance with these procedures.

The district prohibits retaliatory behavior against any complainant or any participant in the complaint process.

Each complaint of sexual harassment shall be promptly investigated in a way that respects the privacy of all
parties concerned.

Feather River Charter School
Sexual Harassment (5145.7)

Prohibited sexual harassment includes, but is not limited to, unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual
favors, and other verbal, visual, or physical conduct or a sexual nature when:

1. Submission to the conduct is explicitly or implicitly made a term or condition of an individual’s
employment, academic status or progress.

2. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by an individual is used as the basis for academic or
employment decisions affecting the individual.

85



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 3: Sexual Harassment — Students

Ot
ha

86

3. The conduct has the purpose or effect of having a negative impact on the individual’s academic or
work performance, or of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational or work
environment.

4. Submission to or rejection of the conduct by the individual is used as the basis for any decision
affecting the individual regarding benefits and services, honors, programs, or activities available at

or through the school.

her types of conduct which are prohibited in Feather River Charter School and which may constitute sexual
rassment include:

1. Unwelcome leering, sexual flirtations or propositions.

2. Unwelcome sexual slurs, epithets, threats, verbal abuse, derogatory comments, or sexually
degrading descriptions.

3. Graphic verbal comments about an individual’s body, or overly personal conversation.
4. Sexual jokes, stories, drawings, pictures, or gestures.

5. Spreading sexual rumors.

6. Teasing or sexual remarks about students enrolled in a predominantly single-sex class.
7. Touching an individual’s body or clothes in a sexual way.

Purposefully limiting a student’s access to educational tools.
Cornering or blocking of normal movements.

10. Displaying sexually suggestive objects in the educational environment.

11. Any act of retaliation against an individual who reports a violation of the district’s sexual
harassment policy or who participates in the investigation of a sexual harassment complaint.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy

Part 3: Sexual Harassment — Students

Notifications

A copy of Feather River Charter School’s sexual harassment policy shall:
1. Beincluded in the notifications that are sent to parents/guardians at the beginning of each school year.
2. Be available, accessible, and displayed in a prominent location in the School’s digital manual.

3. Be provided as part of any orientation program conducted for new students at the beginning of each
quarter, semester, or summer session.

4. Appear in any school or district publication that sets forth the school or district’'s comprehensive rules,
regulations, procedures, and standards of conduct.

Enforcement

The Executive Director or designee shall take appropriate actions to reinforce Feather River Charter School’s
sexual harassment policy. These actions may include:

1. Removing vulgar or offending graffiti.
2. Providing staff in service and student instruction or counseling.
3. Taking appropriate disciplinary action as needed.

87



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section G: School Dress Code, if it exists. CA Ed Code: Sections 32280-32289

Part 1: Non-classroom based program does not have a dress code.

88




Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section H: Safe Ingress and Egress

Part 1: General Information

Feather River Charter School — Safe Ingress and Egress

Feather River Charter School takes pride in providing a safe environment for all students, parents, and school
employees. Our School will take measures to ensure safe ingress and egress to and from school activities and
functions for pupils, parents, and school employees. Safe ingress and egress will be maintained by periodic
reviews of the procedures for ingress and egress. The school will ensure that all passageways to and from our
buildings, corridors within buildings and emergency exits remain clear of all obstruction to allow flow of
pedestrian and vehicular traffic. The school will also ensure that potential obstructions and hazards are
removed from such areas. To achieve this goal, the school works closely with local law enforcement agencies
and the local city government to ensure that the school’s immediate community is safe.

Through the joint efforts of Feather River Charter School office, site administrators, faculty, Safety Committee,
PTSA, and other organizations, including consultants, Feather River Charter School has developed a plan to
ensure the safe arrival and departure of students, staff, and visitors. Feather River Charter School encourages

input from our community and reviews this plan on an annual basis.

Any problems associated with safe ingress and egress will be addressed immediately.

89



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section H: Safe Ingress and Egress

Part 2: Safe Ingress and Egress

Feather River Charter School — Safe Ingress and Egress

90

Students primarily learn at home. No learning center/resource center.



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Feather River Charter School — Bullying and Intimidation

The Feather River Charter School’s Board believes that all students have a right to a safe and healthy school
environment. To that end, Feather River Charter School, schools and community have an obligation to
promote mutual respect, tolerance, and acceptance. Feather River Charter School will not tolerate any act of
intimidation including direct physical contact, gestures, comments, threats or actions, either written, verbal or
physical, which cause, threaten to cause or are likely to cause bodily harm, social isolation, manipulation, or
personal degradation on any District campus, at any school activity whether on or off campus, while traveling
to and from school or a school sponsored activity, or during the lunch period, whether on or off campus.

The consequences of these actions may include a broad range of disciplinary measures as appropriate;
however, every effort will also be taken to provide or locate appropriate assistance for both the victim and the
offender.

From Feather River Charter School Administrative Regulation 5131 - Conduct

Bullying occurs when one or more students threaten, harass, or intimidate another student through words, or
actions including continual direct physical contact such as hitting or shoving intentionally.

These incidents will be acted upon when they occur on the school grounds at any time, en route to and from
school or a school-sponsored activity, during the lunch period whether on or off campus.

A “school-related” or “school-sponsored” activity is an activity that is approved by the Executive Director or
his/her designee and supervised by assigned school personnel.

For the purpose of this administrative regulation, bullying is, but is not limited to, making unsolicited and
unwelcome written, verbal, physical and/or threatening visual gestures or contact.

Written — intimidating/threatening letters, notes, or messages

Verbal — intimidating/threatening comments, slurs, innuendos, teasing, jokes, or epithets
Visual — threatening gestures

Physical — hitting, slapping and/or pinching

91



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Feather River Charter School — Bullying and Intimidation
From Feather River Charter School - Conduct

Making reprisals, threats or reprisal, engaging in coercive behavior to negatively control, influence or affect
the health and well-being of a student.

Initial Response and Reporting Expectations
The District expects all employees, if they observe or become aware of an act of intimidation, to take
immediate, appropriate steps to intervene.

If, in the opinion of the employee, the matter has not been resolved, then the situation shall be reported to an
administrator for further investigation.

Feather River Charter School encourages students, parents and other community members who observe or
become aware of a serious act of intimidation to report this act to a school administrator for further
investigation.

Investigation and Response

Any incident, which may constitute an act of intimidation and is reported to the Executive Director, shall be
thoroughly investigated by the site administrator or designee. Consequences shall be commensurate with the
results of the investigation. This may include, but is not limited to, counseling, parent conference, detention,
involuntary transfer, a formal suspension and/or expulsion of the offender. The parent or guardian shall be
contacted and may be asked to attend a conference with school officials.

If the parent or guardian does not attend the conference, the site administrator shall send a letter informing
the parent of the actions under consideration and notifying parent of all data pertinent to the action.

Depending on the severity of the incident, the administrator shall take appropriate steps to insure campus
safety. This may include any or all of the following: Implement an immediate safety plan; isolate and
supervise involved students; provide staff support for involved students as necessary; report incident to law
enforcement if appropriate; notify the parents/guardians of both the offender and the victim and develop
supervision plan with parents.

If the act of intimidation is deemed to warrant a suspension, expulsion, or involuntary transfer to another

school, then the matter will be processed in accordance with the board policies and [Enter Applicable
Administrative Regulation] pertaining to the suspension/expulsion due process.

92



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Feather River Charter School — Bullying and Intimidation

Assessment and Intervention

An administrative contact will be made with the victim and offender prior to resuming regular schedule of
classes. If deemed necessary, the administrator or designee may convene a multidisciplinary team to further
assess and determine the need for ongoing support for the victim of the offender.

Depending upon the severity of the intimidation, an investigation may include a review of school records,
identification of parent/family issues, and interview with students, parents, and school staff. A multi-
disciplinary team consisting of school staff, counselor/psychologist, parent, student, and other agency
personnel as appropriate, shall develop a behavior support plan.

The support plan may include any or all of the following: a case manager (special education staff), counseling
services (site, and/or community resources), parenting skills classes, and other additional support services as
deemed appropriate. The case manager will maintain a record of the services provided.

Each site will identify community resources to be used before, during and after incidents of intimidation.

School Follow-up

The case manager has a responsibility to follow up and evaluate the behavior support plan. The case manager
will compile a report to the site administrator on the process, resources used, and the follow up procedure
involving the victim and the offender.

A copy of the behavior plan and follow-up report will then be forwarded to the Coordinator of Pupil Services.
Retaliation Prohibited

Retaliation against a student who reports or witnesses bullying is strictly prohibited and is ground for
discipline.

Mandated Notification

At the beginning of the school year, each student shall receive an age-appropriate summary of the board
policy prohibiting intimidation.

93



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section I: Bullying and Intimidation

Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

Feather River Charter School — Bullying and Intimidation

An age-appropriate summary of the anti-intimidation board policy shall be part of new student orientation
programs and included in student handbooks or informational packets.

A summary of the anti-intimidation board policy shall be included as part of Feather River Charter School’s
annual notification of parents.

Each staff member shall be notified of Feather River Charter School’s anti-intimidation board policy.

The District’s anti-intimidation board policy shall be included in each school’s comprehensive school safety
plan.

94



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 1: Mental Health Guidelines

Mental Health Guidelines

The Governing Board of recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among youth and that an even
greater amount of youth consider (17 percent of high school students) and attempt suicide (over 8 percent of
high school students) (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2015).

The possibility of suicide and suicidal ideation requires vigilant attention from our school staff. As a result, we
are ethically and legally responsible for providing an appropriate and timely response in preventing suicidal
ideation, attempts, and deaths. Feather River Charter School acknowledges the school’s role in providing an
environment which is sensitive to individual and societal factors that place youth at greater risk for suicide and
one which works to create a safe and nurturing culture that minimizes suicidal ideation in students.

Recognizing that it is the duty of to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its students, this policy aims to
safeguard students and staff against suicide attempts, deaths and other trauma associated with suicide,
including ensuring adequate supports for students, staff, and families affected by suicide attempts and loss. As
it is known that the physical, behavioral and emotional health of students greatly impacts school attendance
and educational success, this policy shall be paired with other practices that support the emotional and
behavioral wellness of students.

In an attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the Executive Director or
designee shall develop strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and post-intervention, and the
identification of the mental health challenges frequently associated with suicidal thinking and behavior. These
strategies shall include professional development for all school personnel in all job categories who regularly
interact with students or are in a position to recognize the risk factors and warning signs of suicide, including
substitute teachers, volunteers, expanded learning staff and any other individuals in regular contact with
students.

The Executive Director/or designee shall develop and implement preventive strategies and intervention

procedures that include prevention, staff development, developmentally - appropriate programs,
intervention, assessment and referral, and parent/ student notification.

95



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

- Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

The Governing Board of recognizes that suicide is a leading cause of death among youth and that an even
greater amount of youth consider (17 percent of high school students) and attempt suicide (over 8 percent of
high school students) (Centers for Disease Control and Prevention, 2015).

The possibility of suicide and suicidal ideation requires vigilant attention from our school staff. As a result, we
are ethically and legally responsible for providing an appropriate and timely response in preventing suicidal
ideation, attempts, and deaths. Feather River Charter School acknowledges the school’s role in providing an
environment which is sensitive to individual and societal factors that place youth at greater risk for suicide and
one which works to create a safe and nurturing culture that minimizes suicidal ideation in students.

Recognizing that it is the duty of the to protect the health, safety, and welfare of its students, this policy aims
to safeguard students and staff against suicide attempts, deaths and other trauma associated with suicide,
including ensuring adequate supports for students, staff, and families affected by suicide attempts and loss. As
it is known that the physical, behavioral and emotional health of students greatly impacts school attendance
and educational success, this policy shall be paired with other practices that support the emotional and
behavioral wellness of students.

In an attempt to reduce suicidal behavior and its impact on students and families, the Executive Director or
Designee shall develop strategies for suicide prevention, intervention, and postvention, and the identification
of the mental health challenges frequently associated with suicidal thinking and behavior. These strategies
shall include professional development for all school personnel in all job categories who regularly interact with
students or are in a position to recognize the risk factors and warning signs of suicide, including substitute
teachers, volunteers, expanded learning staff and any other individuals in regular contact with students.

The Executive Director or designee shall develop and implement preventive strategies and intervention
procedures that include the following:

Comprehensive School Safety Plan
96



Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

- Policy Implementation

staﬁ—pe#senﬂqe-dﬁt-ﬂet—suwrde—p%%q—eee%me I\/Iental Health Team W|II be respon5|ble for
planning and coordinating implementation of these regulations for the school.

Nicky (Elizabeth) Mut

Regional Assessment Team Coordinator
SPED Assessment Team

Office # (916) 568-0050 X.

Email: elizabeth mut@inspireschools,org

MENTAL HEALTH TEAM

Nancy Carson, M.S., PPS
Mental Health Coordinator
Mobile #: (626) 327-0202
Email: papcycc@inspireschools.org

Micah Samuels, M.5. TBA

MH School Psychologist MH Psych
Mobile #: (626) 250-9132 Mobiles:
Email: micah@inspireschools.org Email:
Region: Statewide Region:

a point of contact for issues relating to suicide prevention and policy implementation. All staff members shall

report students they believe to be at elevated risk for suicide to the school mental health/suicide prevention
coordinator.

Staff Professional Development:

All staff will receive annual professional development to include, but not limited to: risk factors, warning signs,
protective factors, response procedures, referrals, postvention, and resources regarding youth suicide
prevention.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

97




Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

professionalsand-schoolnurses— The professional development will include additional information regarding
groups of students at elevated risk for suicide, including those living with mental and/or substance use
disorders, those who engage in self-harm or have attempted suicide, those in out-of-home settings, those
experiencing homelessness, LGBTQ students, students bereaved by suicide and those with medical conditions
or certain types of disabilities.

Youth Suicide Prevention Programming:

Developmentally-appropriate, student-centered suicide prevention education may be incorporated into
classroom curricula. The content of these age-appropriate materials may include, but is not limited to: the
district’s suicide prevention, intervention, and referral procedures, the importance of safe and healthy choices
and coping strategies, how to recognize risk factors and warning signs of mental disorders and suicide in
oneself and others, help-seeking strategies for oneself or others, including how to engage school resources
and refer friends for help. In addition, schools may provide supplemental small group suicide prevention
programming for students.

Publication and Distribution:

The administrative regulations will be distributed annually and included in all student and teacher handbooks
and on the school website.

Employee Qualifications and Scope of Services

Employees of must act only within the authorization and scope of their credential or license. While it is
expected that school professionals are able to identify suicide risk factors and warning signs, and to prevent
the immediate risk of a suicidal behavior, treatment of suicidal ideation is typically beyond the scope of
services offered in the school setting. In addition, treatment of the mental health challenges often associated
with suicidal thinking typically requires mental health resources beyond what schools are able to provide.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

98




Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Specialized Staff Training (Assessment)

Additional professional development in suicide risk assessment and crisis intervention shall be provided to
mental health professionals including, but not limited to the following: school counselors, school
psychologists, secial-workers-and-nurses employed by Feather River Charter School.

Parents, Guardians, and Caregivers Participation and Education

To the extent possible, parents/guardians/caregivers should be included in all suicide prevention efforts. At a
minimum, the suicide prevention policy shall be prominently displayed in the parent handbook.

All parents/guardians/caregivers should have access to suicide prevention training that includes, but is not
limited to the following: suicide risk factors, warning signs, and protective factors, How to talk with a student

about thoughts of suicide, how to respond appropriately to the student who has suicidal thoughts.

Intervention, Assessment, Referral

When a student is identified by a staff person as potentially suicidal, i.e., verbalizes about suicide, presents
overt risk factors such as agitation or intoxication, the act of self-harm occurs, or a student self-refers, the
parent, teacher, Student Support Team, and possibly the student will be contacted by a Mental Health Team
within the same school day to assess risk and/or facilitate referral.

1. School staff will recommend that the student is continuously supervised to ensure their safety.

2. The Mental Health Team and/or Student Support Team(s) will be informed and alerted of the situation as
soon as reasonably possible through one or more of the following:

Comprehensive School Safety Plan
99



Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

e Email the Mental Health Team at: mentalhealthteam@inspireschools.org
e Complete the Mental Health Team’s At-Risk Survey: Student Mental Health Risk Report
e Complete the Student Support Team’s Crisis Survey: Student in Crisis

3. The Mental Health Team and Student Support Team will contact the reporting school staff, as well as the
student’s parent or guardian, and will provide community-based resources and recommendations. When
appropriate, this may include calling emergency services or bringing the student to the local hospital
emergency department.

Designated members of the Mental Health Team should conduct a suicide risk assessment. The purpose of
the assessment is to determine the level of risk and to identify the most appropriate actions to ensure the
immediate and long-term safety and well-being of the student. This should be done by a team that includes a
school-employed mental health professional.

Caregiver notification is a vital part of suicide prevention. The appropriate caregiver(s) must always be
contacted when signs of suicidal thinking and behavior are observed. Typically this is the student's parent(s);
however, when child abuse is suspected protective services should be contacted. Even if a child is judged to be
at low risk for suicidal behavior, schools may ask caregivers to sign a form to indicate that relevant
informationhas been provided. Regardless, all caregiver notifications must be documented. Caregivers also
provide critical information in determining level of risk. Whether a student is in imminent danger or not, it is
strongly recommended that lethal means are (i.e. guns, poisons, medications, and sharp objects) are removed
or made inaccessible.

Refer to community services if warranted. Referral options to 24 hour community-based services should be
identified in advance. It is best to obtain a release from the primary caregiver to facilitate the sharing of
information between the school and community agency.

Risk Level | (Low):

Definition: Does not pose imminent danger to self; insufficient evidence for suicide potential.

Indicators: Passing thoughts of suicide; no plan; no previous attempts; no access to weapons or means; no
recent losses; support system is in place; no alcohol/substance abuse; some depressed mood/affect; evidence
of thoughts found in notebook, internet postings, drawings; sudden changes in personality/behavior (e.g.,
distracted, hopeless, academically disengaged)

Risk Level Il (Moderate)
Definition: May pose imminent danger to self, but there is insufficient evidence to demonstrate a viable plan
of action to do harm.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

100


mailto:mentalhealthteam@inspireschools.org
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSd4zgZdUxwQWPs9chRf2_KdnGtNpVgSoRU6Yogn86Lvd2ToIw/viewform?pli=1
https://docs.google.com/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLSf2qcbLCba20RZ3-hXbukkB6vo5fAxU4RWUukNCNfEUC0aykg/viewform

Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Indicators: Thoughts of suicide; plan with some specifics; unsure of intent; previous attempts and/or
hospitalization; difficulty naming future plans; past history of substance use, with possible current
intoxication; self-injurious behavior; recent trauma (e.g., loss, victimization)

Risk Level Ill (High):

Definition: Poses imminent danger to self with a viable plan to do harm; exhibits extreme and/or persistent
inappropriate behaviors; sufficient evidence for violence potential; qualifies for immediate arrest or
hospitalization.

Indicators: Current thoughts of suicide; plan with specifics, indicating when, where and how; access to
weapons or means in hand; finalizing arrangements (e.g., giving away prized possessions, good bye messages
in writing, text, on social networking sites); isolated and withdrawn; current sense of hopelessness; previous
attempts; no support system; currently abusing alcohol/substances; mental health history; precipitating
events, such as loss of loved one, traumatic event or bullying.

Risk Level Interventions and Follow-Up

DO NOT LEAVE THE STUDENT UNSUPERVISED

RL | Action (Low):

1. CONSULT WITH A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL.

2. Contact parent/guardian/caregiver and give resources when appropriate.

3. Implement Interventions I.E., Student no harm promise and Plan, identify support systems on and off
campus.

4. Document student and parent contact and place in confidential file.

5. Contact CPS if suspected abuse.

6. Complete confidential Suicide assessment risk form.

7. Consider whether student may have a disability and/or may need referral for additional services.

RL Il Action (Moderate):

1. CONSULT WITH A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL.

2. Notify and/or hand off student ONLY to parent/guardian/caregiver who commits to seek an immediate
mental health assessment or to law enforcement if parent is unavailable or uncooperative. Consider any
suspected child abuse or neglect prior to contacting parent/guardian.

3. If parent transports students to mental health facility have parent sign Parent  Notification Form.

4. Document student and parent contact and place in confidential file.

5. Complete follow-up with student and parent when student returns.

6. Contact CPS if suspected abuse.

7. Complete confidential Suicide assessment risk form.

101



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

8. Consider whether student may have a disability and/or may need referral for additional services.

RL Il Action (High):

1. CONSULT WITH A MENTAL HEALTH PROFESSIONAL.

2. Notify and/or hand off student ONLY to parent/guardian/caregiver who commits to seek an immediate
mental health assessment or to law enforcement if parent is unavailable or uncooperative. Consider any
suspected child abuse or neglect prior to contacting parent/guardian.

3. Contact law enforcement. Law enforcement will determine if the parent will transport student to mental
health evaluation center or police may arrange for transportation to the mental health evaluation center.
. Complete mental health evaluator form.

. If parent transports students to mental health facility have parent sign Parent  Notification Form.

. Complete confidential Suicide assessment risk form.

. If police arrange for transport, notify site administrator.

. Document student and parent contact.

. Consider whether student may have a disability and/or may need referral for additional services.

. Contact CPS if suspect abuse.

10. Follow procedures for re-entry to School After a Suicide Attempt.

O o0 ~NOULL B W

As appropriate, consider an assessment for special education or a 504 Accommodation plan for a student
whose behavioral and emotional needs affect their ability to benefit from their educational program.

Document all actions

The suicide-prevention-coordinater Mental Health Team shall maintain records and documentation of actions
taken at the school for each case.

Notes, documents and records related to the incident are considered confidential information and remain
privileged to authorized personnel. These documents should be kept in a confidential file separate and apart

from the student’s cumulative records.

If the student transfers to a school within or outside the sending school may contact the receiving school to
share information and concerns, as appropriate, to facilitate a successful supportive transition.

102



Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Supporting Students after a Mental Health Crisis

It is crucial that careful steps are taken to help provide the mental health support for the student and to
monitor their actions for any signs of suicide. The following steps should be implemented after the crisis:

Treat every threat with seriousness and approach with a calm manner; make the student a priority.
Listen actively and non-judgmental to the student. Let the student express his or her feelings.

Acknowledge the feelings and do not argue with the student.

Offer hope and let the student know they are safe and that help is provided. Do not promise confidentiality or
cause stress.

Explain calmly and get the student to a trained professional, school psychologist, school counselor, or
designated staff to further support the student.

Keep close contact with the parents/guardians/caregivers and mental health professionals working with the
student.

Students

Each school site and program within shall identify, disseminate and prominently display a process for students
to safely notify a staff member when they are experiencing emotional distress or suicidal ideation, or when
they suspect or have knowledge of another student’s emotional distress, suicidal ideation, or attempt.

Parental Notification and Involvement

Each school within shall identify a process to ensure continuing care for the student identified to be at risk of
suicide. The following steps should be followed to ensure continuity of care:

After a referral is made for a student, school staff shall verify with the Parent/guardian/caregiver that follow-
up treatment has been accessed. Parents/guardians/caregivers will be required to provide documentation of
care for the student prior to returning to school.

If parents/guardians/caregivers refuse or neglect to access treatment for a student who has been identified to
be at-risk for suicide or in emotional distress, the suicide prevention coordinator, administrator or other
mental health professional will meet with the parents/guardians/caregivers to identify barriers to treatment
(e.g., cultural stigma, financial issues) and work to rectify the situation and build understanding of the

Comprehensive School Safety Plan
103



Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

importance of care. If follow-up care for the student is still not provided, school staff should consider
contacting Child Protective Services (CPS) to report neglect of the youth.

A written authorization to exchange/release information should be completed by the
parents/guardians/caregivers and appropriate school staff (e.g., school psychologist, school counselor and/or
nurse) should consult with outside mental health or medical treatment team.

Action Plan for In-School Suicide Attempts

Each school site and program within shall follow the following action plan to immediately address in school
suicide attempts. If a suicide attempt is made during the school day on campus, it is important to remember
that the health and safety of the student and those around him/her is critical. The urgency of the situation will
dictate the order and applicability in which the subsequent steps are followed:

Remain calm, remember the student is overwhelmed, confused, and emotionally distressed.

Move all other students out of the immediate area.

Immediately contact the administrator and suicide prevention coordinator.

Call 911 and give them as much information about the situation as possible.

If needed, provide medical first aid until a medical professional is available.

Parents/guardians/caregivers should be contacted as soon as possible.

Do not send the student away or leave them alone, even if they need to go to the restroom.

Listen and prompt the student to talk.

Review options and resources of people who can help.

Be comfortable with moments of silence as you and the student will need time to process the situation.

Provide comfort to the student.

Promise privacy and help, and be respectful, but do not promise confidentiality.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

104



Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Student should only be released to parents/guardians/caregivers or to a person who is qualified and trained to
provide help.

Follow procedures for re-entry to School After a Suicide Attempt.

Action Plan for Out-of-School Suicide Attempts

If a suicide attempt by a student is outside of property, it is crucial to protect the privacy of the student and
maintain a confidential record of the actions taken to intervene, support, and protect the student. The
following steps should be implemented:

Contact the parents/guardians/caregivers and offer support to the family.

Discuss with the family how they would like the school to respond to the attempt while minimizing
widespread rumors among teachers, staff, and students.

Obtain permission from the parents/guardians/caregivers to share information to ensure the facts regarding
the crisis is correct.

Designate a staff member to handle media requests.

Provide care and determine appropriate support to affected students.
Follow procedures for re-entry to School After a Suicide Attempt.
Re-Entry to School After a Suicide Attempt

A student who threatened or attempted suicide is at a higher risk for suicide in the months following the crisis.
Having a streamlined and well planned re-entry process ensures the safety and wellbeing of students who
have previously attempted suicide and reduces the risk of another attempt. An appropriate re-entry process is
an important component of suicide prevention. Involving students in planning for their return to school
provides them with a sense of control, personal responsibility, and empowerment.

A student returning to school following hospitalization, including psychiatric and drug or alcohol inpatient
treatment, must have written permission by the health care provider in order to attend school.

A written authorization to exchange/release information should be completed by the
parents/guardians/caregivers and appropriate school staff (e.g., school psychologist, school counselor and/or
nurse) should consult with the outside mental health or medical treatment team.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

105



Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

If the student has been out of school for any length of time, including mental health hospitalization, the school
site administrator or designee should hold a re-entry meeting with key support staff,
parent/guardian/caregiver and student to facilitate a successful transition back into school.

The re-entry meeting should include a review of the authorization for return and documentation provided by
the outside mental health or medical treatment team.

The documentation provided should be considered in the development of a student safety plan for re-entry.

The school team should confer with student and parents/guardians/caregivers about any specific requests on
how to handle the re-entry.

Inform the student’s teachers about possible days of absences.

Allow accommodations for student to make up work (be understanding that missed assignments may add
stress to student).

Mental health professionals or trusted staff members should maintain ongoing contact to monitor student’s
actions and mood as part of the student safety plan.

Work with parents/guardians/caregivers to involve the student in an aftercare plan.
POSTVENTION

A death by suicide in the school community (whether by a student or staff member) can have devastating
consequences on students and staff. Therefore, it is vital to be prepared ahead of time in the event of such a
tragedy. The following are general procedures for the school administrator/ Executive Director in the event of
a completed suicide:

Gather pertinent information
Confirm cause of death is the result of suicide, if this information is available.
Identify staff member to be the point of contact with the family of the deceased.

Information about the cause of death should not be disclosed to the school community until the family has
been consulted and has consented to disclosure.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

106




Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Assemble district crisis response team

District crisis response team to determine initial response procedures and obtain consultation regarding
number of personnel needed for initial response. It is helpful to have the following information available for
consultation:

-Demographic information

-Siblings (If any within)

-School Profile

-Known friends/groups

-ldentification of additional high risk students

Staff notification

Concerns and wishes of family members regarding disclosure of the death and cause of death should always
be taken into consideration when providing facts to students, staff and parents. Some actions to consider:

Assess the extent and degree of psychological trauma and impact to the school community
Establish a plan to notify staff of death, once consent is obtained by the family of the deceased.
Notification of staff is recommended as soon as possible (In person if possible).

To dispel rumors, share accurate information and all known facts about the death.

Emphasize that no one event is to blame for suicide. Suicide is complex and cannot be simplified by blaming
individuals, drugs, music and/or school.

Allow staff to express their own reactions and grief; identify anyone who may need additional support and
provide resources.

Student notification and support
Concerns and wishes of family members regarding disclosure of the death and cause of death should always
be taken into consideration when providing facts to students, staff and parents. Some actions to consider:

Comprehensive School Safety Plan
|

107




Feather River Charter School

Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Notification of students should be done in small group settings, such as in the classroom. Do not notify
students using a public announcement system.

To the extent possible, students should be notified in the same time period to minimize rumors.

When possible, the news should be delivered by staff with whom the students are most familiar and
comfortable.

Provide staff with a scripted notification of death for students and

Prepare staff for potential reactions and questions. Review student support plan making sure to clarify
procedures and locations for crisis counseling.

Define triage procedures for students and staff who may need additional support in coping with the death.

Identify a lead crisis response staff member to assist with coordination of crisis counseling and support
services.

Identify locations on campus to provide crisis counseling to students, staff and parents, as needed.

Identify a mental health professional (School psychologist or school counselor) to check in with students
previously identified to be at risk for suicide.

Request substitute teachers, as needed.
Maintain sign-in sheets and documentation on individual’s services for follow up, as needed.

Provide students, staff or parents/guardians/caretakers with after-hours resource numbers such as the 24/7
Suicide Prevention Crisis Line.

Refer students or staff who require a higher level of care for additional services such as a community mental

health provider, or their health care provider. Indicators of students and staff in need of additional support
and/or referral may include the following:

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School
108




Section J: Mental Health Guidelines

Part 2: Suicide Prevention, Intervention and Postvention Protocol

Persons with close connections to the deceased.

Persons who have experienced a loss over the past six months to a year, a traumatic event, have witnessed
acts of violence, or have a history of suicide (Self or family member).

Persons who appear emotionally over-controlled (e.g., a student who was very close to the deceased but who
is exhibiting no emotional reaction to the loss) or those who are angry when majority are expressing sadness.

Persons unable to control crying

Persons with multiple traumatic experiences may have strong reactions that require additional assistance.
Document

School administration shall maintain records and documentation of actions taken at the school site.
Monitor and manage

School administration with support from the district crisis team should monitor and manage the situation as it
develops to determine follow up actions and continued support plans.

Communicate with the larger school community about the suicide death;

Consider funeral arrangements for family and school community;

Respond to memorial requests in respectful and non-harmful manner; responses should be handed in a
thoughtful way and their impact on other students should be considered. Memorials or dedications to a

student who has died by suicide should not glamorize or romanticize either the student or the death.

Identify and monitor social media platforms students are using to respond to the suicide. Encourage parents
to monitor internet postings regarding the death, including the deceased personal profile pages.

Comprehensive School Safety Plan

Feather River Charter School

109



Section K: Crime Assessment

Part 1: Crime Assessment

In compliance with SB 187 and SB 334, will compile statistics pertaining to school crime committed at our
locations and at school-related functions. The school will complete a California Safe Schools Assessment —
School Crime Reporting Form for each incident that occurs. Copies of these forms shall be inserted in the
Appendix this plan. The school will also insert an annual breakdown of incidents, by month. Information
obtained will assist the school and in developing programs to reduce the incidence of crime on campus.

110



Feathor Diven

Field Trip Policy

The Governing Board of Feather River Charter School recognizes that school-sponsored trips are
an important component of a student’s development. These types of trips supplement and enrich
the homeschooling and classroom learning experience. In addition, field trips encourage new
interests among students, make them more aware of community resources, and help them relate
their school experiences to the outside world. School-sponsored field trips may be conducted in
connection with the Feather River Charter School’s course of study or school-related social,
educational, cultural, athletic, school band activities or other extracurricular or cocurricular
activities.

The purpose of the Feather River Charter School Governing Board approving this Field Trip Policy
is to accomplish the following:

Outline the Requirements for a Field Trip

Explain Supervision, Chaperone and Guest Policies

Explain Accommodation Options for Special Education Students
Identify Student and Family Responsibly While Attending Field Trips
Identify Transportation Options for Field Trip Attendance

MRS

1. Requirements for a Field Trip: No field trips may be made to locations, activities, or
programs where students will be treated unfairly based on disability, gender, gender identity,
gender expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other
characteristic that is contained in the definition of hate crimes set forth in Penal Code section
422.55, including immigration status, equal rights, and opportunities in the educational
institutions of the state.

School-sponsored trips are those that are single-day, community based or those that are
specifically approved by the Governing Board of Feather River Charter School (such as multi-
day trips, or those costing the Feather River Charter School in excess of $250 per pupil). The
Executive Director of Feather River Charter School shall establish a process for approving a
staff member’s request to conduct a school-sponsored trip that fall outside the limitations of
this section. When planning trips, staff shall consider student safety, objectives of instruction,
the most effective use of instructional time, school and student expense, and transportation and
supervision requirements. Executive Directors may exclude from the trip any student whose
presence on the trip would pose a safety or disciplinary risk.

All field trips are voluntary, and no student is required to attend any given field trip. A



student’s ability to attend any field trip is limited by the amount of enrichment funds available
for that student. The teacher of records is responsible for mapping out a child’s field trip plan
for the year to enhance the child’s educational plan.

. Field Trip Supervision: Given the need for adequate supervision of the students attending

school-sponsored trips and given the nature of the educational program offered by Feather
River Charter School, if applicable, Feather River Charter School will pay for the costs of
admission for one chaperone for each four (4) children in a family and enrolled in Feather
River Charter School. If applicable, Feather River Charter School will pay for the costs of
admission for an additional chaperone for additional children in a family and enrolled in
Feather River Charter School in excess of four (up to eight). Children in a family means
children living, part- or full-time, with a parent/guardian, irrespective of adoptive status or
marital status of the parents/guardians. The funds used to pay for the chaperone as allowed in
this paragraph shall be instructional funds available to each family.

Families are limited to one school-sponsored overnight field trip per year with admission paid
for one chaperone using enrichment funds. Feather River Charter School will not provide the
cost of admission for any chaperones for vendor trips and independent enrichment trips.

It is the responsibility of parents/guardians to ensure proper supervision over their children
enrolled in Feather River Charter School at all times during a school-sponsored trip.
Chaperones may take their own non-enrolled children (two years and older) as guests on
appropriate school-sponsored trips, provided they assume full responsibility for their behavior
and, with approval of the Executive Director.

The organizing teacher shall use a field trip attendance form to track attendance, emergency
contact information, and identify any authorized adults to pick-up students afterhours, if
applicable. Organizing teachers shall always have an emergency contact phone number for
the Executive Director. Ifa serious discipline incident occurs during a field trip, the organizing
teacher shall notify the Executive Director immediately. No student shall be sent home or
separated from the school group without prior approval of the organizing teacher.

. Accommodations: If a family requires special accommodation due to a child’s special

education needs identified in the child’s Individual Education Plan (IEP) or Section 504 plan,
the family may request accommodation from the Executive Director.

Student and Family Responsibilities: All persons making the field trip or excursion shall be
deemed to have waived all claims against the Feather River Charter School or the State of
California for injury, accident, illness or death occurring during or by reason of the field trip
or excursion. All adults, parents and guardians taking any field trip or excursion shall sign a
statement waiving all claims.

All students on a school-sponsored trip are under the jurisdiction of Feather River Charter
School and shall be subject to school disciplinary rules and regulations.

Before a student can participate in a school-sponsored trip, the organizing teacher shall obtain



parent/guardian permission for the trip. Whenever a trip involves water activities, the
parent/guardian shall provide specific permission for his/her child to participate in the water
activities.

Transportation: Parent(s)/guardian(s) are solely responsible for transporting their children to
the location where the field trip starts. The organizing teacher will provide the location for the
field trip, and the time to meet, to the parent(s)/guardian(s) once the field trip has been
confirmed.

The organizing teacher shall use a field trip attendance form to track attendance, emergency
contact information, and identify any authorized adults to pick-up students afterhours, if
applicable. Organizing teachers shall always have an emergency contact phone number for
the Executive Director. Ifa serious discipline incident occurs during a field trip, the organizing
teacher shall notify the Executive Director immediately. No student shall be sent home or
separated from the school group without prior approval of the organizing teacher.



B
Feathor Diven

Educational Vendor Policies and Procedures

Feather River Charter School (“Charter School”) is focused on “Personalized Learning”, a
philosophy that puts every student first by supporting them in honoring and exploring their unique
skills, special gifts, talents, and aspirations. In furtherance of this philosophy and Charter School’s
educational mission, families and Charter School staff together carefully select educational items
and services for students to fit their goals and education plan.

The purpose of the Feather River Charter School Governing Board approving the Educational
Vendor Policies and Procedures is to accomplish the key requirements detailed in this policy,
including:

1.

2.

3.

The Executive Director (as defined below) must approve all vendors before they can
provide educational items or services to students.

The Homeschool Teacher (as defined below) and Executive Director (as defined below)
must approve all requests for educational items or services to ensure they are aligned with
the charter petition and student’s personalized learning curriculum.

No family may spend, or obligate the Charter School to spend, any Charter School monies
on educational items and services. Charter School is responsible for making purchases of
approved educational items and services.

VENDOR APPLICATION AND APPROVAL

Educational Vendor Applications: Charter School contracts with educational vendors
who provide educational enrichment services (e.g., in-person educational activities) and
items (e.g., textbooks, workbooks, etc.) to students. Vendors must submit an application
to Charter School detailing critical information such as qualifications and services. Charter
School shall carefully review Vendor’s application, website, available references, social
media, and other pertinent information.

The Executive Director or his/her designee (“Executive Director’”) must approve all
educational vendors and enter into an agreement with approved vendors before a vendor
can provide any educational services to students. The Executive Director may reject a
vendor applicant or terminate vendor services for any reason. The Executive Director may
delegate his/her authority to approve vendors as necessary to promote the effective
operations of the Charter School. For educational products, parents may submit requests
specific educational products from a particular vendor (e.g., pencils from an online store).
The Charter School’s approval of the educational product request (approval process
described below) serves as vendor approval.



Vendor Guidelines: The Executive Director is responsible for approving vendors, and
must ensure the vendor meets guidelines, including, but not limited to the following:

e Vendor must have the qualifications, skills and, if applicable, the certification and
licenses necessary to perform the requested services in a competent and professional
manner.

e Vendor conducts background checks pursuant to Education Code section 45125.1 to
ensure Vendor (if an individual), its employees, and agents who interact with students
have not committed a serious or violent felony.

e Vendor services and/or products must be non-sectarian. Vendor’s services and products
must not discriminate on the basis of disability, gender, gender identity, gender
expression, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation or any other
protected basis under California law.

e Vendor must maintain adequate levels of insurance for its educational services.

e Vendor must not be a private school offering services through a part-time program
(e.g., after school programs) or a parent-organized group (also known as “co-op”).

o Vendors must qualify as independent contractors in accordance with applicable laws.
This is determined by the Executive Director based on vendor representations and
vetting by the Charter School or its service provider.

Vendor Agreement: Once the Executive Director has approved a vendor, the vendor and
Charter School must enter into a vendor agreement before the school can order educational
services from the vendor. Considering families may have one-off requests for educational
products, a vendor agreement may not be necessary for the Charter School to purchase
educational products (e.g., ordering pencils from an online store for one student). The
vendor agreement will include protections set forth in this policy, including, but not limited
to requiring background checks for staff interacting with students, prohibitions on non-
sectarian/discriminatory items and services, insurance and indemnification provisions, and
more.

REQUESTING EDUCATIONAL SERVICES AND ITEMS

Requests: Students make requests for educational services and items through the
Enrichment ordering system. The Enrichment ordering system is accessible on the Charter
School website and features a list of approved educational vendors. All requests for
educational services and items must: (i) first be approved the credentialed teacher assigned
to supervise student’s independent study (“Homeschool Teacher”); and (ii) approved by
the Executive Director or designee. The Executive Director may delegate his/her authority
to approve parent requests for educational items and services as necessary to promote the
effective operations of the Charter School.

The Executive Director can deny any request for educational items or services in his or her



sole discretion for any reason. Families cannot directly purchase, or obligate the Charter
School to purchase, any educational items or service without Charter School’s approval.

The Charter School establishes a planning amount for students for educational items and
services per full school year. Parents and students are not guaranteed to receive any
educational items and services up to and equal to this planning amount, as a Homeschool
Teacher and the Executive Director must approve all requests. The planning amount is
also not a mandatory cap limiting the Charter School’s ability provide necessary
educational services to students (e.g., pursuant to a student’s individualized education
program). The Charter School developed this planning amount to help ensure the school
provides educational items and services aligned with its budget and to help ensure fair and
equal treatment of students, to the extent consistent with individual needs. Parents and
students are not given access to direct or encumber planning amount funds. Parents are
encouraged to work with their Homeschool Teacher to develop multi-year plans for their
children because their educational needs may vary from year-to-year. While the Charter
School does not guarantee any specific amount of funding for educational services and
items, a multi-year plan empowers the Charter School and families to develop a
personalized course of study suited to their children’s needs and the Charter School to
effectively budget for all students. The planning amount cannot be transferred to any other
student.

The Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director are responsible for granting requests and
allocating educational products and services in a nondiscriminatory manner. The Charter
School shall seek to purchase cost-effective educational items and services. The
Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director shall ensure purchased educational items and
services meet the following requirements:

e From approved vendors only.
e Support the requesting student’s personalized curriculum and education plan.

e Must be aligned with State standards, student’s course of study (e.g., requested amount
of fabric corresponds to length of course/project), or student’s independent study
master written agreement.

e From a vendor who is not related to the Charter School family requesting the
educational items or services and otherwise does not present conflict of interest
concerns.

Core Subject Curriculum: The Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director must ensure
students access all necessary ‘“core subject curriculum” — education items/services
necessary for the student to complete his/her State standards-aligned course of study —
before approving any extracurricular activities or supplemental educational or enrichment
items. Core subject curriculum includes physical curriculum like McGraw Hill Textbook
Set and associated workbooks and access to digital educational platforms such as
Odysseyware or StongMind Digital Learning.

Enrichment Certificates: After the Homeschool Teacher and Executive Director approve
a request through the Enrichment ordering system, an “Enrichment Certificate” is created
by Charter School. Charter School requests educational services and items from approved
vendors through Enrichment Certificates. If necessary, Charter School may use an



approved vendor’s purchase order form in lieu of an Enrichment Certificate.
Certificates/purchase orders should include important information, including the requested
educational services, dates of services, Enrichment Certificate/PO Number, and approved
cost for services.

Vendors must receive an approved Enrichment Certificate/purchase order before providing
educational services or items to students. Vendors must receive the Enrichment
Certificate/purchase order and provide the requested education services before submitting
an invoice to Charter School.

Prohibited Requests: Charter School students can only request education services and
items available in the Enrichment ordering system. Homeschool Teachers and Executive
Directors will only approve requests for educational items and services that are educational
quality (e.g., not top of the line). Only basic items and services may be approved. Charter
School will not approve educational items or services beyond what is needed to meet a
student’s learning objectives.

The following is a non-exhaustive list of prohibited items and services:
e Backpacks
e Amusement park tickets
e Video game hardware or software
e Excessive quantities of any item or service (e.g., beyond student’s course of study).

e Non-educational household items (e.g., storage containers, organizational items (large
or small items), picture frames, etc.)

e Bicycles, tricycles, scooters, skateboards, rollerblades, roller skates, wagons, etc.

e Live animals or animal supplies small insects/amphibians/worms as a part of a science
class. Certain kit and supplies can be ordered by a student (e.g., praying mantis,
caterpillars, ladybugs, or silkworms to study; ant farms; or tadpoles)

e Top of the line musical instruments (where more reasonably-priced options are
available)

e FEducational items and services must be nonsectarian
e Taxis/Uber/Lyft rides and other transportation costs

Educational Field Trips: While families are prohibited from requesting trips to non-
educational venues, they can request to join educational field trips through the enrichment
ordering system (e.g., museums, aquariums, libraries, etc.) The Executive Director and
Homeschool Teacher shall carefully scrutinize each request to ensure the requested
educational field trip aligns with the student’s course of study and furthers their education
and that all participants are necessary for student transportation, safety and supervision.

In light of the Charter School providing an independent study program, it is anticipated
that a parent/guardian may need to serve as chaperone and transport their children for
approved educational field trips. The Charter School Board finds funding the actual,
reasonable, and necessary costs for a chaperone to access the educational field trip (e.g.,
ticket to museum, embedded transportation costs) furthers public school purposes where



necessary or desirable to allow students to participate in educational field trips.
6. Student and Family Responsibilities:

A. Returning Educational Products: All educational items requested through the
Enrichment ordering system are the property of the Charter School. This includes any
technology, textbooks, and other educational items. Families must return all
educational products upon disenrollment or upon request by the Executive Director or
Homeschool Teacher. In accordance with applicable law, parents are responsible for
to replace lost, stolen, damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items.

e Certain items are “consumable”, meaning they are not functional after use (e.g.,
workbooks). These items can be discarded by families after use.

B. Damaged or Lost Educational Items: Parents are responsible for replacing lost, stolen,
damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items to the extent allowed under
applicable law. If an educational item is damaged, parents must immediately contact
the Homeschool Teacher for support.

Required Attendance: Students must attend regular learning period meetings with their
Homeschool Teacher to discuss progress, turn in quality work samples, and complete their
Student Activity Logs (Attendance Logs) in order to make requests for extracurricular
educational activities (e.g., non-core curriculum items) through enrichment ordering
system.

7. Questions: If Charter School families have any questions about this policy or how to make
requests for educational items and services, please contact Executive Director, Jenell
Sherman at jenell@inspireschools.org.



S
Feather Piver

Extended TK - limited availability. 2020-2021 school year only

Extended TK “grandfathered” in - only available to siblings of returning students for the
2020-2021 school year. No extended TK will be offered for any students after 2020-2021.

Enrollment Date Range | Total Fund Funds upon Enrollment | Funds Drop Dec 1.
Amount

7/1-10/9 $1000 $500 $500

10/12-11/2 $750 $250 $500

11/3-1/8 $500 $500 0

Enrollment not n/a n/a n/a

available for Extended

TK after 1/8




S

S
2
9
16
23
30
S
6

20
27

S

S
1
8
15
22
29

December 2020

S

M T W T
1 2
6 7 8 9
13 14 15 16
20 21 22 23
27 28 29 30

M T W T F S
1
3 4 5 6 7 8
10 11 12 13 14 15
17 18 19 20 21 22
24 25 26 27 28 29
31
September 2020
M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5
7 8 9 10 11 12
14 15 16 17 18 19
21 22 23 24 25 26
28 29 30
October 2020
M T W T F S
1 2 3
5 6 7 8 9 10
12 13 14 15 16 17
19 20 21 22 23 24
26 27 28 29 30 31
November 2020
M T W T F S
2 3 4 5 6 7
9 10 11 12 13 14
16 17 18 19 20 21
23 24 25 26 27 28

30

M T W T
1 2 3
7 8 9 10
13 14 15 16
20 21 22 23
27 28 29 30

School Closed

F
3
10
17

31

F
4
10
17
24
31

S

S

2020-2021 School Calendar

CLASSIFIED S M T W T F S
Feqather River Charter School 1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16

17 18 19 20 21 22 23

School Year Dates 24 25 26 27 28 29 30
Aug 3 Teachers Back to Work 31

Aug 17 First Day of School for Students
Jan 8 End of Semester 1 S M T W T F S
May 25 Last Day of School 1 2 3 4 5 6

7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20
21 22 23 24 25 26 27
28

] 1 2 3 4 5 6
ww 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20

CHARTER ' SCHOOL 21 22 23 24 25 26 27

Holidays

July 3

Sep7

Nov 11

Nov 23-27
Dec 21-Jan1
Jan 18

Feb 12

Feb 15

May 31

28 29 30 3

>
T
=
N
o
N
=3

4th of July S M T W T F S
Labor Day 1 2 3
Veterans Day 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Thanksgiving Break | 11 12 13 14 15 16 17
Winter Break 18 19 20 21 22 23 24
Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 25 26 27 28 29 30
Lincoln Day

Washington Day May 2021
Memorial Day S M T W T F S
1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
16 17 19 20 21 22
23 24 @ 26 27 28 29

30 31

June 2021
S M T W T F S
1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12
13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30

o First & Last Day of School



SECONDFRST AMENDED BYLAWS
OF

FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL

a California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation

ARTICLE I
OFFICES

Section 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE. The board of directors shall fix the location of the
principal executive office of the corporation at any place within or outside the State of California.
If the principal executive office is located outside the State of California, and the corporation has
one or more offices in the State of California, the board of directors shall likewise fix and
designate a principal office in the State of California.

Section 2. OTHER OFFICES. The corporation may also establish offices at such other
places, both within and outside the State of California, as the board of directors may from time
to time determine or the activities of the corporation may require.

ARTICLE Il
OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES

The specific objectives and purposes of this corporation shall be to operate one or more
California public charter schools.

ARTICLE 1l
NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES

The corporation has been formed under the California Nonprofit Public Benefit
Corporation Law (the “Law”) for the public, nonprofit, nonpartisan, and charitable purposes
described in its articles of incorporation. Notwithstanding any other provision in these bylaws,
this corporation shall not, except to an insubstantial degree, engage in any activities or exercise
any powers that are not in furtherance of the purposes of this corporation, and the corporation
shall not carry on any other activities not permitted to be carried on (a) by a corporation exempt
from federal income tax under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (“IRC”), or (b) by a corporation contributions to which are deductible under IRC Section
170(c)(2).

ARTICLE IV
DEDICATION OF ASSETS

The properties and assets of this corporation are irrevocably dedicated to the charitable
purposes described in Article Il above and in the articles of incorporation of this corporation. No

Feather River Charter School
First-Second Amended Bylaws
Adopted on April-21,2020)June 16, 2020




part of the net earnings, properties, or assets of this corporation, on dissolution or otherwise,
shall inure to the benefit of its directors or officers, or to any individual. On liquidation or
dissolution of this corporation, all remaining assets of this corporation, after payment, or
provision for payment, of all debts and liabilities of this corporation, shall be distributed and paid
over to an organization dedicated to charitable purposes that is exempt from federal income tax
under IRC Section 501(c)(3) and that is exempt from California income tax under Section 23701d
of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

ARTICLE V
NO MEMBERS

Section 1. NO MEMBERS. The corporation shall have no members within the
meaning of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.

Section 2. AUTHORITY VESTED IN BOARD. Any action that otherwise requires
approval by a majority of all members, or approval by the members, requires only approval of
the Board. All rights that would otherwise vest under the Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation
Law in the members shall vest in the Board.

Section 3. ASSOCIATES. The corporation may use the term “members” to refer to
persons associated with it, but such persons shall not be corporate members within the meaning
of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.

ARTICLE VI
DIRECTORS

Section 1. POWERS. Subject to the provisions of the Law and any limitations in the
articles of incorporation and these bylaws, the activities and affairs of the corporation shall be
managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the direction of the board of
directors. Without prejudice to such general powers, but subject to the same limitations, it is
hereby expressly declared that the board of directors shall have the following powers in addition
to the other powers enumerated in these bylaws:

(a) To select and remove all of the other officers, agents, and employees of
the corporation; prescribe any powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the
articles of incorporation, and with these bylaws; fix their compensation; and require from them
security for faithful service.

(b) To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and activities of the
corporation and to make such rules and regulations that are consistent with law, the articles of
incorporation, and these bylaws, as they deem to be appropriate and in the best interests of the
corporation.

Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020

DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




(c) To adopt, make, and use a corporate seal; and to alter the form of such
seal.

(d) To borrow money and to incur indebtedness on behalf of the corporation,
and to cause to be executed and delivered for the purposes of the corporation, in the corporate
name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, hypothecations,
or other evidences of debt and securities.

(e) To change the principal executive office or the principal office in the State
of California from one location to another; to cause the corporation to be qualified to conduct its
activities in any other state, territory, dependency, or country and conduct its activities within or
outside the State of California; and to designate any place within or outside the State of California
for the holding of any board of directors meeting or meetings.

(f) To make donations for the public welfare or for community funds, hospital,
charitable, educational, scientific, civic, religious, or similar purposes.

(8) To act as a trustee under any trust incidental to the principal objects of the
corporation, and to receive, to hold, to administer, to exchange, and to expend funds and
property subject to such trust.

(h) To receive endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and donations of all kinds
of property for its own use, or in trust, in order to carry out or to assist in carrying out, the objects
and purposes of the corporation and to do all things and acts necessary or proper to carry out
each and all of the purposes and provisions of such endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and
donations with full power to mortgage, sell, lease, or otherwise to deal with or dispose of the
same in accordance with the terms thereof.

(i) To sell any property, real, personal, or mixed, owned by the corporation at
any time, and from time to time upon such terms as the board of directors may deem advisable,
at public or private sale, for cash or upon credit.

0] To retain sums received by the corporation uninvested, if, in the discretion
of the board of trustees, such sums cannot be invested advantageously.

(k) To retain all or any part of any securities or property acquired by the
corporation in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by the corporation,
according to the judgment of the board of directors without being restricted to the class of
investments that the board of directors is or may hereafter be permitted by law to make or any
similar restriction; provided, however, that no action shall be taken by or on behalf of the
corporation if such action is a prohibited transaction or would result in the denial of the tax
exemption under IRC Section 501 or Section 23701 of the California Revenue and Taxation Code.

Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020

DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




(N To invest funds received by the corporation in stocks, bonds, mortgages,
loans, whether secured or unsecured, or other investments as the board of directors shall deem
advisable.

Section 2. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION. The authorized number of directors shall
be no less than three (3) and no more than five eleven-(544), unless changed by amendments to
these bylaws, with the actual number to be determined from time to time by a resolution or
motion of the board. Directors shall be elected by a vote of a majority of directors then in office.
The board of directors shall consist of at least three (3) directors unless changed by an
amendment to these bylaws.

Section 3. RESTRICTION ON INTERESTED PERSONS AS DIRECTORS. |In accordance
with the California Corporations Code, nNo more than 49 percent of the persons serving on the
board of directors may be “interested persons” (as defined in this Section 3). An “interested
person” is (a) any person compensated by the corporation for services rendered to it within the
previous 12 months, whether as a full- or part-time employee, independent contractor, or
otherwise, excluding any reasonable compensation, if any, paid to a director as director; or
(b) any brother, sister, ancestor, descendant, spouse, brother-in-law, sister- in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in-law, mother-in-law, or father-in-law of any such person._ Spouses of staff are
ineligible to serve as a member of the board of directors to avoid any conflicts of interest under
Government Code section 1090. The board of directors and designated staff members are
required to follow the recusal processes identified in the Government Code sections 1091 and
1091.5, and the Political Reform Act (Government Code sections 87100, et seq.).

Section 4. TERM OF OFFICE; EVENTS CAUSING VACANCIES ON BOARD. Each director
shall hold office for twoene (24) years, which terms shall be staggered. A director may serve
multiple terms of service. A vacancy or vacancies on the board of directors shall occur in the
event of (a) the death, resignation, or removal of any director; (b) the declaration by resolution
of the board of directors of a vacancy in the office of a director who has been convicted of a
felony, declared of unsound mind by a court order, or found by final order or judgment of any
court to have breached a duty under the Law, Chapter 2, Article 3; and (c) the increase of the
authorized number of directors.

Seetion4-Section 5. DIRECTOR SELECTION. New directors shall be selected in the sole
discretion of the majority of the board at the time of selection. The board will endeavor to
advertise any director vacancies on its website and to the school community. Current board
members may also recommend potential new directors to the board. The board will accept
applications to fill available vacancies. The board is not obligated to select any applicant if, in the
board’s sole discretion, it does not believe the applicant possesses the requisite skills, availability,
demeanor, etc., suitable for the director position even if that means the position will remain
vacant. At least one member of the board of directors will be a community member or a parent
of Feather River Charter School student.

Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020

DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Sectien5-Section 6. RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS. Except as provided below, any
director may resign by giving written notice to the chairman of the board, if any, or to the
president, or the secretary, or to the board of directors. The resignation shall be effective when
the notice is given unless the notice specifies a later time for the resignation to become effective.
If a director’s resignation is effective at a later time, the board may designate a successor to take
office as of the date when the resignation becomes effective. Except upon notice to the Attorney
General of California, no director may resign if the corporation would then be left without a duly
elected director or directors in charge of its affairs.

Seetien-6-Section 7. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS. Any director may be removed at any
time by a majority vote of directors then in office, with or without cause.

Seetien—/~Section 8. VACANCIES. Vacancies on the board shall be filled by the vote of a
majority of directors then in office. Each director so elected shall hold office until expiration of
the term of the replaced director, if mid-term, and for the term if voted in at the beginning of a

new term.untila-successor-has-beendulygualified-and-elected:

Seetion-8-Section 9. PLACE OF MEETINGS AND MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE. Any meeting
of the board of directors may be held at any place within the county in which the greatest number
of pupils who are enrolled in the School reside -within-oreoutside-the-State-of California-that has
been designated from time to time by resolution of the board or in the notice of the meeting. In
the absence of such designation, meetings shall be held at the principal executive office of the
corporation. Any meeting, annual, regular or special, may be held by conference telephone or
similar communication equipment, so long as all directors participating in the meeting can hear
one another and a majority of the members are within the county in which the greatest number
of pupils who are enrolled in the School reside. All such directors shall be deemed to be present
in person at such telephonic meeting. Prior written notice of any and all such meetings of the
board of directors shall be provided to the directors at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the
time of the holding of the meeting.

Section 10.  ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS. The annual meeting of the board of
directors shall be held each year on the date and time as may be fixed by the board of directors.
At such annual meeting, officers shall be elected and any other proper business may be
transacted. Other regular meetings of the board of directors shall be held at such time as shall
from time to time be fixed by the board of directors. Netice-ofregularmeetingsshall-netbe

All meetings of the Board of Directors shall be called, held and conducted in accordance
with the terms and provisions of the Ralph M. Brown Act California Government Code sections
54950, et seq., as said chapter may be modified by subsequent legislation. This Act requires that
at least 72 hours before a regular meeting, and 24 hours before a special meeting, the Board of

Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020

DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Directors or its designee shall post an agenda containing a brief general description of each item
of business to be transacted or discussed at the meeting.

Sectien9-Section 11. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the board of directors for
any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the chairman of the board; or a board

Mmajorityire-sresidenisanyrisepresidensthesesraiarsorany-re-dirasiars,

Notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be delivered to each director
personally or by telephone or sent by first-class mail, postage prepaid, or telegram, charges
prepaid, or electronic transmission, addressed to each director at his or her address as it is shown

on the records of the corporation. In case the notice is mailed, it shall be deposited in the United
States mail at least four days prior to the time of the holding of the meeting. In case such notice
is delivered personally or by telephone or telegraph, it shall be delivered personally or by
telephone or to the telegraph company at least twenty-four seventy-twe (2472) hours prior to
the time of the holding of the meeting. Any oral notice given personally or by telephone may be
communicated either to the director or to the person at the office of the director who the person
giving the notice has reason to believe will promptly communicate it to the director. Fhe-reotice

Seetion10-Section 12.QUORUM. A majority of the authorized number of directors shall
constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 13
below. Every act or decision done or made by the board of directors requires a vote of the a

majority of the acting board of directors presentatameeting-duly-heldat-whichagquerum-is

presentshallberegardedastheactofthe board-ofdirectors;-subject to the provisions of Section
5212 of the Code (appointment of committees), Section 5233 of the Code (approval of contracts

or transactions in which a director has a direct or indirect material financial interest), Section
5234 of the Code (approval of certain transactions between corporations having common
directorships), Section 5235 (compensation of directors or officers), and Section 5238(e) of the

Code (indemnification of dlrectors) A—meeting at-which—a—gquorum—is—initialy—present may

Seetion1+-Section 13.WAIVER OF NOTICE; CONSENT. Notice of a meeting required by
the Corporations Code need not be given to any director who, either before or after the meeting,
signs a waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the minutes of the
meeting. The waiver of notice or consent need not specify the purpose of the meeting. All such
waivers, consents, and approvals shall be filed with the corporate records or made a part of the
minutes of the meeting. Notice of meeting shall also be deemed given to any director who
attends the meeting without protesting, before or at the commencement of the meeting, the
lack of notice to that director. Notice of all meetings shall be given in accordance with the
requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act, California Corporations Code sections 54950, et seq.

-6-
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws
Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Sectiend2.Section 14.ADJOURNMENT. A majority of the directors present, whether or
not constituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place. Notice of the
time and place of holding an adjourned meeting shall be given in the same manner as provided
for special meetings, unless notice is waived as provided for special meetings. A copy of the
notice of adjournment shall be conspicuously posted on or near the door of the place where the
adjourned meeting was held within 24 hours after the time of the adjournment. need-retbe

an—unlacc tha maao Nno dicourned-formore-thantwentyu-fo 4\ ho nwhich a notice

Seetien24-Section 15.FEES AND COMPENSATION. Directors and members of committees
shall receive no compensation for their services; provided however, that directors and members
of committees may receive reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as determined by
resolution of the board of directors. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to preclude
any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity as an officer, agent, employee,
or otherwise, and receiving compensation for such services if compensation is awarded by the
board of directors.

ARTICLE VII
COMMITTEES

Section 1. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS. The board of directors may, by resolution
adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, designate one or more committees, each
consisting of two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the board. Appointments to such
committees shall be by a majority vote of the directors then in office. The board may designate
one or more directors as alternate members of any committee, who may replace any absent
member at any meeting of the committee. Any such committee, to the extent provided in the

resolution of the board, shall be advisory onlymay-havealtheautherity-ofthe board—except
yihressesiie.s

Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020

DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Section 2. MEETINGS AND ACTION. Meetings and action of committees of the board
shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article VI of these
bylaws, Sections 8 (place of meetings and meetings by telephone), 9 (annual and regular
meetings), 10 (special meetings), 11 (quorum), 12 (waiver of notice), 13 (adjournment) and 14
(action without meeting), with such changes in the context of those bylaws as are necessary to
substitute the committee and its members for the board of directors and its members, except
for the following: (a) the time of regular and annual meetings of committees may be determined
by resolution of the board of directors as well as the committee; (b) special meetings of
committees may also be called by resolution of the board of directors; and (c) and notice of
special meetings of committees shall also be given to all alternate members, who shall have the
right to attend all meetings of the committee. Minutes of each meeting of any committee shall
be kept and filed with the corporate records. The board of directors may adopt rules for the
government of any committee not inconsistent with the provisions of these bylaws._If required
by law, committee meetings shall be held in accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, California
Government Code sections 54950, et seq.

ARTICLE VIII
OFFICERS

Section 1. OFFICERS. The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a secretary,
and a chief financial officer. The corporation may also have, at the discretion of the board of
directors, a chairman of the board, one or more vice presidents, one or more assistant
secretaries, one or more assistant treasurers, and such other officers as may be appointed in
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this Article VIII. Any number of offices may be
held by the same person, except that neither the secretary nor the chief financial officer may
serve concurrently as the president or the chairman of the board.

Section 2. ELECTION. The officers of the corporation, except such officers as may be
appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or Section 5 of this Article VIII, shall be
chosen by the board of directors, and each shall serve at the pleasure of the board, subject to
the rights, if any, of an officer under any contract of employment.

-8-
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Section 3. OTHER OFFICERS. The board of directors may appoint, and may empower
the president to appoint, such other officers as the activities of the corporation may require, each
of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and perform such duties as are
provided in the bylaws or as the board of directors may from time to time determine.

Section 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION. Subject to the rights, if any, of any officer
under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause,
by the board of directors or, except in case of an officer chosen by the board of directors, by any
officer upon whom such power of removal may be conferred by the board of directors.

Any officer may resign at any time by giving written notice to the corporation. Any
such resignation shall take effect at the date of the receipt of such notice or at any later time
specified therein; and, unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of such resignation
shall not be necessary to make it effective. Any such resignation is without prejudice to the rights,
if any, of the corporation under any contract to which the officer is a party.

Section 5. VACANCIES. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation,
removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these
bylaws for regular appointments to such office.

Section 6. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD. The chairman of the board, if such an officer
be elected, shall, if present, preside at meetings of the board of directors and exercise and
perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to him or her by the
board of directors or prescribed by the bylaws. If there is no president, the chairman of the board
will in addition be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall have the powers and
duties prescribed in Section 7 of this Article VIII.

Section 7. PRESIDENT. Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by
the board of directors to the chairman of the board, if there be such an officer, the president
shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, subject to the control of the board
of directors, have general supervision, direction, and control of the activities and the officers of
the corporation. He or she shall preside, in the absence of the chairman of the board, or if there
be none, at all meetings of the board of directors. He or she shall have the general powers and
duties of management usually vested in the office of president of the corporation and shall have
such other powers and duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws.

Section 8. VICE PRESIDENTS. In the absence or disability of the president, the vice
presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the board of directors or, if not ranked, a vice
president designated by the board of directors, shall perform all the duties of the president, and
when so acting shall have all the powers of, and be subject to all the restrictions upon, the
president. The vice presidents shall have such other powers and perform such other duties as
from time to time may be prescribed for them respectively by the board of directors or the bylaws
and the president or the chairman of the board.

-9.-
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws
Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Section 9. SECRETARY. The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal
executive office or such other place as the board of directors may direct, a book of minutes of all
meetings and actions of directors, and committees of directors, with the time and place of
holding, whether regular or special, and, if special, how authorized, the notice thereof given, the
names of those present at directors and committee meetings, and the proceedings thereof.

The secretary shall give, or cause to be given, notice of all meetings of the board
of directors required by the bylaws or by law to be given, and he or she shall keep the seal of the
corporation, if one be adopted, in safe custody, and shall have such other powers and perform
such other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or by the bylaws.

Section 10.  CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER. The chief financial officer shall keep and
maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and records of
accounts of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including accounts of its
assets, liabilities, receipts, disbursements, gains, losses, capital, retained earnings, and other
matters customarily included in financial statements. The books of account shall at all reasonable
times be open to inspection by any director.

The chief financial officer shall deposit, or cause to be deposited, all monies and
other valuables in the name and to the credit of the corporation with such depositaries as may
be designated by the board of directors. He or she shall distribute, or cause to be disbursed, the
funds of the corporation as may be ordered by the board of directors, shall render to the
president and directors, whenever they request it, an account of all financial transactions and of
the financial condition of the corporation, and shall have such other powers and perform such
other duties as may be prescribed by the board of directors or the bylaws.

If required by the board of directors, the chief financial officer shall give the
corporation a bond in the amount and with the surety or sureties specified by the board for
faithful performance of the duties of his or her office and for restoration to the corporation of all
of its books, papers, vouchers, money, and other property of every kind in his or her possession
or under his or her control on the death, resignation, retirement, or removal from office of the
chief financial officer.

ARTICLE IX
INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES

Section 1. DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of this Article IX, the definition of the terms

n o u

“agent”, “proceeding”, and “expenses” shall be governed by Section 5238 of the Code.

Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY THIRD PARTIES. The corporation shall
have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party
to any proceeding (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation to procure a
judgment in its favor, an action brought under Section 5233 of the Code, or an action brought by
the Attorney General of California or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General of

-10 -
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




California for any breach of duty relating to assets held in charitable trust) by reason of the fact
that such person is or was an agent of the corporation, against expenses, judgments, fines,
settlements, and other amounts actually and reasonably incurred in connection with such
proceeding if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed
to be in the best interests of the corporation and, in the case of a criminal proceeding, had no
reasonable cause to believe the conduct of such person was unlawful. The termination of any
proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its
equivalent shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and
in @ manner which the person reasonably believed to be in the best interests of the corporation
or that the person had reasonable cause to believe that the person's conduct was unlawful.

Section 3. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY OR IN THE RIGHT OF THE
CORPORATION. The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party
or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action by or in the
right of the corporation, or brought under Section 5233 of the Code, or brought by the Attorney
General of California or a person granted relator status by the Attorney General of California for
breach of duty relating to assets held in charitable trust, to procure a judgment in its favor by
reason of the fact that such person is or was an agent of the corporation, against expenses
actually and reasonably incurred by such person in connection with the defense or settlement of
such action if such person acted in good faith, in a manner such person believed to be in the best
interests of the corporation, and with such care, including reasonable inquiry, as an ordinarily
prudent person in a like position would use under similar circumstances. No indemnification shall
be made under this Section 3 for any of the following:

(a) Any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person shall have been
adjudged to be liable to the corporation in the performance of such person's duty to the
corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action was brought shall
determine upon application that, in view of all the circumstances of the case, such person is fairly
and reasonably entitled to indemnity for the expenses which such court shall determine;

(b) Amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened or pending
action, with or without court approval; or

(c) Expenses incurred in defending a threatened or pending action which is
settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval, unless it is settled with the approval of
the Attorney General of California.

Section 4. INDEMNIFICATION AGAINST EXPENSES. To the extent that an agent of the
corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding referred to in
Sections 2 or 3 of this Article IX or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter therein, the agent
shall be indemnified against expenses actually and reasonably incurred by the agent in
connection therewith.

-11 -
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws
Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Section 5. REQUIRED DETERMINATIONS. Except as provided in Section 4 of this
Article IX, any indemnification under this Article shall be made by the corporation only if
authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the agent is proper
in the circumstances because the agent has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in
Sections 2 or 3 of this Article IX by:

(a) A majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who are not parties to
such proceeding; or

(b) The court in which such proceeding is or was pending upon application
made by the corporation or the agent or the attorney or other person rendering services in
connection with the defense, whether or not such application by the agent, attorney, or other
person is opposed by the corporation.

Section 6. ADVANCE OF EXPENSES. Expenses incurred in defending any proceeding
may be advanced by the corporation prior to the final disposition of such proceeding upon receipt
of an undertaking by or on behalf of the agent to repay such amount unless it shall be determined
ultimately that the agent is entitled to be indemnified as authorized in this Article IX.

Section 7. OTHER INDEMNIFICATION. No provision made by the corporation to
indemnify its directors or officers for the defense of any proceeding, whether contained in the
articles of incorporation, bylaws, a resolution of directors, an agreement, or otherwise, shall be
valid unless consistent with this Article IX. Nothing contained in this Article IX shall affect any
right to indemnification to which persons other than such directors and officers may be entitled
by contract or otherwise.

Section 8. FORMS OF INDEMNIFICATION NOT PERMITTED. No indemnification or
advance shall be made under this Article IX, except as provided in Section 4 or Section 5(b), in
any circumstance if it appears that:

(a) It would be inconsistent with a provision of the articles of incorporation,
bylaws, or an agreement in effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged cause of action asserted
in the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other amounts were paid, which
prohibits or otherwise limits indemnification; or

(b) It would be inconsistent with any condition expressly imposed by a court
in approving a settlement.

Section 9. INSURANCE. The corporation shall have the power to purchase and
maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation against any liability asserted against
or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent’s status as such, whether or
not the corporation would have the power to indemnify the agent against such liability under the
provisions of this Article IX; provided, however, that the corporation shall have no power to

-12 -
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws
Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




purchase and maintain such insurance to indemnify any agent of the corporation for a violation
of Section 5233 of the Code.

ARTICLE X
RECORDS AND REPORTS

Section 1. MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS. The corporation shall keep
(a) adequate and correct books and records of account kept either in written form or in any other
form capable of being converted into written form and (b) minutes, in written form, of the
proceedings of the board of directors and committees of the board. All such records shall be
kept at the corporation's principal executive office, or if its principal executive office is outside
the State of California, at its principal office in this state.

Section 2. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND BYLAWS. The
corporation shall keep at its principal executive office, or if its principal executive office is not in
the State of California, at its principal office in this state, the original or a copy of its articles of
incorporation and bylaws, as amended to date, that shall be open to inspection by the directors
at all reasonable times during office hours. If the principal executive office of the corporation is
outside the State of California and the corporation has no principal office in this state, the
Secretary shall, upon the written request of any director, furnish to such director a copy of the
articles of incorporation or bylaws, as amended to date.

Section 3. INSPECTION. Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable
time, and from time to time, to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the
physical properties of the corporation. Such inspection by a director may be made in person or
by agent or attorney and the right of inspection includes the right to copy and make extracts.

Section 4. ANNUAL REPORTS. The board of directors shall cause an annual report to
be sent to the directors within 120 days of the corporation’s fiscal year end. That report shall
contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fiscal year:

(a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the corporation as of
the end of the fiscal year;

(b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds;

(c) The revenue or receipts of the corporation, both unrestricted and
restricted to particular purposes;

(d) The expenses or disbursements of the corporation for both general and
restricted purposes; and

(e) Any information required by Section 5 of this Article X.

-13 -
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws
Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




The annual report shall be accompanied by any report thereon of independent
accountants or, if there is no such report, by the certificate of an authorized officer of the
corporation that such statements were prepared without audit from the books and records of
the corporation.

Section 5. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND
INDEMNIFICATIONS. As part of the annual report to all directors, the corporation shall annually
prepare and mail or deliver to each director within 120 days after the corporation's fiscal year
end, a statement (described below) of any transaction or indemnification (i) in which the
corporation was a party and (ii) in which an “interested person” had a direct or indirect material
financial interest, if any such transaction occurred. For this purpose, an “interested person” is
any director or officer of the corporation.

The statement shall include the following information:

(a) A brief description of any transaction during the previous fiscal year that
involved more than $50,000, or was one of a number of transactions in which the same interested
person had a direct or indirect material financial interest involving, in the aggregate, more than
$50,000;

(b) The names of interested persons involved in such transactions described
in the preceding paragraph (a), their relationship to the corporation, the nature of their interest
in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest; provided, however, that if the
transaction was with a partnership in which the interested person is a partner, only the interest
of the partnership need be stated; and

(c) A brief description of the amount and circumstances of any
indemnifications or advances aggregating more than $10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any
officer or director of the corporation under Article IX of these bylaws, unless that indemnification
already has been approved by the directors under Section 5238(e)(2) of the Code.

ARTICLE XI
GENERAL MATTERS

Section 1. CHECKS, DRAFTS, EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS. All checks, drafts, or
other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in the
name of or payable to the corporation, shall be signed or endorsed by such person or persons
and in such manner as, from time to time, shall be determined by resolution of the board of
directors.

Section 2. CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS; HOW EXECUTED. Except as
otherwise provided in these bylaws, the board of directors may authorize any officer or officers,
agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the name of and on
behalf of the corporation, and such authority may be general or confined to specific instances;

-14 -
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws

Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




and, unless so authorized or ratified by the board of directors or within the agency power of an
officer, no officer, agent or employee shall have any power or authority to bind the corporation
by any contract or engagement or to pledge its credit or to render it liable for any purpose or for
any amount.

Section 3. REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS. The chairman
of the board, the president, or any vice president, or any other person authorized by resolution
of the board of directors or by any of the foregoing designated officers, is authorized to vote on
behalf of the corporation any and all shares of any other corporation or corporations, foreign or
domestic, standing in the name of the corporation. The authority granted to said officers to vote
or represent on behalf of the corporation any and all shares held by the corporation in any other
corporation or corporations may be exercised by any such officer in person or by any person
authorized to do so by a proxy duly executed by said officer.

Section 4. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS. Unless the context requires
otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the Law shall govern
the construction of these bylaws. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the singular
number includes the plural, the plural number includes the singular, the masculine gender
includes the feminine and neuter, and the term "person" includes both a corporation and a
natural person. All references in these bylaws to the Law, the Law, or to the Code shall be
deemed to be those in effect from time to time.

ARTICLE XII
AMENDMENTS

The board may adopt, amend, or repeal bylaws unless doing so would be a prohibited
amendment under the California Corporations Code. Any amendment to these bylaws will
require a majority vote of the directors then in office; provided, however, that if the articles of
incorporation of the corporation set forth the number of authorized directors of the corporation,
the authorized number of directors may be changed only by an amendment of the articles of
incorporation.

-15-
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws
Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




CERTIFICATE OF SECRETARY

The undersigned, being the duly elected and acting Secretary of Feather River Charter
School, a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, does hereby certify that the foregoing
First Amended Bylaws constitute the bylaws of this corporation as duly adopted at the meeting
of the Board of Directors of Feather River Charter School on June 16, 2020.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Certificate this 16th day of
June, 2020.

Shannon Milligan, Secretary

-16 -
Feather River Charter School
First Amended Bylaws
Adopted on June 16, 2020
DOCS 125070-000001/3697064.4




Feather River

July 2020

S M T W Th F S

1 2 3 4
5 6 7 8 9 10 11
12 13 14 15 16 17 18

August 2020 ll  September 2020

S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S | July28- Board Meeting
1 1 2 3 4 5
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 .7 8 9 10 11 12| August 25 - Board Meeting

9 10 11 12 13 14 15| |13 14 15 16 17 18 19 B -
16 17 18 19 20 21 22| | 20 21 W20 23 24 25 26 | StPtember 22 - Board Meeting

19 20 21 22 23 24 25
26 27 128 29 30 31 23 24 (25|26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30 October 27 - Board Meeting
3031 November 17 - Board Meeting
October 2020 November 2020 DI @A)  December 8 - Board Meeting
S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S January 26 - Board Meeting
1 2 3 i 2 3 4 5 6 7 1 2 3 4 5
February 23 - Board Meeting

4 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26127 28 29 30 31

8 9 10 11 12 13 14 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
15 16 [17 18 19 20 21 13 14115 16 17 18 19 March 23 - Board Meeting
22 23 24 25126 27 28 20 21 22 23124 25 26
29 30 27 28 29 30 31 April 27 - Board Meeting

May 25 - Board Meeting

January 2021

S M T W Th F S

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9
10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 118 19 20 21 22 23
24 25126 27 28 29 30

February 2021 m June 22 - Board Meeting

S M T W Th F S S M W Th F S
i 2 3 4 5 6 1 3 4 5 6 Legend:

T
2

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 7 8 9 10 11 12 13

14 15 16 17 18 19 20| | 14 (5] 16 17 18 19 20 Bl - Board Meeting

21 22023024 25 26 27| |21 2201231 24 25 26 27

31
S M T W Th F S

1 2 3
4. 5 6 7 8 9 10
11 12 13 14 15 16 17

18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 127 28 29 30

April 2021

28 28 29 30 I31 Green - Holiday
Orange - Due Date
S M T W Th F S S M T W Th F S
1 1 2 3 4 5
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9 10 11 12 13 14 15 13 14 15 16 17 18 19
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 20 21 722 23 24 25 26
23 24 [25 26 27 28 29 27 28 29 30

30 [ 31

2020-2021




Appendix — Important Due Dates

October
e Unaudited Actuals
e November 1st - Dashboard Indicators due to the state

December
e Approval of Previous Years Audit
e December 15th - LCAP (for 2020-2021 School Year Only)
e December 15th - First Interims due to the county

January
e February 1st - SARC (School Accountability Report Card) due to the state

February
e March 1st - Comprehensive School Safety Plan

March
e March 15th - Second Interims due to the county
e March 31st - Auditor Selection Form due to the county

April
e April 1st - Form 700s due to the County Board of Supervisors
e School Calendars

May
e Public Hearing of LCAP

June
e Adopted Budget
e Final Approval of the LCAP
e Board Meeting Calendar



FEATHER RIVER CHARTER SCHOOL

BOARD RESOLUTION 2020-8

Adoption of Feather River Charter School Approving Stipend Expense for
Travel, Internet and Phone

WHEREAS, Directors may be reimbursed by the Corporation for expenses
reasonably anticipated to be incurred in the performance of the duties of such officer
or director, and

WHEREAS, Directors are incurring ongoing expenses for equipment, internet
services and software, as well as travel expenses, to prepare for and participate in

meetings of the Board; and

WHEREAS, the Directors have determined that the reasonable cost of such expenses
is approximately [$XXX] for each Board meeting attended;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED:

1. Each Director shall be entitled to a stipend of $XXX for each Board meeting
attended.

2. Each Directors shall maintain such records as he or she deems proper to
substantiate such costs.



SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, , Secretary of the Board of Directors of Feather River Charter School a
California nonprofit public benefit corporation, County of , California, hereby certify as
follows:

The attached is a full, true, and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted at a meeting of the
Board of Directors of Feather River Charter School which was duly and regularly held on
, 2020, at which meeting all of the members of the Board of Directors had due notice and
at which a quorum thereof was present; and at such meeting such resolutions were adopted by the
following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes of such meeting on file and of
record in my office; the attached resolution is a full, true, and correct copy of the original resolution
adopted at such meeting and entered in such minutes; and such resolution has not been amended,
modified, or rescinded since the date of its adoption, and the same is now in full force and effect.

WITNESS my hand on , 2020.

Secretary of the Board of Directors of
Feather River Charter School



County
Sutter
Sutter

Yuba

Butte
Sacramento

School

Winship - Robbins
California Virtual Academies
CORE Charter

Come Back Butte Charter

Growth Peak

Role
Superintendant
Head of School
Executive Director
Principal

Principal

Regular Pay
$120,398.00
$144,789.44
$119,053.02
$99,507.66

$101,437.56

Other Pay
$1,800.00
$11,945.23
$0.00
$2,358.00
$0.00

Benefits

$32,402.00
$31,853.06
$29,369.58
$26,562.21
$14,443.12

Total Pay & Benefits

$154,600.00
$188,587.73
$148,422.60
$128,427.87
$115,880.68



6/3/2020 Average Salaries & Expenditure Percentage - CalEdFacts (CA Dept of Education)

California.semsmes o
’ EDUCATION

Home / Finance & Grants / Reports / Salary & Benefits for Certificated Personnel

Average Salaries & Expenditure Percentage - CalEdFacts

This content is part of California Department of Education's information and media guide about education in the
State of California. For similar information on other topics, visit the full CalEdFacts.

Statewide Average Salaries
and Expenditure Percentages: 2017-18

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction is required by California Education Code (EC) Section 41409(c) to
provide annually to each school district, for use in the School Accountability Report Card (SARC), the statewide
salary averages for teachers and administrators and the statewide percentage of expenditures spent on personnel
in the following categories:

1. Beginning, midrange, and highest salary paid to teachers

2. Salaries of school-site principals

3. Salaries of district superintendents

4. Percentage of expenditures allocated to teacher salaries

5. Percentage of expenditures allocated to administrative personnel salaries

Existing law also requires the State Superintendent to group the statewide salary averages and percentage of
expenditures by district type (elementary, high, and unified) and by size based on regular annual average daily
attendance.

Every school district, except for kindergarten through grade twelve districts with a single school, must include in its
SARC (EC Section 41409.3) the statewide averages and expenditure percentages provided by the State
Superintendent along with the district’s salaries and expenditure percentages for comparative purposes.

For more information regarding statewide average salary fiscal information, contact the Office of Financial
Accountability and Information Services by phone at 916-322-1770 or by email at sacsinfo@cde.ca.gov. Questions
concerning program information should be directed to the Policy and Evaluation Division by phone at 916-319-
0875 or by email at sarc@cde.ca.gov. Additional information is also available on the California Department of
Education SARC web page.

Statewide Average Salaries and Expenditure Percentages for the School
Accountability Report Card: 2017-18

ADA = Average Daily Attendance
Elementary School Districts

Statewide Averages Small Medium Large
ADA <1,000 ADA 1,000 to 4,999 ADA 25,000

Beginning Teacher Annual Salary $45,252 $49,378 $45,741

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fr/sa/cefavgsalaries.asp 1/3


https://www.cde.ca.gov/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fr/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fr/sa/
https://www.cde.ca.gov/re/pn/fb/index.asp
mailto:sacsinfo@cde.ca.gov
mailto:sarc@cde.ca.gov
https://www.cde.ca.gov/ta/ac/sa/index.asp

6/3/2020

Average Salaries & Expenditure Percentage - CalEdFacts (CA Dept of Education)

Midrange Teacher Annual Salary

Highest Teacher Annual Salary

School-Site Principal Annual Salary (Elementary)
School-Site Principal Annual Salary (Middle)
School-Site Principal Annual Salary (High)
District Superintendent Annual Salary
Percentage Allocated for Administrative Salaries

Percentage Allocated for Teacher Salaries

Statewide Averages

Beginning Teacher Annual Salary

Midrange Teacher Annual Salary

Highest Teacher Annual Salary

School-Site Principal Annual Salary (Middle)
School-Site Principal Annual Salary (High)
District Superintendent Annual Salary
Percentage Allocated for Administrative Salaries

Percentage Allocated for Teacher Salaries

Statewide Averages

Beginning Teacher Annual Salary

Midrange Teacher Annual Salary

Highest Teacher Annual Salary

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fr/sa/cefavgsalaries.asp

High School Districts

Unified School Districts

$65,210 $77,190 $81,840
$84,472 $96,607 $102,065
$107,614 $122,074 $129,221
$112,242 $126,560 $132,874
N/A $126,920 $128,660
$124,686 $186,346 $224,581
6.60% 5.96% 5.37%
31.42% 35.59% 36.38%
Small Medium Large
ADA <1,000 ADA 1,000 to 3,999 ADA 24,000
$48,044 $48,684 $52,466
$67,032 $78,920 $87,373
$89,023 $99,844 $109,803
N/A $135,905 $142,025
$123,219 $134,157 $153,904
$138,074 $185,654 $241,221
5.87% 5.76% 4.70%
28.38% 31.07% 33.29%
ADA ADA ADA ADA ADA
<1,500 1,500 5,000 10,000 220,000
to 4,999 109,999 to 19,999

$43,574  $46,208  $49,084  $51,374  $48,612
$63,243  $72,218  $76,091 $80,151 $74,676
$86,896  $92,742  $95,728 $100,143  $99,791

2/3



6/3/2020 Average Salaries & Expenditure Percentage - CalEdFacts (CA Dept of Education)

School-Site Principal Annual Salary (Elementary) $103,506 $113,112 $118,990 $126,896 $125,830

School-Site Principal Annual Salary (Middle) $108,961 $118,220 $125,674 $133.668 $131,167
School-Site Principal Annual Salary (High) $108.954 $127,356 $137,589 $143,746 $144,822
District Superintendent Annual Salary $136,125 $186,823 $230,096 $245,810 $275,796
Percentage Allocated for Administrative Salaries 6.40% 5.83% 5.61% 5.15% 5.06%
Percentage Allocated for Teacher Salaries 30.33% 32.54% 34.62% 35.21% 33.84%

The average salary of public school teachers in 2017—-18 for the State of California was $80,680.

According to Table B-6 of the National Education Association’s (NEA) Rankings & Estimates: Rankings of the
States 2018 and Estimates of School Statistics 2019 report, California’s 2017—18 average teacher salary ranked
second highest in comparison to all other states. To download and view NEA's full report, please visit NEA's web
site 7.

Questions: Financial Accountability & Information Services | sacsinfo@cde.ca.gov | 916-322-1770

Last Reviewed: Wednesday, July 17, 2019

https://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/fr/sa/cefavgsalaries.asp 3/3


http://www.nea.org/
mailto:sacsinfo@cde.ca.gov

	ADP7A2F.tmp
	COVID-19 Operations Written Report

	ADPE566.tmp
	A. Returning Educational Products: All educational items requested through the Enrichment ordering system are the property of the Charter School.  This includes any technology, textbooks, and other educational items.  Families must return all educatio...
	B. Damaged or Lost Educational Items:  Parents are responsible for replacing lost, stolen, damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items to the extent allowed under applicable law. If an educational item is damaged, parents must immediately contac...

	ADPADC4.tmp
	Article I  OFFICES
	Section 1. PRINCIPAL OFFICE.  The board of directors shall fix the location of the principal executive office of the corporation at any place within or outside the State of California.  If the principal executive office is located outside the State of...
	Section 2. OTHER OFFICES.  The corporation may also establish offices at such other places, both within and outside the State of California, as the board of directors may from time to time determine or the activities of the corporation may require.

	Article II  OBJECTIVES AND PURPOSES
	Article III  NONPARTISAN ACTIVITIES
	Article IV  DEDICATION OF ASSETS
	Article V  NO MEMBERS
	Section 1. NO MEMBERS.  The corporation shall have no members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.
	Section 2. AUTHORITY VESTED IN BOARD.  Any action that otherwise requires approval by a majority of all members, or approval by the members, requires only approval of the Board.  All rights that would otherwise vest under the Nonprofit Public Benefit ...
	Section 3. ASSOCIATES. The corporation may use the term “members” to refer to persons associated with it, but such persons shall not be corporate members within the meaning of Section 5056 of the California Nonprofit Public Benefit Corporation Law.

	Article VI  DIRECTORS
	Section 1. POWERS.  Subject to the provisions of the Law and any limitations in the articles of incorporation and these bylaws, the activities and affairs of the corporation shall be managed and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or under the ...
	(a) To select and remove all of the other officers, agents, and employees of the corporation; prescribe any powers and duties for them that are consistent with law, with the articles of incorporation, and with these bylaws; fix their compensation; and...
	(b) To conduct, manage, and control the affairs and activities of the corporation and to make such rules and regulations that are consistent with law, the articles of incorporation, and these bylaws, as they deem to be appropriate and in the best inte...
	(c) To adopt, make, and use a corporate seal; and to alter the form of such seal.
	(d) To borrow money and to incur indebtedness on behalf of the corporation, and to cause to be executed and delivered for the purposes of the corporation, in the corporate name, promissory notes, bonds, debentures, deeds of trust, mortgages, pledges, ...
	(e) To change the principal executive office or the principal office in the State of California from one location to another; to cause the corporation to be qualified to conduct its activities in any other state, territory, dependency, or country and ...
	(f) To make donations for the public welfare or for community funds, hospital, charitable, educational, scientific, civic, religious, or similar purposes.
	(g) To act as a trustee under any trust incidental to the principal objects of the corporation, and to receive, to hold, to administer, to exchange, and to expend funds and property subject to such trust.
	(h) To receive endowments, devises, bequests, gifts, and donations of all kinds of property for its own use, or in trust, in order to carry out or to assist in carrying out, the objects and purposes of the corporation and to do all things and acts nec...
	(i) To sell any property, real, personal, or mixed, owned by the corporation at any time, and from time to time upon such terms as the board of directors may deem advisable, at public or private sale, for cash or upon credit.
	(j) To retain sums received by the corporation uninvested, if, in the discretion of the board of trustees, such sums cannot be invested advantageously.
	(k) To retain all or any part of any securities or property acquired by the corporation in whatever manner, and to invest and reinvest any funds held by the corporation, according to the judgment of the board of directors without being restricted to t...
	(l) To invest funds received by the corporation in stocks, bonds, mortgages, loans, whether secured or unsecured, or other investments as the board of directors shall deem advisable.

	Section 2. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION.  The authorized number of directors shall be no less than three (3) and no more than five eleven (511), unless changed by amendments to these bylaws, with the actual number to be determined from time to time by a r...
	Section 3. RESTRICTION ON INTERESTED PERSONS AS DIRECTORS.  In accordance with the California Corporations Code, nNo more than 49 percent of the persons serving on the board of directors may be “interested persons” (as defined in this Section 3).  An ...
	Section 4. TERM OF OFFICE; EVENTS CAUSING VACANCIES ON BOARD.  Each director shall hold office for twoone (21) years, which terms shall be staggered. A director may serve multiple terms of service.  A vacancy or vacancies on the board of directors sha...
	Section 5. DIRECTOR SELECTION.  New directors shall be selected in the sole discretion of the majority of the board at the time of selection.  The board will endeavor to advertise any director vacancies on its website and to the school community.  Cur...
	Section 6. RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS.  Except as provided below, any director may resign by giving written notice to the chairman of the board, if any, or to the president, or the secretary, or to the board of directors.  The resignation shall be effec...
	Section 7. REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS.  Any director may be removed at any time by a majority vote of directors then in office, with or without cause.
	Section 8. VACANCIES.  Vacancies on the board shall be filled by the vote of a majority of directors then in office.  Each director so elected shall hold office until expiration of the term of the replaced director, if mid-term, and for the term if vo...
	Section 9. PLACE OF MEETINGS AND MEETINGS BY TELEPHONE.  Any meeting of the board of directors may be held at any place within the county in which the greatest number of pupils who are enrolled in the School reside  within or outside the State of Cali...
	Section 10. ANNUAL AND REGULAR MEETINGS.  The annual meeting of the board of directors shall be held each year on the date and time as may be fixed by the board of directors.  At such annual meeting, officers shall be elected and any other proper busi...
	Section 11. SPECIAL MEETINGS.  Special meetings of the board of directors for any purpose or purposes may be called at any time by the chairman of the board, or a board majoritythe president, any vice president, the secretary, or any two directors.
	Section 12. QUORUM.  A majority of the authorized number of directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, except to adjourn as provided in Section 13 below.  Every act or decision done or made by the board of directors requires ...
	Section 13. WAIVER OF NOTICE; CONSENT.  Notice of a meeting required by the Corporations Code need not be given to any director who, either before or after the meeting, signs a waiver of notice, a consent to holding the meeting, or an approval of the ...
	Section 14. ADJOURNMENT.  A majority of the directors present, whether or not constituting a quorum, may adjourn any meeting to another time and place.  Notice of the time and place of holding an adjourned meeting shall be given in the same manner as ...
	Section 1. ACTION WITHOUT MEETING.  Any action required or permitted to be taken by the board of directors may be taken without a meeting, if all directors shall individually or collectively consent in writing to such action. Such action by written co...
	Section 15. FEES AND COMPENSATION.  Directors and members of committees shall receive no compensation for their services; provided however, that directors and members of committees may receive reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses, as determined by ...

	Article VII  COMMITTEES
	Section 1. COMMITTEES OF DIRECTORS.  The board of directors may, by resolution adopted by a majority of the directors then in office, designate one or more committees, each consisting of two or more directors, to serve at the pleasure of the board.  A...
	(a) undertaking any final action on any matter that, under the Law, also requires approval of the board of directors;
	(a) the filling of vacancies on the board of directors or in any committee;
	(a) the amendment or repeal of bylaws or the adoption of new bylaws;
	(a) the amendment or repeal of any resolution of the board of directors that by its express terms is not so amendable or repealable;
	(a) the appointment of any other committees of the board of directors or the members thereof;
	(a) the expenditure of corporate funds to support a nominee for director after there are more people nominated for director than can be elected; or
	(a) the approval of any contract or transaction to which the corporation is a party and in which one or more of its directors has a material financial interest, except as special approval is provided for in Section 5233(d)(3) of the Code.

	Section 2. MEETINGS AND ACTION. Meetings and action of committees of the board shall be governed by, and held and taken in accordance with, the provisions of Article VI of these bylaws, Sections 8 (place of meetings and meetings by telephone), 9 (annu...

	Article VIII  OFFICERS
	Section 1. OFFICERS.  The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a secretary, and a chief financial officer.  The corporation may also have, at the discretion of the board of directors, a chairman of the board, one or more vice presidents, ...
	Section 2. ELECTION.  The officers of the corporation, except such officers as may be appointed in accordance with the provisions of Section 3 or Section 5 of this Article VIII, shall be chosen by the board of directors, and each shall serve at the pl...
	Section 3. OTHER OFFICERS.  The board of directors may appoint, and may empower the president to appoint, such other officers as the activities of the corporation may require, each of whom shall hold office for such period, have such authority, and pe...
	Section 4. REMOVAL AND RESIGNATION.  Subject to the rights, if any, of any officer under any contract of employment, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, by the board of directors or, except in case of an officer chosen by the boa...
	Section 5. VACANCIES. A vacancy in any office because of death, resignation, removal, disqualification, or any other cause shall be filled in the manner prescribed in these bylaws for regular appointments to such office.
	Section 6. CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD.  The chairman of the board, if such an officer be elected, shall, if present, preside at meetings of the board of directors and exercise and perform such other powers and duties as may be from time to time assigned to...
	Section 7. PRESIDENT.  Subject to such supervisory powers, if any, as may be given by the board of directors to the chairman of the board, if there be such an officer, the president shall be the chief executive officer of the corporation and shall, su...
	Section 8. VICE PRESIDENTS.  In the absence or disability of the president, the vice presidents, if any, in order of their rank as fixed by the board of directors or, if not ranked, a vice president designated by the board of directors, shall perform ...
	Section 9. SECRETARY.  The secretary shall keep, or cause to be kept, at the principal executive office or such other place as the board of directors may direct, a book of minutes of all meetings and actions of directors, and committees of directors, ...
	Section 10. CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER.  The chief financial officer shall keep and maintain, or cause to be kept and maintained, adequate and correct books and records of accounts of the properties and business transactions of the corporation, including...

	Article IX  INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES
	Section 1. DEFINITIONS.  For the purposes of this Article IX, the definition of the terms “agent”, “proceeding”, and “expenses” shall be governed by Section 5238 of the Code.
	Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY THIRD PARTIES.  The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any proceeding (other than an action by or in the right of the corporation t...
	Section 3. INDEMNIFICATION IN ACTIONS BY OR IN THE RIGHT OF THE CORPORATION.  The corporation shall have power to indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending, or completed action by or in t...
	(a) Any claim, issue, or matter as to which such person shall have been adjudged to be liable to the corporation in the performance of such person's duty to the corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in which such action was brought...
	(b) Amounts paid in settling or otherwise disposing of a threatened or pending action, with or without court approval; or
	(c) Expenses incurred in defending a threatened or pending action which is settled or otherwise disposed of without court approval, unless it is settled with the approval of the Attorney General of California.

	Section 4. INDEMNIFICATION AGAINST EXPENSES.  To the extent that an agent of the corporation has been successful on the merits in defense of any proceeding referred to in Sections 2 or 3 of this Article IX or in defense of any claim, issue, or matter ...
	Section 5. REQUIRED DETERMINATIONS.  Except as provided in Section 4 of this Article IX, any indemnification under this Article shall be made by the corporation only if authorized in the specific case, upon a determination that indemnification of the ...
	(a) A majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who are not parties to such proceeding; or
	(b) The court in which such proceeding is or was pending upon application made by the corporation or the agent or the attorney or other person rendering services in connection with the defense, whether or not such application by the agent, attorney, o...

	Section 6. ADVANCE OF EXPENSES.  Expenses incurred in defending any proceeding may be advanced by the corporation prior to the final disposition of such proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of the agent to repay such amount unless...
	Section 7. OTHER INDEMNIFICATION.  No provision made by the corporation to indemnify its directors or officers for the defense of any proceeding, whether contained in the articles of incorporation, bylaws, a resolution of directors, an agreement, or o...
	Section 8. FORMS OF INDEMNIFICATION NOT PERMITTED.  No indemnification or advance shall be made under this Article IX, except as provided in Section 4 or Section 5(b), in any circumstance if it appears that:
	(a) It would be inconsistent with a provision of the articles of incorporation, bylaws, or an agreement in effect at the time of the accrual of the alleged cause of action asserted in the proceeding in which the expenses were incurred or other amounts...
	(b) It would be inconsistent with any condition expressly imposed by a court in approving a settlement.

	Section 9. INSURANCE.  The corporation shall have the power to purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any agent of the corporation against any liability asserted against or incurred by the agent in such capacity or arising out of the agent’s sta...

	Article X  RECORDS AND REPORTS
	Section 1. MAINTENANCE OF CORPORATE RECORDS.  The corporation shall keep (a) adequate and correct books and records of account kept either in written form or in any other form capable of being converted into written form and (b) minutes, in written fo...
	Section 2. MAINTENANCE AND INSPECTION OF ARTICLES AND BYLAWS.  The corporation shall keep at its principal executive office, or if its principal executive office is not in the State of California, at its principal office in this state, the original or...
	Section 3. INSPECTION.  Every director shall have the absolute right at any reasonable time, and from time to time, to inspect all books, records, and documents of every kind and the physical properties of the corporation.  Such inspection by a direct...
	Section 4. ANNUAL REPORTS.  The board of directors shall cause an annual report to be sent to the directors within 120 days of the corporation’s fiscal year end. That report shall contain the following information, in appropriate detail, for the fisca...
	(a) The assets and liabilities, including the trust funds, of the corporation as of the end of the fiscal year;
	(b) The principal changes in assets and liabilities, including trust funds;
	(c) The revenue or receipts of the corporation, both unrestricted and restricted to particular purposes;
	(d) The expenses or disbursements of the corporation for both general and restricted purposes; and
	(e) Any information required by Section 5 of this Article X.

	Section 5. ANNUAL STATEMENT OF CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND INDEMNIFICATIONS.  As part of the annual report to all directors, the corporation shall annually prepare and mail or deliver to each director within 120 days after the corporation's fiscal year e...
	(a) A brief description of any transaction during the previous fiscal year that involved more than $50,000, or was one of a number of transactions in which the same interested person had a direct or indirect material financial interest involving, in t...
	(b) The names of interested persons involved in such transactions described in the preceding paragraph (a), their relationship to the corporation, the nature of their interest in the transaction and, if practicable, the amount of that interest; provid...
	(c) A brief description of the amount and circumstances of any indemnifications or advances aggregating more than $10,000 paid during the fiscal year to any officer or director of the corporation under Article IX of these bylaws, unless that indemnifi...


	Article XI  GENERAL MATTERS
	Section 1. CHECKS, DRAFTS, EVIDENCES OF INDEBTEDNESS.  All checks, drafts, or other orders for payment of money, notes, or other evidences of indebtedness, issued in the name of or payable to the corporation, shall be signed or endorsed by such person...
	Section 2. CORPORATE CONTRACTS AND INSTRUMENTS; HOW EXECUTED.  Except as otherwise provided in these bylaws, the board of directors may authorize any officer or officers, agent or agents, to enter into any contract or execute any instrument in the nam...
	Section 3. REPRESENTATION OF SHARES OF OTHER CORPORATIONS.  The chairman of the board, the president, or any vice president, or any other person authorized by resolution of the board of directors or by any of the foregoing designated officers, is auth...
	Section 4. CONSTRUCTION AND DEFINITIONS.  Unless the context requires otherwise, the general provisions, rules of construction, and definitions in the Law shall govern the construction of these bylaws.  Without limiting the generality of the foregoing...

	Article XII  AMENDMENTS

	ADP54A5.tmp
	Feather River
	July 2020 
	August 2020 
	September 2020 
	October 2020
	November 2020
	December 2020
	January 2021 
	February 2021 
	March 2021 
	April 2021 
	May 2021 
	June 2021 
	Notes: 

	                                                                     2020-2021
	Appendix – Important Due Dates

	ADP1A1D.tmp
	 Feather River Charter School
	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 1: District Commitment to School Safety

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 2: Legislative Requirements

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 3: Maintaining a Safe and Orderly Environment

	Section A: General Information – School Safety - Includes Employee Fingerprint/Background Check - Ed Code 44237
	Part 4: Criminal Background Check

	CRIMINAL BACKGROUND CHECK
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Part 1: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures

	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section B: Child Abuse Reporting Procedures - Penal Code 11165.5 &.6
	Section C: Emergency/Disaster Plans - Ed Code 32287; CCR Title 8, Sec 3220 ADA
	Part 1: General Information – Disaster
	Part 2: Biological/Chemical Weapons Assault
	Part 3: Bomb Threat Procedures
	Part 4: Chemical or Hazardous Material Incident
	Part 5: Earthquake Procedures
	Part 6: Explosion, Aircraft Crash or Similar Incident 
	Part 7: Fire Procedures
	Part 8: Flood Procedures
	Part 9: Lockdown/Civil Unrest Procedures
	Part 10: Severe Windstorm Procedures

	This Emergency Action Plan is being developed to provide information to the staff at Feather River Charter School to ensure pertinent information is available in the case of an incident that warrants a response.  It is written in accordance with Calif...
	EVACUATION PROCEDURES
	LOCKDOWN/REVERSE EVACUATION PROCEDURES
	PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING A “SIZE-UP”
	1.  Gather Facts:
	2.  Assess and Communicate the Damage:
	3. Consider Probabilities:
	4. Assess Your Own Situation:
	5.  Establish Priorities:
	6.  Make Decisions:
	7. Develop an INCIDENT ACTION PLAN:
	8.  Take Action:
	9.  Evaluate Progress:

	BOMB THREAT
	TELEPHONE BOMB THREAT
	E-MAIL BOMB THREAT

	FIRE/EXPLOSION
	FIRE DRILL PROCEDURES
	POSTING OF EVACUATION ROUTES
	FIRE/EXPLOSION CHECKLIST

	EARTHQUAKE
	IF INDOORS
	IN VEHICLE:
	GENERAL GUIDELINES (AFTER THE QUAKE):

	SHOOTING/STABBINGS
	IMMINENT WARNING SIGNS REQUIRE AN IMMEDIATE RESPONSE AND MAY INCLUDE THE FOLLOWING
	WHAT TO DO IF A SHOOTING/STABBING OCCURS AT THE SCHOOL OFFICE
	IF STAFF ARE OUTSIDE, THEY SHOULD BE TRAINED AND/OR INSTRUCTED TO
	SCENE OF INCIDENT

	DEATH AND/OR SUICIDE
	DEATH OCCURS AT SCHOOL (student’s learn primarily at home)
	IF THE OFFICE IS TAKEN HOSTAGE
	WHEN THE HOSTAGE LOCATION IS OTHER THAN AN OFFICE
	WHILE WAITING FOR LAW ENFORCEMENT
	ONCE LAW ENFORCEMENT ARRIVES
	THE SITE EMERGENCY TEAM SHOULD MAKE PLANS TO
	UNDERSTANDING NONVERBAL MESSAGES
	SEND THE RIGHT NONVERBAL MESSAGES
	ATTEMPT TO USE PHRASES SUCH AS:
	WHAT TO DO:

	CHEMICAL RELEASE/ HAZARDOUS MATERIAL SPILL
	HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OFFICE PREPARE?
	HOW SHOULD THE SCHOOL OR DISTRICT RESPOND?

	MEDICAL EMERGENCY
	SOME EMERGENCY PREVENTION/PREPAREDNESS GUIDELINES
	WHAT TO DO IF A MEDICAL EMERGENCY OCCURS

	GAS ODOR/LEAK
	GAS ODOR OR LEAK INSIDE A BUILDING
	IF GAS ODOR OR LEAK IS DETECTED OUTSIDE THE BUILDING

	SHELTER-IN-PLACE PROCEDURES
	Why You Might Need to Shelter-In-Place
	Following Are Actions to Follow at Your Worksite:
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan
	Comprehensive School Safety Plan


	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions Policies and Procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section D: Suspension/Expulsions policies and procedures - Ed Code 48915
	Part 1: Definitions/Due Process/Rules and Procedures of School Discipline/Process and Procedures

	Section E: Procedures to Notify Teachers of Dangerous Pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Part 1: Notifying Teachers of Dangerous Pupils

	Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Section E: Procedures to notify teachers of dangerous pupils - Ed Code 49079
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 1: General Information

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 2: Sexual Harassment – All Personnel

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Part 3: Sexual Harassment – Students

	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section F: Discrimination and Sexual Harassment Policy
	Section G: School Dress Code, if it exists.  CA Ed Code: Sections 32280-32289
	Part 1: Non-classroom based program does not have a dress code.

	Section H: Safe Ingress and Egress
	Part 1: General Information
	Part 2: Safe Ingress and Egress

	Section I: Bullying and Intimidation
	Part 1: Anti-Intimidation Policy

	Section K: Crime Assessment
	Part 1: Crime Assessment


	FeatherRivercovid19report.pdf
	COVID-19 Operations Written Report

	ADP236E.tmp
	PAYROLL ADVANCE POLICY
	POLICY BRIEF AND PURPOSE
	SCOPE
	POLICY ELEMENTS
	CONDITIONS FOR REQUESTING A PAYROLL ADVANCE
	PAYROLL ADVANCE TERMS
	PAYROLL ADVANCE AGREEMENTS


	ADP884B.tmp
	PAYROLL ADVANCE POLICY
	POLICY BRIEF AND PURPOSE
	SCOPE
	POLICY ELEMENTS
	CONDITIONS FOR REQUESTING A PAYROLL ADVANCE
	PAYROLL ADVANCE TERMS
	PAYROLL ADVANCE AGREEMENTS


	ADPC011.tmp
	A. Returning Educational Products: All educational items requested through the Enrichment ordering system are the property of the Charter School.  This includes any technology, textbooks, and other educational items.  Families must return all educatio...
	B. Damaged or Lost Educational Items:  Parents are responsible for replacing lost, stolen, damage, or otherwise unreturned educational items to the extent allowed under applicable law. If an educational item is damaged, parents must immediately contac...


